FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

Green Mill On The Go, LLC
A Minnesota limited liability company
1342 Grand Avenue
St. Paul, MN 55105
(651) 203-3100
WWW.GREENMILL.COM

Franchisees will own and operate a limited service offering under the GREEN MILL ON THE GO® trade name
and marks that will complement an existing restaurant (“GMOTG Restaurant™).

The total investment necessary to begin operation of a GMOTG Restaurant is $147,000 to $575,000. This
includes $25,000 to $55,000 that you must pay to the franchisor or an affiliate.

This document (“Disclosure Document™) summarizes certain provisions of your franchise agreement and other
information in plain English. Read this Disclosure Document and all accompanying agreements carefully. You
must receive this Disclosure Document at least 14 calendar-days before you sign a binding agreement with, or
make any payment to, the franchisor or an affiliate in connection with the proposed franchise sale. Note,
however, that no governmental agency has verified the information contained in this document.

The terms of your contract will govern your franchise relationship. Don’t rely on the Disclosure Document alone
to understand your contract. Read all of your contract carefully. Show your contract and this Disclosure
Document to an advisor, like a lawyer or an accountant.

Buying a franchise is a complex investment. The information in this Disclosure Document can help you make
up your mind. More information on franchising, such as “A Consumer’s Guide to Buying a Franchise,” which
can help you understand how to use this Disclosure Document, is available from the Federal Trade Commission.
You can contact the FTC at 1-877-FTC-HELP or by writing to the FTC at 600 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW,
Washington, D.C. 20580. You can also visit the FTC’s home page at www.ftc.gov for additional information.
Call your state agency or visit your public library for other sources of information on franchising.

There may also be laws on franchising in your state. Ask your state agencies about them.

Issuance Date: May 29, 2024
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How to Use This Franchise Disclosure Document
Here are some questions you may be asking about buying a franchise and tips on how

to find more information:

QUESTION

WHERE TO FIND INFORMATION

How much can | earn?

Item 19 may give you information about
outlet sales, costs, profits or losses. You
should also try to obtain this information
from others, like current and former
franchisees. You can find their names and
contact information in Item 20 or Exhibit
D

How much will 1 need to invest?

Items 5 and 6 list fees you will be paying
to the franchisor or at the franchisor’s
direction. Item 7 lists the initial investment
to open. Item 8 describes the suppliers you
must use.

Does the franchisor have the financial
ability to provide support to my
business?

Item 21 or Exhibit C includes financial
statements. Review these statements
carefully.

Is the franchise system stable, growing,
or shrinking?

Item 20 summarizes the recent history of
the number of company-owned and
franchised outlets.

Will my business be the only GMOTG
Restaurant business in my area?

Item 12 and the “territory” provisions in
the franchise agreement describe whether
the franchisor and other franchisees can
compete with you.

Does the franchisor have a troubled
legal history?

Items 3 and 4 tell you whether the
franchisor or its management have been
involved in  material litigation or
bankruptcy proceedings.

What’s it like to be a GMOTG
Restaurant franchisee?

Item 20 or Exhibit D lists current and
former franchisees. You can contact them
to ask about their experiences.

What else should I know?

These questions are only a few things you
should look for. Review all 23 Items and all
Exhibits in this disclosure document to
better understand this franchise
opportunity. See the table of contents.
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What You Need To Know About Franchising Generally

Continuing responsibility to pay fees. You may have to pay royalties and other fees even
if you are losing money.

Business model can change. The franchise agreement may allow the franchisor to change
its manuals and business model without your consent. These changes may require you to
make additional investments in your franchise business or may harm your franchise
business.

Supplier restrictions. You may have to buy or lease items from the franchisor or a limited
group of suppliers the franchisor designates. These items may be more expensive than
similar items you could buy on your own.

Operating restrictions. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a
similar business during the term of the franchise. There are usually other restrictions. Some
examples may include controlling your location, your access to customers, what you sell,
how you market, and your hours of operation.

Competition from franchisor. Even if the franchise agreement grants you a territory, the
franchisor may have the right to compete with you in your territory.

Renewal. Your franchise agreement may not permit you to renew. Even if it does, you may
have to sign a new agreement with different terms and conditions in order to continue to
operate your franchise business.

When your franchise ends. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a
similar business after your franchise ends even if you still have obligations to your landlord
or other creditors.

Some States Require Registration

Your state may have a franchise law, or other law, that requires franchisors to
register before offering or selling franchises in the state. Registration does not mean that
the state recommends the franchise or has verified the information in this document. To
find out if your state has a registration requirement, or to contact your state, use the agency
information in Exhibit A.

Your state also may have laws that require special disclosures or amendments be
made to your franchise agreement. If so, you should check the State Specific Addenda. See
the Table of Contents for the location of the State Specific Addenda.
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Special Risks to Consider About This Franchise
Certain states require that the following risk(s) be highlighted:

1. Out-of-State Dispute Resolution. The franchise agreement requires you to
resolve disputes with the franchisor by mediation, arbitration and/or litigation only
in Minnesota. Out-of-state mediation, arbitration, or litigation may force you to
accept a less favorable settlement for disputes. It may also cost more to mediate,
arbitrate, or litigate with the franchisor in Minnesota than in your own state.

2. Supplier Control. You must purchase all or nearly all of the inventory or
supplies that are necessary to operate your business from the franchisor, its
affiliates, or suppliers that the franchisor designates, at prices the franchisor or they
set. These prices may be higher than prices you could obtain elsewhere for the same
or similar goods. This may reduce the anticipated profit of your franchise business.

Certain states may require other risks to be highlighted. Check the *“State Specific
Addenda” (if any) to see whether your state requires other risks to be highlighted.

iv
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ITEM1
THE FRANCHISOR AND ANY PARENTS, PREDECESSORS, AND AFFILIATES

To make it easier to read this Disclosure Document, the words “Franchisor,” “we,” “our,” and “us” mean
Green Mill On The Go, LLC. “You”, “your” or “yours” means the person or entity which buys the GMOTG
Restaurant franchise. If the buyer of the franchise is a corporation, general partnership, limited partnership,
limited liability partnership, limited liability company, joint venture or other entity, the term “you,” “your”
and “yours” also includes the individual owners of those entities.

We are a Minnesota limited liability company that was formed on June 9, 2022. We maintain our principal
business office at 1342 Grand Avenue, St. Paul, Minnesota 55105. Our telephone number is (651) 203-
3100. We do business under the name “Green Mill On The Go”. From July 2021 through June 9, 2022,
GMOTG Restaurant franchises were offered through our affiliate, Green Mill Restaurants, LLC, Minnesota
limited liability company (“Green Mill”’). Beginning June 9, 2022, we began offering GMOTG Restaurant
franchises and all rights were assigned from Green Mill to us as of June 9, 2022. We have not offered
franchises in other lines of business.

Green Mill, whose principal place of business is the same as ours, was formed on September 2, 2010.
Effective May 31, 2010, two of Green Mill’s officers acquired the stock of Green Mill’s immediate
predecessor, Green Mill Restaurants, Inc. (“GMR Predecessor”). GMR Predecessor was incorporated on
April 19, 1991, under the name Mill Franchising Incorporated, but changed its name to Green Mill
Restaurants, Inc. on October 21, 1998. On November 20, 2010, through a series of mergers (the
“Mergers”), Green Mill acquired all of the assets, liabilities and interests, including the Green Mill
franchise system, from GMR Predecessor.

Green Mill Restaurants, Inc. (“GMR Predecessor”) offered franchises to operate full-service restaurants
featuring pizza under the “ Green Mill” trade name and service marks from 1991 until 2010. Except for
GMR Predecessor and Green Mill, we have no other predecessors.

The names and addresses of our agents for service of process are listed on Exhibit A.

A franchise entitles you to operate one GMOTG Restaurant limited franchise that you will operate under
the terms of the Franchise Agreement (“Franchise Agreement”). A copy of the Franchise Agreement is
included as Exhibit B. You must offer the GMOTG Restaurant menu which is limited to pizza, calzones,
garlic cheese bread and our award-winning wings. The principal customers for the food products and
beverages offered and sold in a Green Mill On The Go restaurant will be families and young adults.

Hightop Brands, LLC (“HB”), is a Minnesota limited liability company formed as Hightop Hospitality,
LLC on January 19, 2018. On April 27, 2018, it changed its name to Hightop Brands, LLC and is our
parent entity (“Parent”). We have entered into an Amended and Restated Service Mark License Agreement
(“License Agreement”), as more fully described in Item 13, with Hightop Foods, LLC, which was formed
on June 13, 2017 as Hightop Brands, and then changed its name to Hightop Foods, LLC (“HF”) on April
27,2018. HF is a wholly owned subsidiary of HB. Subject to the rights retained and/or previously granted
by The Green Mill Inn, Inc., (“GMI”), to operate certain existing Green Mill restaurants, we have the
exclusive right under the License Agreement to offer and sell franchises to operate restaurants featuring
pizza under the “Green Mill On The Go” trade name and service marks in the States of Minnesota,
Nebraska, North Dakota, South Dakota, Wisconsin, Kansas, lowa and Illinois. The License Agreement
also permits us to obtain similar rights in other states on a state-by-state basis. HB’s and HF’s principal
business address is 1342 Grand Avenue, St. Paul, MN 55105, and the telephone number is (651) 203-
3100. Neither HB nor HF has offered or sold franchises in any line of business.

We have two other affiliates that either provide services to our franchisees or offer franchises. GMR, Inc.
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(“GMR?”) is a Minnesota corporation formed in November 2010 whose principal address is the same as
ours. GMR provides management and administrative services to us. It has not operated GMOTG
Restaurant franchises and it has not offered franchises in any line of business.

Another affiliate of ours is Crooked Pint, LLC (“Crooked Pint”) which is a Minnesota limited liability
company whose principal place of business is the same as ours. Crooked Pint is the owner of the Crooked
Pint Ale House marks and restaurant concept. It has not operated or offered franchises for Green Mill
restaurants. It has offered franchises for Crooked Pint restaurants since April 2011.

Your GMOTG Restaurant franchise will compete with numerous national and local restaurants, on the go
services and other businesses which also sell pizza and other food products including many competing
franchise concepts. The current market for the on the go services is highly competitive. Your ability to
compete in your market will depend upon certain factors, including the location of your GMOTG
Restaurant, the location of competing restaurants and other on the go restaurants, your financial and
managerial capabilities, general economic conditions and other factors.

The sales of your GMOTG Restaurant franchise are not expected to be seasonal.

Laws exist in every state that govern the food service industry (including health, sanitation and safety
regulations regarding food storage, preparation and safety) and the sale of liquor. You must comply with
these laws and other laws that apply to businesses generally. In addition to laws and regulations that apply
to businesses generally, your Restaurant will be subject to various federal, state and local government
regulations, including those relating to site location and building construction, such as the Americans with
Disabilities Act; storage, preparation and sale of food products, including meat products; and health,
sanitation and safety regulations relating to food service, as well as any state or local executive orders that
may limit certain matters during the COVID-19 pandemic. It is your sole responsibility to obtain and keep
in force all necessary licenses and permits required by public authorities, and to comply with all PCI
(Payment Card Industry) Data Security standards. You should consult with your attorney concerning all
laws and regulations that may affect your Restaurant operations.

ITEM 2
BUSINESS EXPERIENCE

Director, Chairman of the Board, Member, President and Chief Executive Officer — Paul Dzubnar

Mr. Dzubnar has been a member, and also has served as our Director, Chairman of the Board and Chief
Executive Officer, since inception as well as for Green Mill Restaurants, LLC since June 2010. Mr.
Dzubnar was the President and Chief Operating Officer for GMR Predecessor from September 2007 to
June 2010, and was a shareholder of GMR Predecessor from October 2003 through May 2010.

Member, Director and Secretary — Michael Drummer

Mr. Drummer has been a member, and also has served as our Director and Secretary, since inception as
well as the same for Green Mill Restaurants, LLC since June 2010. Mr. Drummer’s principal occupation
is land development and construction, and also owns tree farms and a landscape business. Mr. Drummer
also has held an interest in the entities that own the Green Mill Restaurants in St. Cloud (August 2010-
present) and St. Paul (June 2010-present).

Member and Chief Operating Officer — Timothy Kreiser

Mr. Kreiser is our Chief Operating Officer in addition to being a member of Green Mill Restaurants, LLC
and COO effective in January of 2018. Mr. Kreiser had served as our Vice President of Operations for
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Green Mill Restaurants, LLC from June 2013 until December 2017. Mr. Kreiser served as Director of
Operations for Green Mill Restaurants, LLC from June 2010 until promoted to Vice President of Operations
in 2013.

Member and Chief Marketing Officer — John Hinz

Mr. Hinz has been a member and Chief Marketing Officer since inception and the same for Green Mill
Restaurants, LLC since July 2012. He has also served as a member and Chief Marketing Officer of
Crooked Pint since July 2021.

Director of Training — Ashley MacDonald

Ms. MacDonald serves as our Director of training and has served as Green Mill Restaurants, LLC Director
of Training since August 2016. From June 2010 through July 2016, she served as General Manager and
Regional Manager for GMR, and she also served as Corporate Trainer of GMR Predecessor from May
2008 through May 2010.

Vice President of Finance — Jaclyn Davern

Ms. Davern has worked for Green Mill Restaurants since 2004 and as Controller since 2008. She was
promoted to Vice President of Finance in April of 2022 and serves as GREEN MILL ON THE GO’s Vice
President of Finance.

ITEM 3
LITIGATION

No litigation is required to be disclosed in this Item.

ITEM 4
BANKRUPTCY

No bankruptcy information is required to be disclosed in this Item.

ITEMS
INITIAL FEES

Initial Franchise Fee

You must pay us an initial franchise fee of $15,000 when you sign the Franchise Agreement for a GMOTG
Restaurant franchise. The Initial Franchise Fee is deferred until we have satisfied our pre-opening
obligations to you and you have commenced business operations. The Minnesota Department of Commerce
has imposed this deferral requirement due to our financial condition. If your GMOTG Restaurant franchise
is not operational within nine (9) months from the date you sign the Franchise Agreement because of any
cause or event reasonably within your control, we have the right to terminate the Franchise Agreement.
Upon such a termination, we will refund to you that portion of the initial franchise fee, if any, which exceeds
the costs and expenses incurred by us in approving you as a franchisee and in performing our duties and
obligations under the Franchise Agreement. The initial franchise fee is not refundable in whole or in part
under any other circumstances. We did not collect any initial franchise fees in 2023.

Except as noted below, the initial franchise fee is contemplated to be uniform as to all persons currently
acquiring a franchise from us. We may, in our sole business judgment, agree to reduce the initial franchise
fee in certain situations, including situations where a prospective franchisee and its affiliates agree to
develop a GMOTG Restaurant in a new market or to develop an agreed upon number of GMOTG
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Restaurant within an agreed upon period of time, situations where a prospective franchisee and/or its
affiliates own a number of GMOTG Restaurants and/or in situations where we believe an incentive is
needed to induce the franchisee to develop a GMOTG Restaurant. We reserve the right in our business
judgment to charge less than $15,000 as our initial franchise fee for a GMOTG Restaurant franchise in the
situations described above and in other circumstances where we deem a reduction to be appropriate in our
sole business judgment. However, we do not always negotiate the initial franchise fee, even in the
situations described above, and we may freely choose not to reduce your initial franchise fee or to negotiate
with you, even in the situations described above.

Grand Opening Allowance

At least 30 days before the opening of your GMOTG Restaurant, you must pay us a Grand Opening
Allowance in the amount of $5,000-15,000, at our sole discretion. We will use this Grand Opening
Allowance for purposes of providing and conducting an advertising, public relations and promotional
program in connection with the grand opening of your GMOTG Restaurant franchise. We will determine
in our sole business judgment when, where and how to spend the funds on your behalf. Within 30 days
after the grand opening of your restaurant, we will provide you with an accounting as to the expenditure of
the funds and refund to you any portion of the Grand Opening Allowance that was not expended by us on
your behalf.

Opening Team Expenses

You will reimburse us (or our affiliates) for the travel expenses and the prorated salaries and benefits for
their employee-trainers (the “Opening Team Expenses”) who, as part of the Initial Training Program, will
assist you with training your own employees on site at your Restaurant for the two week period before your
grand opening and the two week period after the opening. These expenses are nonrefundable and will total
between $5,000 - $10,000. Upon completion of our assistance, we will send you an invoice for the actual
amount of Opening Team Expenses due from you to us or our affiliate (as applicable). You must pay this
invoice within 30 days.

ITEM6
OTHER FEES
Type of Fee (1) Amount Due Date Remarks

Gross Sales includes the total revenues and
Payable monthly receipts from the sale of gll products, services
Continuing 4% of gross sales on or before the gndl (;nerchandlse d§0|d n. y(_)lur Re_st_agran_t,
Royalty Fee (2) for Green Mill On 15th day of the Including any vending or similar activities in
@3) The Go menu items next month via your Res'gaurant or on its premises as well as all
EET withdrawal use or license fees. Gross Sales does not

include sales tax.
Each month, you must spend this amount for
approved local advertising, marketing and
promotion. If you spend less than this amount
1/2% of Gross in any month, you must deposit the difference
Local Advertising Sales for Green Monthly with us and we have the right to form local,
Expenditure (4) Mill On The Go regional  and/or  national  advertising
menu items cooperatives and to require you to join and
participate in the cooperative(s) which
encompasses  your designated territory.
Payments to any such cooperative will be

5
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Type of Fee (1)

Amount

Due Date

Remarks

credited against your required local advertising,
marketing and promotion expenditures.

Advertising Fee

1 1/2% of Gross
Sales for Green

Payable monthly
on or before the
15" day of the next

See Item 11 of this Disclosure Document.

maximum rate
permitted by law

“) er::e(rilr] ;[Q;SGO month via EFT
withdrawal
The lesser of 18%
Interest per annum or the Unspecified You must pay interest on any delinquent sums

owed to us.

Transfer Fee

20% of our then-
current Initial
Franchise Fee

Prior to approval of
transfer by us

You must pay a transfer fee to us if you transfer
your Franchise Agreement, the assets
associated with your GMOTG Restaurant or
your stock or other outstanding ownership
interests.

Audit Fees

Cost of Audit

Unspecified

Payable only if an audit shows you have
understated your Gross Sales by more than 3%
for any period.

Quality Control

$1,500 annually

First (1% month of

We have retained Service Management Group,
LLC to provide us with quantitative surveys
collecting structured and unstructured customer

manager, assistant
kitchen manager,

Inspections each year feedback  about  single location-level
experiences.
Our then-standard
rate for training
(currently $1,000
for your on-site Any new on-site general manager, kitchen
general manager manager, assistant kitchen manager, dinin
Additional and $750 each for ger, : ger, g
. . Upon demand room manager, and delivery manager must
Training your Kitchen

successfully complete our management training
program.

Refurbishing

dining room
manager, and
bookkeeper)
Indemnification Varies Upon demand. You must indemnify us against certain losses
and expenses.
We will provide advisory services upon
Advisory Services Varies As incurred. request. You must pay Us at our current rates
for these services, if these services are
requested by you.
Periodic You must, at your expense, periodically (not
Varies As arranged. more than every 7 years) refurbish and upgrade

your GMOTG Restaurant restaurant.
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®)

receiving invoice

Type of Fee (1) Amount Due Date Remarks
Tax .
Reimbursement Varies Within ten days of See Note 5.

Green Mill
Academy

$1,200 annually

First (1%%) month of
each year

You must pay an annual fee for online access to
both hands on and eLearning training material,
videos, testing and forms.

Technology Fee
(Infinity Service
provided by
Ingage I.T.) (6)

Determined by us
depending on the
specific
circumstances of
the GMOTG
Restaurant, not to
exceed 3.99% of
Gross Sales run
through credit card
processing system
(processing
revenue), with a
monthly minimum
of $3,400. In

As of the date of
the Disclosure
Document, paid by
electronic funds
transfer by the 10™
day of each month
for the previous
month or
accounting period
to Ingage 1.T.(3)

Includes Credit Card Processing Fees as well as
Point of Sale equipment and maintenance, gift
card processing, MSP, online ordering, wi-fi,
KDS, and loyalty programs. The Infinity
Service program and Ingate I.T. is optional for
the GMOTG Restaurant franchise.

addition, there is a
$229.99 monthly
KDS connection

fee

(1) Unless otherwise noted, all fees are payable to us, and are nonrefundable. Fees are generally
uniformly imposed as to all persons currently acquiring a franchise.

(2) You must fax or electronically transmit to us by 11:00 a.m. on Monday a report of your Gross Sales
and labor expenses for the preceding week. These reports of Gross Sales must be in such form as
we may require and include comparative information for the corresponding week during the
previous year. In addition, you must provide us with unaudited, monthly financial statements
within 15 days of the end of each calendar month or period and annual financial statements
prepared on a “compilation” basis by your independent public accountant within 90 days after the
end of each calendar year.

(3) These fees are payable by electronic funds transfer (EFT) each month from your designated
account, and you must execute all forms necessary to permit EFT withdrawals from your account.

(4) As of the date of this Disclosure Document you are required to spend a minimum of (i) 2% of
Gross Sales on approved local advertising expenditures and (ii) the 1 1/2% of Gross Sales for the
Advertising Fee, which is paid directly to us for deposit in an Advertising Fund. The expenses for
local advertising must be paid by you directly to the vendors. We have the right to increase the
total combined amount up to a maximum of 3 1/2% of Gross Sales and allocate the additional
amount between the Advertising Fund and local expenditures as we deem appropriate.

(5) You will pay all state and local taxes, including, without limitation, taxes denominated as income
or franchise taxes, that may be imposed on us as a result of our receipt or accrual of the Initial
Franchise Fee, the Royalty Fee, the Advertising Fee, and other fees that are referenced in the
Franchise Agreement, whether assessed against you through withholding or other means or
whether paid by us directly. In either case, you will pay to us (and to the appropriate governmental
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authority) such additional amounts as are necessary to provide us, after taking such taxes into
account (including any additional taxes imposed on such amounts) with the same amounts that we
would have received or accrued had such withholding or other payment, whether by your or by us,
not been required.

(6) You are required to use ITmation Corporation (dba “Ingage 1.T.”) as the provider of gift card
processing and loyalty program services, and have the option to use Ingage I.T. for the following
additional services at your GMOTG Restaurant: credit card processing, managed service provider
(“MSP”) services, online ordering, wi-fi and KDS (collectively referred to as “Infinity Service”).
A copy of the form Ingage I.T. Service Agreement is included as part of Exhibit G. In order to
qualify for the Infinity Service, you agree to implement a “cash discount” method of payment for
customers and related requirements. The Technology Fee will be determined by us depending on
the specific circumstances at the GMOTG Restaurant, with such Technology Fee not to exceed
3.99% of Gross Sales run through your Restaurant’s credit card processing system (processing
revenue), with any minimum due within 10 days of notice. The Technology Fee is paid directly to
Ingage I.T. In the event the Service Agreement is terminated for any reason other than a material
breach by Ingage 1.T., you agree to pay an early termination fee equal to: (i) if termination occurs
during the initial term of the Service Agreement, the cost of the Property (as defined in Addendum
A to your Service Agreement) times a fraction the numerator which shall equal the number of
whole or partial calendar months left in the initial term and the denominator which shall equal the
number of months in the initial term plus an amount equal to a percentage multiplied by the average
credit and debit card sales for each month in the initial term remaining in the Service Agreement,
and (ii) if termination occurs after the initial term, the cost of any new Property installed within the
last 12 months under the Service Agreement plus an amount equal to a percentage multiplied by
the average credit and debit card sales for each month of the renewal term remaining in the Service
Agreement. In addition to Ingage I.T, you have the option to use our designated supplier Restaurant
365 for our approved accounting and inventory management software at a current monthly cost of
$260. All technology related fees are subject to change from time to time. A copy of the form
Restaurant 365 Agreement also is included as part of Exhibit G.

ITEM7
ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

The following is an estimate of the total costs to construct and open a typical GMOTG Restaurant
franchise as part of an existing restaurant:
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Type of Expenditure Method of To Whom Payment
D Amount Payment When Due Is to be Made
The Initial
Franchise Fee is
deferred until we
have satisfied our
pre-opening
obligations to you
and you have
commenced
Initial Franchise Fee $15,000 Lump Sum bu§|ness Us
operations. The
Minnesota
Department of
Commerce has
imposed this
deferral
requirement due
to our financial
condition.
Training-Related Us or our affiliates,
Expenses (2) $5,000 to $25,000 As Arranged During training Hotels and
Restaurants
As negotiated Contractors
Leasehold $50,000 to with Contractors, Before Openin Architects an,d
Improvements (3) $125,000 Avrchitects and pening .
Engineers Engineers
Equipment and Trade $50,000 to As negotiated .
Fixtures (4) $300,000 As Arranged with Suppliers Suppliers
Signage $5,000 to $20,000 As Arranged W'Ai\tshnég(rﬁlrzl\igr Contractor
Opening Inventory and As negotiated .
Smallwares (5) $5,000 to $20,000 As Arranged with Suppliers Suppliers
As negotiated
Insurance (6) $2,000 to $10,000 Ty;l)lcally due in with the Insurance Company
ump sum. Insurance
Company
. . Due in full 30
Initial Advertising and h
Promotional Costs (7) $5,000 to $15,000 Lump Sum days prior to Us
opening
. As negotiated .
Miscellaneous Start-Up $5,000 to $10,000 As Arranged with Vgndors or Vendors, Suppliers,
Ccosts ' ' . or us
Suppliers
As negotiated
Additional Funds - 3 with Vendors, Vendors, Suppliers
months (8) $5,000 to $35,000 As Arranged Suppliers and and Employees
Employees
$147,000 -
TOTAL $575,000

(1) Except for rental security deposits, utility deposits and the Initial Franchise Fee in the
circumstances described in Items 5 and 11 of this Disclosure Document, generally none of these
expenditures by you are refundable under any circumstances. Also, we do not offer direct or
indirect financing to our franchisees for any of these expenditures.
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(2) See Items 6 and 11 of this Disclosure Document. We do not charge you a fee to attend our initial
training program, although you will bear all costs for you and your required employees to attend
such training. Of the total amount for “Training-Related Expenses” referenced in the above chart,
you can expect that approximately $5,000 to $10,000, payable to us or our affiliate for Opening
Team Expenses, as noted in Items 5 and 11.

(3) Depending upon your arrangement with your landlord, if any, you may be required to pay for
remodeling, decorating and leasehold improvements costing from $50,000 to $125,000. The
landlord may contribute to some of these costs or make financing available to you.

(4) You must purchase or lease the equipment and trade fixtures necessary to operate your GMOTG
Restaurant. It is estimated that the purchase price of the equipment and trade fixtures will range
from $50,000 to $250,000, depending upon whether the equipment is new or used, transportation
costs and other factors. For your GMOTG Restaurant, the equipment includes the hardware and
software for the POS System and related components for the Infinity Service described in Items 6,
8 and 11 and the Ingage I.T. Service Agreement, including Addendum A. The estimated value of
the Infinity Service hardware and software for the opening of the Restaurant is approximately
$38,400 to $43,400. There is no charge for these initial Infinity Service items other than the agreed
upon Technology Fee for the Infinity Service, plus an on-boarding fee paid directly to Ingage I.T.
in an amount between $2,500 to $5,000, which is included in the estimate included in Item 7.

(5) Opening Inventory includes items such as food and paper product inventory.

(6) You must purchase and pay for comprehensive general liability insurance, motor vehicle liability
insurance (including liability insurance for your delivery drivers), products liability insurance,
personal property insurance, worker’s compensation insurance, and such other insurance as we
may reasonably require and/or as may be required by applicable law. If you fail to maintain the
required insurance, we may, but are not required to, obtain any or all of the insurance that you must
obtain and maintain. You must reimburse us for all costs and expenses that we incur upon demand.

(7) At least 30 days before your GMOTG Restaurant opens for business, you must pay us a Grand
Opening Allowance in the amount of $5,000 to $15,000. We will use the Grand Opening
Allowance solely for the purpose of conducting an advertising and promotional program for the
grand opening of your GMOTG Restaurant. We will return to you any portion of the Grand
Opening Allowance not used on your behalf within 30 days after your grand opening.

(8) This estimates the funds you will need during the initial 3-month phase of your GMOTG Restaurant
franchise. In addition to having a reserve for unforeseen contingencies, it is estimated that you will
expend this for initial wages and fringe benefits, insurance premiums and other operating costs.
Your working capital requirements may increase or decrease, depending upon the location and size
of your GMOTG Restaurant, number of employees, labor rates, minimum wage laws, costs of
goods and supplies, various utility deposits, other economic factors and whether you will own or
lease the furniture, fixtures, equipment and signs. No assurance can be given that $5,000 to
$35,000 will be sufficient or that substantial additional working capital will not be required for a
GMOTG Restaurant.

We have prepared these estimates based upon our, GMR Predecessor’s and our affiliates’ respective
experiences (more than 30 years), including information that we have collected from our franchisees.
Except as expressly indicated otherwise, these estimates cover your initial cash investment up to the
opening of your GMOTG Restaurant. They do not provide for your cash needs to cover any financing
incurred by you or your other expenses. Similarly, the above estimates do not include the cost of acquiring
the land or preparing the site for your GMOTG Restaurant. You should not plan to draw income from the
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operation during the start-up and development stage of your business, the actual duration of which will
vary materially from GMOTG Restaurant restaurant to GMOTG Restaurant and cannot be predicted by us
for your GMOTG Restaurant (and which may extend for longer than the 3-month “initial phase” described
in Note 10). You must have additional sums available, whether in cash or through a bank line of credit, or
have other assets, which you may liquidate or against which you may borrow, to cover any other expenses
and operating losses that you may sustain, whether during your start-up and development stage, or beyond.
The amount of necessary reserves will vary greatly from franchisee to franchisee and will depend upon
many factors, including the rate of growth and success of your business, which in turn will depend upon
certain factors, including the demographics and economic conditions in the area in which your GMOTG
Restaurant is located, the presence of other bars, restaurants and on the go services in the vicinity of your
proposed GMOTG Restaurant, your ability to operate efficiently and in conformance with our
recommended method of doing business, and competition. Because the exact amount of reserves will vary
from operation to operation and cannot be meaningfully estimated by us, we urge you to retain the services
of an experienced accountant or financial advisor to develop a business plan and financial projections for
your particular operation.

ITEM 8
RESTRICTIONS ON SOURCES OF PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

In order to insure a uniform image and uniform quality of products and services throughout the Green Mill
on the Go system, you must maintain and comply with our quality standards. Although you are not required
to purchase or lease real estate from us or our affiliates, we must approve the location of your GMOTG
Restaurant. You must construct and equip your restaurant in accordance with our then-current approved
design, specifications and standards. At your request, we will assist you in procuring the necessary
equipment and trade fixtures. The plan of construction, architect and construction contractor you use must
be pre-approved in writing by us. In addition, it is your responsibility to insure that your building plans
comply with the Americans With Disabilities Act and all other federal, state and local laws. You also must
use equipment, signage, fixtures, furnishings, products, ingredients, supplies and advertising materials that
meet our specifications and standards.

We provide you with a list of approved manufacturers, suppliers and distributors (“Approved Suppliers
List”) and approved inventory products, fixtures, furniture, equipment, signs, stationary, paper products,
supplies and other items or services necessary to operate the restaurant (“Approved Supplies List”). The
Approved Supplies List may specify the specific manufacturer of a specific product or piece of equipment.
As further detailed below, from time to time we, an affiliate, or a third party vendor or supplier may be the
only approved supplier for certain products or services. For example, as of the date of this Disclosure
Document, (1) US Foodservice is the sole source of supply for spice blends, coffee, salad dressings, certain
breads, dough blends, cheese, and tomato sauce and sauce blends, and other products and services, (2) Don
Farleo Advertising & Design is the sole supplier of certain advertising, marketing, web design, and
promotional items; (3) SMG is the sole supplier of our customer survey program to measure, among other
things, guest satisfaction and loyalty and to evaluate restaurant operations and standards, and (4) Ingage
I.T. is the sole supplier of our Gift Card and credit card processing, and loyalty program. You will pay the
then-current price in effect for all purchases you make from us or an affiliate. These lists also may include
other specific products without reference to a particular manufacturer, or they may set forth the
specifications and/or standards for other approved products. We may revise the Approved Suppliers List
and Approved Supplies List. We give you the approved lists as we deem advisable.

One of our officers owns stock in a publicly-traded company which is our designated supplier of soft drinks.
Except for products and services available only from a single source, you may request that we consider

approval of different or additional manufacturers, suppliers or products related to the restaurant. As to such
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products and services, you must notify us in writing if you want to offer for sale at the restaurant any brand
of product, or to use in the operation of the restaurant, any brand of food ingredient or other material, item
or supply that is not then approved by us, or to purchase any such product from a supplier that is not then
designated by us as an Approved Supplier. If requested by us, you must submit samples and other
information as we require for testing or to otherwise determine whether the product, material or supply, or
the proposed supplier, meets our specifications and quality standards. We generally will notify you of
supplier approval or disapproval within 30 days of our receipt of all information and samples we request.
We do not charge you a fee for inspection, but you must pay all costs of the inspection and evaluation and
the actual cost of the test. The supplier also may be required to sign a supplier agreement. We may re-
inspect the facilities and products of an approved supplier or item and revoke our approval of any supplier
or item that fails to continue to meet any of our criteria. We will send written notice of any revocation of
an approved supplier or item. We are not required to make our criteria for approving vendors and suppliers
available to our franchisees.

We may supply you with uniforms, promotional materials, menus, pizza boxes and other materials utilizing
our registered logo at our cost plus a markup for handling. Although you currently are not required to
purchase such goods from us, the goods purchased must comply precisely with our specifications and may,
as a practical matter, be unavailable from other sources. We reserve the right to derive income from your
purchase of such goods or services. As of the date of this Disclosure Document, neither we nor any of our
affiliates are approved suppliers of any other goods, fixtures or services other than any promotional material
and services we elect to provide pursuant to the Franchise Agreement.

You must purchase and maintain in full force and effect, at your sole expense and from a company we
accept, insurance that insures both you and us, our affiliates and any other persons we designate by name.
The insurance policy or policies shall be written in accordance with the standards and specifications
(including minimum coverage amounts) set forth in writing by us from time to time, and, at a minimum,
shall include the following (except as different coverages and policy limits may be specified for all
franchisees from time to time in writing): (i) property insurance on the Restaurant, restaurant improvements
and all fixtures, equipment, supplies and other property used in the operation of the Restaurant (including,
but not limited to, fire, Replacement Cost extended coverage, vandalism and malicious mischief); (ii)
business interruption insurance that covers your loss of income and our Royalty Fees; (iii) comprehensive
general liability insurance with a minimum limit of $1,000,000 (including, but not limited to, coverage for
personal injury, products and contractual liability); (iv) umbrella insurance with a minimum limit of
$3,000,000 that is required to sit over automobile liability, employers liability, liquor liability, and general
liability; (v) $1,000,000 liquor liability insurance, as applicable; (vi) commercial automobile liability
insurance on all owned, hired, rented and non-owned vehicles; (vii) workers’ compensation and employer’s
liability insurance covering all of your employees; and (viii) such other insurance as we may from time to
time reasonably require, under one or more policies of insurance containing coverage, from time to time
prescribed by us. All liability policies and workers compensation policies must include a waiver of
subrogation. All policies must be issued by an insurance carrier rated “A” or better by Alfred M. Best &
Company, Inc. In addition, the required liability insurance must (i) name Green Mill On The Go, LLC and
affiliates (collectively, “Franchisor Entities”) as additional insureds; (ii) provide severability of interests
and/or separation of insureds coverage; and (iii) be primary and non-contributory with any insurance policy
carried by the Franchisor Entities. The policies shall provide that we must receive at least thirty (30) days’
prior written notice of termination, expiration, cancellation, modification or reduction in coverage of any
such policy.

You must deliver to us at commencement and thereafter annually and at our request a proper certificate
evidencing the existence of such insurance coverage and your compliance with the provisions of this
subparagraph. The insurance certificate must show compliance with all required insurance specifications.
We also may request copies of all policies. We may from time to time modify the required minimum limits
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and require additional insurance coverage, by providing written notice to you, as conditions require, to
reflect changes in relevant circumstances, industry standards, experiences in the Green Mill on the Go
system, standards of liability and higher damage awards. If you do not procure and maintain the insurance
coverage required by this Agreement, we have the right, but not the obligation, to procure insurance
coverage and to charge the costs to you, together with a reasonable fee for the expenses we incur in doing
S0. You must pay these amounts to us immediately upon written notice. Your obligation to obtain and
maintain the insurance described herein shall not be limited in any way by reason of any insurance we
procure and maintain.

Although not required, we recommend that you consider the following insurance coverage typically found
in restaurant operations: Employment Practices Liability; Food Contamination-Loss of Income; Food
Contamination-Trade Name Restoration; Employee Benefit Liability; Employee Dishonesty; Flood;
Earthquake; Back-up of Sewer & Drain; Money & Securities; Interior & Exterior Glass; Machinery &
Equipment Breakdown; Utility Interruption-Loss of Income; Inland Marine; and Cyber Liability.

Although we require certain insurance coverage and have recommended other coverages, we do not
guarantee that the required or recommended insurance will be adequate to fully protect your assets. You
should therefore consult with an insurance professional to determine what coverage, in addition to the
minimum required coverage, may be needed for you and your Restaurant.

As disclosed in this Item 8, we have several designated third-party sources from which you must purchase
goods and services. Neither we nor our franchisees have established any purchasing or distribution
cooperatives. However, although we do not do so for the benefit of any individual franchisee, we have
negotiated contracts with the vendors or suppliers of certain products and services in an effort to achieve
the best price and terms for you and our other GMOTG Restaurant franchisees.

We do not provide material benefits to you (including renewal rights or the right to open additional
GMOTG Restaurant) based on your purchase of particular goods and services or on your purchases from
the suppliers we designate or approve. However, purchases of unapproved goods or services or from
suppliers who have not been approved by us in violation of the Franchise Agreement will entitle us, among
other things, to terminate your Franchise Agreement.

We have the right to receive payments, rebates and other forms of consideration from suppliers based upon
your (and other franchisees’) purchases of goods, products and services as described in this Item 8, as well
as in connection with any future purchases of any goods, products and services. Most of these payments
are calculated as an amount based on products sold to you and our affiliate-owned restaurants. We will
retain and use such payments as we deem appropriate or as required by the vendor or by manufacturers.

In addition to the rebates, discounts and allowances described above in this Item 8, it is possible that we
may derive rebates or other income from your purchase of goods or services from other vendors, suppliers
and/or food processors. In addition, it is possible that the current discounts, rebates and/or allowances may
be terminated and/or amended from time to time.

We receive revenue from providing additional training or training to new on-site general managers, kitchen
managers, assistant kitchen managers, and dining room managers of our franchisees. We also receive
revenue from providing additional copies of ongoing training materials to our franchisees. Although the
initial set of training materials is provided to our franchisees at no cost, we charge our franchisees for
providing additional copies at our cost plus a mark up to cover our expenses associated with the same. In
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023, we did not receive any revenue from providing such training and
training materials.

We estimate that approximately 65% to 85% of your expenditures for leases and purchases in establishing
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your GMOTG Restaurant and approximately 80% on an ongoing basis will be for goods and services which
are subject to sourcing restrictions (that is, for which suppliers must be approved by us, or which must meet
our standards or specifications).

ITEM9
FRANCHISEE’S OBLIGATIONS

This table lists your principal obligations under the franchise and other agreements. It will help you
find more detailed information about your obligations in these agreements and in other items of this
Disclosure Document.

Obligation

Section in Franchise
Agreement (FA) and Ingage
1.T’s Infinity Services
Agreement (“ISA”)

Disclosure
Document ltem

Site selection and
acquisition/lease

FA: Paragraphs 1 and 22

Items 11 and 12

Pre-opening
purchase/leases

FA: Paragraphs 1, 10, 31, 32, 33,34
and 35

Item 8

Site development and
other pre-opening
requirements

FA: Paragraphs 1, 29, 30, 33, and 34
ISA: Sections Il and 111

Items 6, 7, 11 and 12

Initial and ongoing

FA: Paragraphs 6 and 7

Items 6, 7 and 11

training ISA: Section VI
Opening FA: Paragraph 1, 8 and 34 Item 11
FA: Paragraphs 1, 2, 3,5, 7, 8, 17,
Fees 28, 37, and 38 Items 5, 6 and 11

ISA: Addendum A

Compliance with
standards and
policies/operating
manual

FA: Paragraphs 7, 10, 32, 33 and 34

Item 11

Trademarks and
proprietary information

FA: Paragraphs 12, 13 and 16

Items 13 and 14

Restriction on
products/services offered

FA: Paragraphs 1, 10 and 32

Items 8 and 16

Warranty and customer
service requirements

FA: Paragraph 10

Item 11

Territorial development
and sales quotas

None

Not applicable.

Ongoing product/service
purchases

FA: Paragraph 10
ISA: Sections Il and 111

Items 8 and 16
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Obligation

Section in Franchise
Agreement (FA) and Ingage
1.T’s Infinity Services
Agreement (“ISA”)

Disclosure
Document Item

Maintenance,
m. | appearance, and
remodeling requirements

FA: Paragraphs 1, 5, 10, 23, 32 and
33

Items 6 and 11

n. | Insurance

FA: Paragraph 21

Items 6 and 7

0. | Advertising

FA: Paragraph 7, 8, 12 and 29

Items 6, 7 and 11

p. | Indemnification

FA: Paragraph 21
ISA: Section 13.4

Item 6

Owner’s participation/
management/staffing

FA: Paragraph 6

Items 6, 7, 11 and 15

r. | Records and reports

FA: Paragraphs 9 and 30

Item 6

s. | Inspections and audits

FA: Paragraphs 1, 9 and 10

Items 6 and 11

FA: Paragraphs 1, 17, 18 and 19

ISA: Section 15.6

t. | Transfer ) Item 17
ISA: Section 15.8
u. | Renewal FA: Paragraphs 1 and 5 Item 17
V. Pos_t-termlnatlon FA: Paragraph 13 and 16 Item 17
obligations
Non-competition .
w. FA: Paragraph 16 Item 17
covenants
. . FA: Paragraph 24
X. | Dispute resolution Item 17

y. | Other

Not applicable.

Not applicable.

ITEM 10
FINANCING

We do not offer direct or indirect financing to our franchisees. We do not guaranty your note, lease, or
obligation. If you are a corporation, limited liability company, limited partnership or other entity, we may
require your shareholders, members, limited partners or other owners to guarantee all of your obligations

to us.

ITEM 11

FRANCHISOR’S ASSISTANCE, ADVERTISING, COMPUTER SYSTEMS, AND TRAINING

Except as listed below, we are not required to provide you with any assistance.
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Pre-Opening Obligations

Before you open your GMOTG Restaurant, we will perform the following obligations:

@ The Franchise Agreement grants you the right to operate a single GMOTG Restaurant at a
specific site to be identified in the Franchise Agreement. The selection of this site is your responsibility.
However, all sites must be approved by us. Generally, you will select your site and such site will be
approved by us before you sign your Franchise Agreement. Our approval of a proposed GMOTG
Restaurant site will be based on a variety of factors, including the visibility and size of the strip shopping
center and the location of the proposed space within the center (or layout of the parcel, if a free-standing
site), the proximity of the site to population centers, the traffic counts, and the history of operations of other
GMOTG Restaurant in the area. Although not obligated to do so by the Franchise Agreement, we may
provide you with suggestions for sites in the area of your interest. You are exclusively responsible for your
own decision in selecting the location of your GMOTG Restaurant, even if we at any time provide advice
or assistance to you regarding the selection and even though we must approve the location. We do not
generally own your GMOTG Restaurant or the site for your restaurant and lease it to you. Also, we do not
generally assist you in negotiating the purchase or lease of the site for your GMOTG Restaurant. However,
the lease for your restaurant must in all respects be satisfactory in form and substance to us and we have
the right, but not the obligation, to approve your lease before it is signed by you. When you propose a
GMOTG Restaurant site, one of our representatives may, but is not required to, inspect the site and advise
you on the basis of our experience as to traffic patterns, competitive climate and other general matters. We
encourage you and have the right to require that you obtain, at your expense, an economic feasibility study
for your proposed site from a mutually agreed-upon expert. (See Paragraph 1 of the Franchise Agreement.)

2 We will designate your designated territory before you sign your Franchise Agreement.
(Franchise Agreement — Paragraph 22)

3 The architect and construction company you will use in the design and construction of
your GMOTG Restaurant must be approved by us. (Franchise Agreement — Paragraphs 32, 33 and 34)

(@) We will provide you with a copy of our approved standard plans and specifications
consisting of conceptual drawings, including floor plans and general details for the development of working
drawings for your GMOTG Restaurant. (Franchise Agreement — Paragraph 32)

(5) We will review and approve the detailed plans and specifications for your GREEN MILL
ON THE Go restaurant which will be prepared at your expense by an architect of your choice. However,
we are not required to assist you in conforming the site for your GMOTG Restaurant to local ordinances
and building codes or in obtaining any required permits. In addition, we do not provide you with assistance
in constructing, remodeling or decorating the site for your GMOTG Restaurant. (Franchise Agreement -
Paragraph 32)

(6) We will provide you with a written schedule of all signs, furniture, fixtures, supplies and
equipment required for the operation of your GMOTG Restaurant. We will also provide you with the
names of the approved vendors and suppliers of such furniture, fixtures, supplies and equipment.
(Franchise Agreement — Paragraphs 7, 10 and 31)

@) Before opening, we must inspect your GMOTG Restaurant, complete our pre-opening
inspection checklist and determine that your GMOTG Restaurant is in suitable condition to open. You
must open your restaurant within 15 days of such determination. (Franchise Agreement - Paragraph 34)
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(8) We will train you or your initial on-site general manager in the operation of a GMOTG
Restaurant. (Franchise Agreement - Paragraph 6)

9 We will train your initial kitchen manager and general manager in our management
training program at no charge to you. (Franchise Agreement - Paragraph 6)

(10)  As part of the Training Program (described below), we will help you arrange for an
Opening Team, at your expense, to assist with training your employees on-site at the franchised restaurant
for the one week period before the opening of your restaurant and one week period after. (Franchise
Agreement — Paragraph 6)

(11) We have the right require your on-site general manager and kitchen manager to
successfully complete our management training program. (Franchise Agreement - Paragraph 6)

(12)  We will provide you with:

@) Assistance in opening your GMOTG Restaurant and training your initial
employees, as further described below; and

(b) Any confidential operating manuals containing specifications, standards,
operating procedures, rules, recipes, and other matters, as well as updates to such manuals as further
describe below and are available on the Green Mill Academy (the “Academy”). (Franchise
Agreement - Paragraph 7)

(13)  We will provide you with the names of the vendors or suppliers of spice blends, dough
blends, cheese, tomato sauce and sauce blends, paper products, and other required products and services.
(Franchise Agreement - Paragraph 10)

(14) At least 30 days prior to the opening of your GMOTG Restaurant, you must pay us the
$5,000 - $15,000 Grand Opening Allowance. We will use the Grand Opening Allowance to conduct an
advertising, public relations and promotional program on your behalf in connection with the grand opening
of your restaurant. (Franchise Agreement — Paragraph 8)

(15)  Although not obligated to by the Franchise Agreement, we may provide the following
supervision, assistance and/or services to you prior to the opening of your GMOTG Restaurant:

@) We may also provide other advisory services to you before the grand opening of
your GMOTG Restaurant if the need arises.

(b) We have the right, but not the obligation, under paragraph 1 of the Franchise
Agreement, to approve the lease for the premises to be occupied by your GMOTG Restaurant.

(c) We may suggest potential sites for your GMOTG Restaurant.

Obligations After Opening

Our obligations to be met during the operation of your GMOTG Restaurant are as follows:
We will:

@) advise you regarding proper maintenance and marketing methods relating to your GMOTG
Restaurant;
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(b) provide you with artwork or representative copies of advertising materials and any changes
to them (at a reasonable charge); and

(c) provide you with updates to any confidential operating manual which can be found in the
Academy. (Franchise Agreement - paragraph 7).

Advertising

As of the date of this Disclosure Document you are required to spend a combined total of 2% of Gross
Sales for the Advertising Fee paid to us and for the required local advertising expenditures. You will
contribute 1 1/2% to the Advertising Fund and spend at least 1/2% on approved local advertising. We have
the right to increase the total combined amount up to a maximum of 3 1/2% of Gross Sales and allocate the
additional amount between the Advertising Fund and local expenditures as we deem appropriate. Gross
Sales is only for the Green Mill On The Go menu items.

We reserve the right to require you to provide substantiation of your Local Advertising Expenditures. If
you fail to spend at least the required amount for approved Local Advertising Expenditure, then you must
deposit with us the difference between what you should have spent and what you actually spent during such
month for local media advertising, marketing or promotion, and we will spend such deposit in such manner
as we deem to be in the best interests of your GMOTG Restaurant.

All Advertising Fees will be placed in an Advertising Fund that Franchisor owns and manages. The
Advertising Fund is not a trust or escrow account, and Franchisor has no fiduciary obligation to franchisees
with respect to the Advertising Fund; provided, however, Franchisor will make a good faith effort to expend
such fees in a manner that it determines is in the general best interests of the System. Franchisor has the
right to determine the expenditures of the amounts collected and the methods of marketing, advertising,
media employed and contents, terms and conditions of marketing campaigns and promotional programs.
Because of the methods used, Franchisor is not required to spend a prorated amount on each Restaurant or
in each advertising market. Franchisor has the right to make disbursements from the Advertising Fund for
expenses incurred in connection with the cost of formulating, developing and implementing marketing,
advertising and promotional campaigns. The disbursements may include payments to us for the expense of
administering the Advertising Fund, including accounting expenses and salaries and benefits paid to
employees engaged in the advertising functions. If requested, Franchisor will provide Franchisee an annual
unaudited statement of the financial condition of the Advertising Fund.

Generally, we accumulate Advertising Fees paid by our franchisees during any period in a separate
advertising fund account and utilize these fees to pay the advertising, marketing and promotional expenses
which it incurs during that period. If all of the Advertising Fees paid into the advertising fund during any
year are not used in that year, such fees will be accumulated and held in such non-interest-bearing account
until they are used. We are not required to currently spend all Advertising Fees which we receive. Rather,
we may set aside such reserve or reserves for such advertising, marketing and/or promotional programs as
we determine. We are not required to give our franchisees a periodic accounting of how the Advertising
Fees are spent.

The expenditure of the Advertising Fees are intended to maximize general public recognition and patronage
of GMOTG Restaurant in the manner we determine to be most effective. We have no obligation to develop,
implement or administer an advertising program or programs which ensures that expenditures which are
proportionate or equivalent to your contributions are made for your market area, or that your GMOTG
Restaurant will benefit directly or pro rata from such advertising program(s). Also, we do not have any
obligation to spend any amount on advertising in the area or territory where your GMOTG Restaurant is
located. (Franchise Agreement - Paragraph 8)
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The monies in the Advertising Fund are currently being used by us for local and regional advertising in our
market areas. These funds are used principally for point-of-sale, direct mail, social media, and print
advertising. The copy for these advertisements are generated both internally by us and by outside regional
advertising agencies. In general, franchisees located outside of the areas for which advertising cooperatives
have been formed will benefit from the creative and production aspects of this advertising. Actual media
placement costs are borne by the franchisees, except where a cooperative exists. From time to time, we
may, but are not obligated to, use monies in the Advertising Fund to assist our franchisees by paying a
portion of the media placement cost. Such discretionary spending will be allocated based on the percentage
of Advertising Fees collected from each franchisee. No part of the Advertising Fees are used by us for
solicitation for the sale of franchises.

All advertising, marketing and promotion conducted by you must be completely factual and conform to the
highest standards of ethical advertising and to policies prescribed by us. This includes all advertising and
promotion done on social media platforms. You must submit copies of all advertisements and promotional
materials to us for our approval before their use or publication. You may use any advertising and
promotional materials submitted to us unless we notify you of our disapproval within ten days of its receipt
of such materials. You may not use any advertisements or promotional materials unless they have been
approved by us. Any coupon published or distributed by you must bear a code number provided by us or
our advertising agency.

You may not operate or maintain a home page or other presence on the Internet or similar medium without
our approval. If we approve a home page or other such presence, including a home page or presence which
includes any of our service marks, we may require you to include a hypertext or other direct link to a home
page or other presence on the Internet maintained by us. In addition, your online presence related to your
GMOTG Restaurant, including with respect to all current and future forms of social media networks and
platforms, must at all times comply with our written specifications, restrictions and policies, as modified
from time to time.

We reserve the right to organize one or more local or regional advertising cooperatives for the purpose of
developing and implementing advertising and promotional programs for the GMOTG Restaurant owned
by us and our franchisees. We have the right to determine the composition of all geographic territories and
market areas for any such cooperatives. If we form cooperatives, we can require you to join and participate
in such cooperative(s) which encompass the designated territory for your GMOTG Restaurant. We can
require these cooperatives to change, dissolve and merge. If we or our affiliates own any GMOTG
Restaurant in an area covered by a cooperative, we will contribute on the same basis as other cooperative
members.

At least 30 days prior to the grand opening of your GMOTG Restaurant, you must pay a Grand Opening
Allowance to us in the amount of $5,000 to $15,000. We will use the Grand Opening Allowance for the
purpose of conducting an advertising, public relations and promotional program in connection with the
grand opening of your restaurant. We will spend this Grand Opening Allowance in such manner as we
deem to be in the best interest of your GMOTG Restaurant. Within 30 days after the opening of your
GMOTG Restaurant, we will provide you with an accounting of the use of the allowance and will refund
any portion of the allowance which has not been spent. Pending the expenditure or return of the Grand
Opening Allowance, it will be held in a separate non-interest bearing account. (See Paragraph 8 of
Franchise Agreement).

You must participate in all gift certificate and gift card programs sponsored at any time by us. In addition,
you are required to participate at your expense in all programs sponsored at any time by us to promote and
reward the frequent and regular customers of GMOTG Restaurant.

Under the current gift card program sponsored by us, you must purchase magnetically-encoded gift cards
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from Ingage I.T. or our then-approved supplier (optional).

You must furnish a marketing plan to us for the first six (6) months of operation of your GMOTG
Restaurant in the form required by us prior to the completion of the training of your on-site general
manager. In addition, you must submit an annual marketing plan to us on or before November 30 for the
ensuing calendar year. Such annual marketing plan must be in such form as we may periodically require.

We also have a franchise advisory council (the “FAC”), which currently is comprised of 8 representatives
(4 corporate, 4 franchisees). Each franchisee representative is selected based on majority vote of
restaurants, and all representatives serve terms ranging from 1-2 years. The FAC operates in an advisory
capacity with respect to matters related to the Green Mill franchise system. While the FAC may offer
recommendations, insight or advice on any given issue, we are not bound by such recommendations, insight
or advice.

Information Systems

You must record all sales on information systems that we have approved and report your Gross Sales daily
via our intranet. You may enroll in the Ingage Infinity Service Program. Under this program Ingage I.T.
will be your exclusive technology provider for POS, Merchant Services, Gift Processing, MSP, Online
Ordering, Wi-Fi, KDS, Loyalty and all other connected services related to or in conjunction with those
services (“Infinity Service”). Under Infinity Service, Ingage I.T. agrees to supply the required hardware
and software to operate the Infinity Service Program. At no cost to you, and concurrent with the
commencement of your Term, Ingage I.T. will provide training necessary for selected personnel to operate
the Infinity Service during the Term as well as standard Remote & On-Site Support. The current form of
Ingage I.T. Agreement is included as part of Exhibit G. Initial cost of equipment for an average-sized
GMOTG Restaurant totals approximately $38,400 to $43,400 and is covered by the Technology Fee
determined by us (not to exceed 3.99%) assessed on all credit card sales. It includes maintenance,
hardware, updating, and upgrading for all services other than KDS QSR Automations Monthly
Subscription Fee. Fees charged by Ingage I.T. include a one-time Onboarding Fee, which for an average
sized GMOTG Restaurant will total between $2,500 to $5,000, a Travel Fee of $2,100 and an ongoing
monthly KDS QSR Subscription Fee of $299.99 as of the date of this Disclosure Document.

You must also purchase, at your expense, such other computer or information processing equipment as
may be required by us for use in your GMOTG Restaurant. We require the 4-4-5 Period Accounting method
in conjunction with Restaurant 365 or other approved accounting and inventory management software.
There are no contractual limitations in the Franchise Agreement on the frequency and cost of the upgrading
or updating of the computer hardware or software which we may require you to make.

We may access the information system and retrieve, analyze, download and use all software, data and files
stored or used on the information system. We may access the information system through our intranet, in
your GMOTG Restaurant, or from other locations. You must store all data and information that we
designate and report data and information in the manner we specify, including through our intranet or other
online communications. You also must maintain a phone line and a separate modem dedicated for the sole
use of allowing our information system to interface and communicate with your information system and
you many need to purchase software designated by us for this to occur. You also must have your restaurant
connected to the internet using a connection method we approve, currently DSL or Cable modem. You
must have a permanent internet email account. You understand that the data storage, phone line, modem,
communication software, internet access, internet email account and all additional hardware and software
needed to implement and maintain these services is at your cost.

You must grant our agents and us access to all the records and information on your computerized point of
sale system by direct access, by Internet dial in access, by providing disk copies, or by such other means
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as we may require. Although there are not any contractual limitations on our right to access any information
on your computerized point of sale system, we are currently using that access largely to track sales of
individual menu items, coupon redemption, and other information. (See Paragraph 31 of Franchise
Agreement.)

You must obtain and maintain such security system equipment and services as we may require for the
protection of your GMOTG Restaurant and your employees and customers. (See Paragraph 31 of Franchise
Agreement.)

Time of Opening

We estimate that it will take between two (3) and three (3) months from the signing of your Franchise
Agreement to the opening of your GMOTG Restaurant. Factors affecting this length of time usually include
the time necessary to (1) obtain suitable financing; (2) obtain necessary licenses and permits (including
building permits and your liquor license); (3) obtain delivery and installation of required signs, fixtures and
equipment; (4) construct necessary leasehold improvements and (5) recruit and train managers and other
personnel.

Training
Green Mill On The Go Franchise Training Program
Subject Hours of o Hours of _Or_]-the-job Location
Classroom Training Training

Green Mill Objectives 2 Hours Mpls./St. Paul, Minnesota
area

Front of House Operations 5-10 Hours 80-120 Hours Mpls./St. P::Jelé Minnesota

Back of House Operations 5-10 Hours 20-60 Hours Mpls /St. P:ruelé Minnesota

Accounting 4-8 Hours Mpls./St. Paul, Minnesota
area

Marketing 2-4 Hours Mpls./St. Paul, Minnesota
area

TOTAL HOURS Upto 34 Up to 180

Our pre-opening management training consists of preliminary training at our offices in St. Paul, Minnesota,
and on-the-job training at an affiliated GMOTG Restaurant selected by us. We offer training periodically
as the need requires. Such training is conducted approximately one (1) to three (3) months prior to the
opening of your GMOTG Restaurant and it normally lasts two (2) to six (6) weeks depending on the
management position.

Under the Franchise Agreement, you, or your on-site general manager if you are not a natural person, as
well as your kitchen manager, must successfully complete such training prior to the opening of your
GMOTG Restaurant. The Franchise Agreement provides that you or your on-site general manager and such
other managers periodically required by us must also attend such additional regional sales, training, or
orientation seminars as we may reasonably request. You will be responsible for travel, lodging, meals, and
other expenses which you incur in attending or having your managers attend all such sales, training, and
orientation programs. Neither you nor your managers will be paid by or receive any other compensation
from us for attending such programs. Any training we provide to any of your employees will be limited to
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training or guidance regarding the delivery of approved products and services to customers in a manner
that reflects the customer service standards of the System. You are, and will remain, the sole employer of
your employees at all times, including during all training programs, and you are solely responsible for all
employment decisions and actions related to your employees. You are solely responsible for ensuring that
your employees receive adequate training.

Although there is no tuition or other costs payable to us for training you or your initial on-site general
manager and kitchen manager, you must (1) reimburse us (or our affiliate, as applicable) for Opening Team
Expenses described in Items 5 and below in this Item 11, and (2) pay our then-prescribed rates for the
training of additional managers (should you wish to train more managers than required). The total fee
payable to us for the training of a manager or assistant manager depends upon a variety of factors, including
the prior experience of the person being trained. Currently, we are charging a flat fee of $1,000 for training
each additional on-site general manager and $750 for training each additional kitchen manager or other
manager. These charges are subject to periodic change by us. (See Paragraph 6 of the Franchise
Agreement.)

The GMOTG Restaurant training program is currently administered by Paul Dzubnar, Tim Kreiser and
Ashley MacDonald. Paul Dzubnar has approximately 19 years of experience in the restaurant industry.
Tim Kreiser has served as our Chief Operating Officer since our inception and has over 15 years of
experience in the restaurant industry. Ashley MacDonald has over 13 years experience in the restaurant
industry and has served as our Director of Training since inception. The training program generally covers
all major facets of the management and operation of a GMOTG Restaurant. Managers are first given a
presentation on our objectives through our on-line training program — Green Mill Academy. Managers are
then given detailed, in-the-field personal instruction in food preparation, inventory and handling, restaurant
sanitation, equipment maintenance and inventory, personnel training, hygiene, record-keeping, purchasing,
and other restaurant functions. Managers are also required to complete approximately two to four weeks
of on-the-job training at an affiliated GMOTG Restaurant in the Minneapolis-St. Paul, Minnesota area.

The instructional materials for our training programs consists of our policies and procedures manual, our
online manuals, including our human resources manual and our new store opening manual all found in the
Academy.

You must employ your Kitchen manager two to eight weeks prior to opening your GMOTG Restaurant.
We will assist you with the training of such managers and assistant managers. You are responsible for the
travel, lodging, meals and other expenses incurred in connection with such training. You may not open
your restaurant until all such managers have successfully completed any training programs offered by us
for such managers.

Under our current training programs, the duration of the required training for your managers and assistant
managers is as follows:

Position Duration

On Site General Manager 2-3 weeks for General
Manager

Kitchen Manager 2-3 weeks for General
Manager

The failure of your managers to successfully complete the training programs offered by us will delay the
opening of your Restaurant.
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In addition to the training provided by us, you are required to hire four to six additional trainers who are
employed by us or other Green Mill On The Go franchisees and who have been certified by us to assist in
the training of your management and other employees (the “Opening Team”) during the one-week period
before and one week period after the opening of your GMOTG Restaurant Restaurant. In addition to
reimbursing the employer of the Opening Team in an amount equal to the fully burdened labor rate of such
trainers, you are required to reimburse the Opening Team members for their actual employment related
travel, lodging and meal expenses incurred in connection with the training of your employee (the “Opening
Team Expenses™).

We require you to have on duty at all times while your GMOTG Restaurant is open for business, at least
one employee who has been Serv-Safe® certified as to the food safety aspects of handling food.

Although not required by the Franchise Agreement, we will also assist you in providing on-the-job training
of your employees on your GMOTG Restaurant premises at the time of the GMOTG Restaurant opening.
We will provide one person who will assist you in training your GMOTG Restaurant personnel in the
preparation of the restaurant for opening and one person who will assist in methods of preparation and
serving menu items. Such management training assistance may take from five (5) to fifteen (15) days. Such
training requires approximately 40 hours of each employee’s time. Although not required to do so by the
Franchise Agreement, our management personnel may also assist you in training additional personnel, or
in providing refresher courses to existing personnel at the time of periodic visits. Such refresher courses
will not be mandatory and will be at no cost to you other than costs associated with the attending employees.

You must comply with the applicable provisions of the wage and hour laws applicable to your employees
while they are being trained by us, including those provisions requiring the payment of overtime wages.

Manuals

In lieu of an operations manual, the operational standards and procedures are provided to you in the
Academy. You will be provided with access to the Academy upon full execution of the Franchise
Agreement. A screen capture of the table of contents for the Academy is provided in Exhibit H.

ITEM 12
TERRITORY

You will not receive an exclusive territory. You may face competition from other franchisees, from
restaurants that we or our affiliates own, or from other channels of distribution such as retail sales of product
or competitive brands that we control. You do, however, receive a protected area which is usually
delineated by boundary streets or highways, as described further below (the “Designated Territory”).
Before your execution of your Franchise Agreement, a map of the Designated Territory will be attached as
an exhibit to your Franchise Agreement. While the Franchise Agreement remains in effect, we will not
establish either a company-owned or franchised GMOTG Restaurant franchise within your Designated
Territory or modify your Designated Territory without your written permission, although the consumer
service area, trade area or designated territory of another GMOTG Restaurant franchise may overlap with
your Designated Territory.

The criteria used for determining the boundaries of the Designated Territory may include any or all of the
following: the population base; density of population; growth trends of population; apparent degree of
affluence of population; the density of residential and business entities; restaurant co-tenants, traffic
generators, and driving times; proximity to lodging facilities; and major topographical features which
clearly define contiguous areas, like rivers, mountains, major freeways, and underdeveloped land areas.
As a result of these considerations, a Designated Territory will have a general trade area with a population
base of, or anticipated population growth to, approximately 15,000 to 40,000.
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You may only operate your GMOTG Restaurant from the specific location within your Designated
Territory approved by us and specified in your Franchise Agreement. You may not relocate your GMOTG
Restaurant either within or outside of your Designated Territory or establish more than one GMOTG
Restaurant either within and/or outside of your territory without our prior consent.

We and our affiliates have the right to operate and the right to franchise others to operate GMOTG
Restaurant, as well as restaurants under different marks, which sell competing products and/or services
anywhere outside of your Designated Territory, all without compensation to you or any franchisee. We
also expressly reserve the right to operate and franchise others to operate other restaurant concepts under
different marks in your Designated Territory even if they sell similar and competing menu items.

Special Sites are excluded from the Designated Territory and we and our affiliates have the right to develop,
license or franchise the following Special Site locations: (1) military bases, (2) public transportation
facilities, including airports and other transportation terminals, (3) sports facilities, including race tracks,
(4) student unions or other similar buildings on college or university campuses, (5) amusement and theme
parks, and (6) community and special events.

Our affiliate HF has the sole and exclusive right to offer for sale and sell food products bearing one or more
of the GREEN MILL® trademarks or service marks at grocery stores, supermarkets, and other similar
locations both within and outside of your Designated Territory. All rights to offer for sale and sell products
and services associated with the GREEN MILL® trademarks and franchise system on the Internet, via
online stores and catalogs and through other electronic means, including to customers located within your
Designated Territory, are exclusively reserved to us.

We are not required to pay you if we or our affiliate exercises any of the rights specified above inside your
Designated Territory.

The Franchise Agreement provides that without our prior written consent, you may not sell pizzas or related
food products for delivery to locations outside of your Designated Territory. Similarly, our other
franchisees and we are prohibited from selling pizzas and related food products for delivery to locations
inside of your Designated Territory.

You are not prohibited or otherwise restricted under the Franchise Agreement from advertising your
GMOTG Restaurant outside of your Designated Territory. Similarly, our other franchisees and we are not
prohibited or otherwise restricted from advertising their GMOTG Restaurant within your Designated
Territory.

The continuation of your Designated Territory under the Franchise Agreement is not dependent upon
achievement of any certain sales volume or market participation. However, should you breach any of the
material terms of the Franchise Agreement, the agreement may be terminated or other sanctions may be
imposed against you.

Except for the restaurants operated by certain of our officers, the Green Mill full service restaurants, and
Crooked Pint Ale House concept and its related marks (Sweet Pea’s and Harriet’s), neither we nor our
affiliates currently operate or franchise the operation of any restaurant or business similar to or competitive
with GMOTG Restaurant under a different trade name or trademark, but we reserve the right to do so both
within the Designated Territory or otherwise.
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ITEM 13
TRADEMARKS

We have entered into an Amended and Restated Service Mark License Agreement (the “License
Agreement”) with our affiliate HF, dated June 20, 2017. We have been granted the exclusive right in the
License Agreement to grant franchises to use the Green Mill trade name and service marks in connection
with the operation of GMOTG Restaurants in the States of Minnesota, Nebraska, North Dakota, South
Dakota, Wisconsin, Kansas, lowa and Illinois. Under the Franchise Agreement, you will be granted the
right to use the GREEN MILL® trade name and service mark and any other proprietary marks, trade
names, logos, and the like (“Proprietary Marks”). You shall not represent in any manner that you have
acquired any ownership rights in the Proprietary Marks, and you shall not use any of the Proprietary
Marks or any marks, names, or indicia which are, or may be confusingly similar, in your own entity or
business hame. You must obtain a fictitious or assumed name registration if required by your state or local
law. All goodwill associated with the franchise system and identified by the Proprietary Marks shall inure
directly and exclusively to our benefit.

In addition to our common-law rights to the Proprietary Marks, the below Marks are registered with the
U.S. Patent and Trademark Office (“USPTO”) as follows:

Mark Serial/Registration No. Registration Date
Registration No. May 19, 1987
GREEN MILL 1:440.264
Registration No. July 19, 2011
GREEN MILL 3,097,508
Registration No. January 3, 2023
6,944,265
Registration No. May 15, 2001
2,451,087
HEETAURNT AND BAR I
Serial No. Pending
GREEN MILL ON THE GO 90845947 Regitato?

Filed July 23, 2021

There are no presently effective determinations of the United States Patent and Trademark Office,
Trademark Trial and Appeal Board or the trademark administrator in any state or court, no pending
interference, opposition or cancellation proceeding, no pending material litigation involving the
trademarks which have limited or restricted the use of our trademarks, trade names, service marks or
commercial symbols in any state. Similarly, except for the License Agreement, there are no agreements
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currently in effect which significantly limit our rights to use or license the service marks in any manner
material to the franchise.

Under the Franchise Agreement, you must give us prompt written notice of any infringement of or claims
or complaints made against you with respect to the Green Mill service marks and related design and to
cooperate with us and HF in any court or other proceedings involving such service marks or designs.

We are not obligated by the Franchise Agreement to protect your right to use the Green Mill service
marks and related design and/or to defend or indemnify you against, or to reimburse you for, any damages
for which you may be held liable in any proceeding arising out of your use of the service marks or for
any costs you incurred in defense of any such claim. We and HF have the right to control and conduct
any litigation or other proceedings relating to the Green Mill trade name and service marks.

In the event a third party claims that its rights to the Green Mill name or service marks are superior to
ours, and if we determine that such claim is meritorious, then the Franchise Agreement gives us the right
to require you, at your expense, to immediately cease using the Green Mill trade name, service marks
and related design or to use such substitutions, alternatives or modifications as we may require. The
Franchise Agreement does not require us to compensate you in any manner for any costs or expenses
which you may incur in complying with this obligation.

We have the right to terminate the Franchise Agreement if you commit any act or omission which
damages the goodwill associated with such service marks. There are no infringing uses of or superior
prior rights to the service marks actually known to us or HF which could materially affect your use of the
service marks or other related rights in any state.

ITEM 14
PATENTS, COPYRIGHTS, AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION

We do not own any rights in or to any patents, patent applications, or copyrights which are material to the
franchise. However, we and/or HF own certain proprietary rights in the operating manuals, including the
specifications, standards, process, procedures, methods, systems, recipes, and other items described in the
operating manuals found in the Academy, to be provided to you by us upon execution of the Franchise
Agreement. You must agree and acknowledge in the Franchise Agreement that all such information is
confidential and proprietary information of ours and/or HF, and you must agree not to disclose any of such
information to any person, except for such disclosure to your employees as may be necessary in the course
of their employment. Pursuant to the Franchise Agreement, you must require your on-site managers, as a
condition to their employment, to sign a non-disclosure and non-competition agreement with us in such
form as we may reasonably require.

There are no currently effective determinations of the Copyright Office (Library of Congress), United
States Patent and Trademark Office, Board of Patent Appeals and Interferences, or any court, or any
pending infringement, opposition or cancellation proceeding or any pending material litigation involving
any patents or copyrights. There are currently no agreements in effect that significantly limit our rights to
use or license the use of any patents or copyrights in any manner material to the franchise. There are no
infringing uses actually known to us that could materially affect your use of the patents or copyrights.

We are not obligated to protect you against infringement or unfair competition claims arising out of your
use of any patents or copyrights, or to participate in your defense or indemnify you. We reserve the right
to control any litigation related to any patents and copyrights and we have the sole right to decide to pursue
or settle any infringement actions related to the patents or copyrights. You must notify us promptly of any
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infringement or unauthorized use of the patents or copyrights of which you become aware.

You must keep confidential during and after the term of the Franchise Agreement all proprietary
information, including the manuals. Upon termination of your Franchise Agreement, you must return to us
all proprietary information, including but not limited to the manuals and all other copyright material. You
must notify us immediately if you learn about an unauthorized use of proprietary information. We are not
obligated to take any action and we have the sole right to decide the appropriate response to any
unauthorized use of proprietary information. You must comply with all changes to the manuals in the
Academy at your cost.

ITEM 15
OBLIGATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THE ACTUAL
OPERATION OF THE FRANCHISE BUSINESS

Under the Franchise Agreement, you must personally serve as the on-site general manager of your GMOTG
Restaurant or, if an entity buys the GMOTG Restaurant franchise, an owner of the entity must serve as the
on-site general manager of your GMOTG Restaurant unless this requirement is waived by us in our sole
business judgment. Although your on-site general manager must be one of your owners if you are an entity,
there is no minimum amount of equity interest that such on-site general manager must have. The person
who serves as the on-site general manager for your GMOTG Restaurant, and any successor on-site general
managers, must attend and successfully complete our training program. All on-site general managers must
be approved by us.

Except as noted above with respect to the on-site general manager, restaurant managers do not need to have
an ownership interest in franchisees which use corporations, partnerships or other entities to own and
operate their GMOTG Restaurant. Pursuant to the Franchise Agreement, you must require your on-site
general managers, as a condition to their employment, to sign a non-disclosure and non-competition
agreement with us in such form as we may reasonably require. All owners of the franchise (including all
owners of the franchisee entity, if applicable) must execute the form of personal guarantee attached to the
Franchise Agreement.

ITEM 16
RESTRICTIONS ON WHAT THE FRANCHISEE MAY SELL

The Franchise Agreement prohibits you from selling any food or beverage products other than those on our
standard menu without first obtaining our written approval, which approval may be withheld in our business
judgment. We require a minimum three week notice to approve or deny any proposed new product. We
reserve the right in the Franchise Agreement to periodically add or delete food from our standard menu and
in all instances, you must offer our full standard menu of food products, unless an exception is granted in
writing by us. There are not any limits on our right to make changes in the food and/or beverage products
contained in our standard menu. Your menu may also be limited by the terms of your lease for your
franchised location. You are not limited as to the customers you may serve at your GMOTG Restaurant.
However, you may not sell Green Mill On The Go menu items for home delivery outside of your
Designated Territory.

You may not permit any video or electronic games, dart games, pool or billiard tables or other tavern-type
games to be used or located on the premises of your GMOTG Restaurant without our prior written approval.
In addition, you may not offer for sale at or near your GMOTG Restaurant any pull tabs, card games, lottery
tickets or other tickets, pools, chances or raffles without our prior written approval. You may not permit
any other forms of entertainment such as, but not limited to, live music, Karaoke or disc jockeys without
our prior written consent.
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ITEM 17
RENEWAL, TERMINATION, TRANSFER, AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION

This table lists certain important provisions of the franchise and related agreements. You
should read these provisions in the agreements attached to this Disclosure Document.

THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP

Section in
. Franchise or
Provision Summary
other
Agreement
a Length_ of the Paragraph 4 The |n!t|al term is for 20 years from the date of your
Franchise term Franchise Agreement.
Renewal or You may renew the license granted under your Franchise
b. | Extension of the | Paragraph 5 Agreement for one additional 10 year term, provided you
Term meet certain terms and conditions.

You must (1) give us notice of your intent to renew your
Franchise Agreement at least 6 months and not more than
12 months prior to the end of the initial term; (2) not be in
default or violation of the Franchise Agreement or with
any agreement with a creditor of or supplier to your
restaurant and have substantially complied with the
Franchise Agreement terms throughout the initial term; (3)
have timely met your monetary obligations to us
throughout the initial term; (4) be able to maintain
possession of your restaurant site or secure and develop a
suitable alternative site approved by us; (5) sign our then
current Franchise Agreement which may then contain
materially different terms and conditions than your
original Franchise Agreement; (6) sign a release of claims.
At our determination, you may be required to refurbish
your restaurant within 12 months.

If you seek to renew your franchise at the expiration of the
initial term or any renewal term, you may be asked to sign
a new Franchise Agreement that contains terms and
conditions materially different from those in your previous
Franchise Agreement, such as different fees and
termination rights.

You may terminate the Franchise Agreement if we violate
any material term of condition of the Franchise
Agreement, and fail to correct the alleged violation within
Paragraph 14 60 days of receiving your written notice of violation. Your
termination will be effective 10 days after you notify us of
your intention to terminate because of our failure to timely
cure the alleged violation.

Requirements for
c. | Franchisee to | Paragraph 5
Renew or Extend

Termination by
d. )
Franchisee

Termination by
e. | Franchisor None Not applicable.
Without Cause
Termination by
f. | Franchisor ~ With
Cause

Paragraphs 1 and | We may terminate the Franchise Agreement if you cause
15 or permit certain events to occur.
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THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP

Provision

Section in
Franchise or
other
Agreement

Summary

“Cause” Defined —
g Curable Defaults

Paragraph 15

Curable defaults include: (1) violation by you of any
provision of the Franchise Agreement or any
specification, standard, or operating procedure prescribed
by us; (2) your permitting or suffering the termination,
cancellation or expiration of the lease for your restaurant
site, or your failure to maintain possession of the site; (3)
you fail to obtain a liquor license within 6 months of
entering into the Franchise Agreement, or fail to maintain
the license; (4) you fail to maintain the insurance
coverages required under paragraph 21; (5) an audit by us
discloses an understatement of royalties and/or advertising
fees and you fail to pay these amounts plus interest after
being notified by us to do so; (6) you fail to pay any
amounts due to us or to any creditor or supplier of the
restaurant; (7) you fail to comply with any applicable state
or federal law, or pay any local, state or federal taxes when
due; (8) you or any of your affiliates default in payment or
performance of any of your or their respective obligations
to us under any agreement, or we terminate any such
agreement; or (10) you fail to spend the amounts for
approved local media advertising, marketing and
promotions at the time required by paragraph 8 of the
Franchise Agreement. We will give you written notice
and 30 days to cure any of these defaults.

“Cause” Defined —
h. | Non-Curable
Defaults

Paragraphs 1 and
15

Non-curable defaults include if (1) you fail to open and
commence operations of your GMOTG Restaurant within
nine months after signing the Franchise Agreement, unless
such failure resulted from causes outside of your control;
(2) you voluntarily abandon the franchise relationship or
your restaurant, or fail to continuously and actively
operate the restaurant; (3) there is a conviction or entry of
a plea of guilty or no contest by you or any of your
principals to a charge of violating any law relating to your
GMOTG Restaurant or to a felony charge (regardless of
the nature of the charges); (4) you voluntarily file, or have
involuntarily filed against you a bankruptcy petition or
any pleading seeking reorganization, liquidation, or other
settlement with your creditors and this is not dismissed
within 30 days, or you admit or fail to contest any such
pleading, or a receiver or other custodian is appointed for
all or a substantial part of your assets; (5) there is an
assignment of your assets for the benefit of your creditors,
or in a similar manner you dispose of all or substantially
all of your assets in the restaurant, or you admit an
inability to pay the obligations of your restaurant business
as they come due; (6) you commit any act which, in our
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THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP

Section in
Franchise or
other
Agreement

Provision Summary

reasonable judgment, impairs the good will associated
with the Green Mill names and/or logos or impairs or tends
to impair the reputation of you or any of your owners; (7)
you make a material misrepresentation in your franchise
application; (8) if your GMOTG Restaurant is located in
or immediately adjacent to a hotel or motel which is being
operated pursuant to a franchise or license agreement,
such franchise or license agreement expires or is
terminated; (9) your GMOTG Restaurant is ordered closed
by any state or local authorities for health or safety
reasons; (10) you use the Licensed Property (including
confidential information provided by us to you for the
purpose of operating the restaurant) in an unauthorized
manner; (11) you commit an unauthorized transfer or
assignment in violation of the Franchise Agreement; (12)
on three or more occasions in any consecutive 12-month
period, you fail to submit when due reports or financial
statements or fail to make any payments due to us or any
supplier of the restaurant whether or not such prior failures
are cured after notice; or (13) you intentionally
underreport the royalties and/or Advertising Fees payable
pursuant to the franchise agreement.

You must (1) immediately discontinue all use of the
GREEN MiLL trademarks, trade names and logos; (2)
remove from public display any signs, literature, products
or accessories bearing the Green Mill trademarks, trade
names and logos; (3) return within 10 days all bulletins,
Franchisee’s manuals, and other materials supplied to you by us; (4)
Obligations ~ On immediately cease operating the restaurant using all or any
i. | Termination/Non- | Paragraph 13 part of our licensed property; (5) immediately pay us all
Renewal amounts due and owing under the Franchise Agreement,
which includes all outstanding balance on gift cards and
Be Our Guest cards, unless we otherwise agree; and (6)
promptly alter, modify and change both the interior and
exterior appearance and trade dress of your restaurant so
that it will be easily distinguished from the standard
appearance and trade dress of a GMOTG Restaurant.

Assignment of
J- | Contract by | Paragraph 17 There are no restrictions on our right to assign.
Franchisor

“Transfer” By Includes transfers of the Franchise Agreement, or the
k. | Franchisee - | Paragraph 17 assets or properties associated with your GMOTG
Defined Restaurant and changes in your ownership.

. We have the right to approve all transfers, but may not
Franchisor -
I Paragraph 17 unreasonably withhold our approval. Transfers of shares
Approval of X L .
of capital stock, partnership interests or other equity
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Section in
.. Franchise or
Provision Summary
other
Agreement
Transfer by interests to persons who as of the date of the Franchise

Franchisee!

Agreement hold stock, partnership interests or other
equity interests in the franchisee, and which in aggregate
do not represent a majority of the voting power
represented by such interests, do not require our approval.

Conditions for
Franchisor
Approval of
Transfer

Paragraph 17

The transferee and you must comply with certain
conditions imposed by us, including: (1) you must pay all
of your monetary obligations to us and you must not
otherwise be in default under the Franchise Agreement;
(2) the transferee must have been approved by us and shall
have demonstrated to us that he/she/it meets our
managerial, financial, and business standards for new
franchisees, possesses a good business reputation and
credit rating, and has the aptitude and ability to operate the
restaurant; (3) transferee must sign our then-current form
of Franchise Agreement; (4) prior to the transfer the
transferee or its on-site general manager must successfully
complete any required training; (5) the transferee must pay
us a nonrefundable assignment fee equal to 20% of our
then-current initial franchise fee plus the cost of any
required training; and (6) you must sign a release of
claims.

Franchisor’s Right
of First Refusal to
Acquire
Franchisee’s
Business

Paragraph 18

You may not sell, assign or transfer in any way your rights
in (1) the Franchise Agreement; (2) the real estate or
leasehold interest for your GMOTG Restaurant ; (3) the
fixtures, equipment or other assets of the restaurant; (4) or
any stock, partnership interest or other equity interest in a
franchisee which is a corporation, partnership or other
entity, without first giving us the right of first refusal to
purchase such property or interest on comparable terms
and conditions offered to the proposed buyer. We will
have 30 days from receiving all the material terms of the
transaction in which to decide.

Franchisor’s
Option to Purchase
Franchisee’s
Business

Paragraph 18

See Item 17 (n) above.

Death or Disability
of Franchisee

Paragraph 19

Subject to compliance with the conditions set forth in Item
17(m) above, your Franchise Agreement may be
transferred or bequeathed by you to any immediate family
member upon your death or permanent disability. If you
were the on-site general manager for the restaurant or if
your heirs adopt new management, the new management
must complete our training program, and pay the required
fees.
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Provision

Section in
Franchise or
other
Agreement

Summary

Non-Competition
Covenants During
the Term of the
Franchise

Paragraph 16

Neither you nor any personal guarantors of your
obligations under the Franchise Agreement may directly
or indirectly own, operate, engage in, have any interest in,
or assist any person or entity engaged in any other
restaurant business which offers products or services that
are similar to or competitive with the pizza and related
food products contained on our then-current standard
menu. You must require your on-site general managers,
as a condition of their employment, to sign a non-
competition agreement in a form reasonably required by
us to protect our licensed property.

Non-Competition
Covenants  After
the Franchise is
Terminated or
Expires

Paragraph 16

Neither you nor any personal guarantors of your
obligations under the Franchise Agreement may, for a
period of 1 year after the expiration or termination of the
Franchise Agreement, directly or indirectly own, operate,
engage in, have any interest in, or assist any person or
entity engaged in any restaurant business which (1) offers
products or services that are similar to or competitive with
the pizza and related food products contained on our then-
current standard menu, and (2) is located within the same
metropolitan statistical area as was your GMOTG
Restaurant. Your on-site managers will be bound by the
agreements described in Item 17 (q) above.

Modification  of
the Agreement

Paragraphs 7, 10
and 27

The Franchise Agreement may only be modified by
written agreement signed by you and us. However, we
may unilaterally amend operating procedures and
practices, our artwork, promotional and advertising
materials, and other written materials.

Integration/Merger
Clause

Paragraph 27

Only the terms of the Franchise Agreement are binding
(subject to state law). Any representations or promises
made outside the Disclosure Document and Franchise
Agreement may not be enforceable.

Dispute

Resolution by
Arbitration or
Mediation

None.

Not applicable.

Choice of Forum

Paragraph 24

Disputes must be commenced and maintained in the
applicable state or federal court in Minnesota, subject to
applicable state law.

Choice of Law

Paragraph 24

The laws of the state in which your GMOTG Restaurant is
located apply, subject to applicable state law.

ITEM 18

PUBLIC FIGURES

We do not use any public figures to promote our franchise.
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ITEM 19
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REPRESENTATIONS

The FTC’s Franchise Rule permits a franchisor to provide information about the actual or potential financial
performance of its franchised and/or franchisor-owned outlets, if there is a reasonable basis for the
information, and if the information is included in the Disclosure Document. Financial performance
information that differs from that included in Item 19 may be given only if: (1) a franchisor provides the
actual records of an existing outlet you are considering buying; or (2) a franchisor supplements the
information provided in this Item 19, for example, by providing information about possible performance
at a particular location or under particular circumstances.

We do not make any representations about a franchisee’s future financial performance or the past financial
performance of company-owned or franchised outlets. We also do not authorize our employees or
representatives to make any such representations, either orally or in writing. If you are purchasing an
existing outlet, however, we may provide you with the actual records of that outlet. If you receive any other
financial performance information or projections of your future income, you should report it to the
franchisor’s management by contacting our CEO, Paul Dzubnar, at 1342 Grand Avenue, St. Paul,
Minnesota, 55105 (651) 203-3100, the Federal Trade Commission, and the appropriate state regulatory
agencies.

ITEM 20
OUTLETS AND FRANCHISEE INFORMATION
Table No.1
Systemwide Outlet Summary
For years 2021 to 2023!
Outlet Type Year OUt:fftir?; ;t(heea?tart Out(l):ttshit\t(ggrEnd Net Change

2021 0 1 +1
Franchised 2022 1 3 +2
2023 3 4 +1

2021 0 0

Company-Owned 2022 0 0

2023 0 0
2021 0 1 +1
Total Outlets 2022 1 3 +2
2023 3 4 +1

1 As of December 31, 2021, 2022, and 2023. The GMOTG Restaurants owned by certain of our officers
are operated pursuant to franchise agreements with us, and as such, are included in Table 3 and the
corresponding list of franchised locations in Exhibit C.
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Table No. 2

Transfers of Outlets from Franchisees to New Owners
(other than the Franchisor)

For Years 2021 to 2023t
Number of
2
State Year Transfers
2021 0
Total 2022 0
2023 0

! As of December 31, 2021, 2022, and 2023. States not listed had no activity to report.

Table No. 3
Status of Franchised Outlets
For Years 2021 to 2023*
. Ceased
State? Outlets Outlets Termina- Non- Reacquired Operations- Outlets
ate Year at Start - by at End
Opened tions Renewals . Other
of Year Franchisor of Year
Reasons
2021 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
Minnesota 2022 1 1 0 0 0 0 2
2023 2 1 0 0 0 0 3
2021 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
Total 2022 1 2 0 0 0 0 3
2023 3 1 0 0 0 0 4
1 As of December 31, 2021, 2022, and 2023. States not listed had no activity to report.
Table No. 4
Status of Company-Owned Outlets
For Years 2021 to 2023*
Outlets
Outlets at . Outlets Outlets at
State Year Start of Outlets Reacquired Outlets Sold to End of
Opened from Closed -
the Year . Franchisee Year
Franchisee
2021 0 0 0 0 0 0
2022 0 0 0 0 0 0
2023 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total 0 0 0 0 0 0

! As of December 31, 2021, 2022, and 2023. The GMOTG Restaurant owned by certain of our officers are
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operated pursuant to franchise agreements with us, and as such, are included in Table 3 and the
corresponding list of franchised locations in Exhibit C.

Table No. 5
Projected Openings as of December 31, 2023

Franchise Agreements Projected New CE::JZ?E?OI\VI\?I’\:\(/% d
State! Signed But Outlet Not Franchised Outlet in hany
. Outlet In the Next
Opened The Next Fiscal Year :
Fiscal Year
All States Total 0 1 0

Included in this Disclosure Document as Exhibit D is a list of all operational GMOTG Restaurant
franchised locations as of December 31, 2023. Also included in Exhibit D is a list of the name, city and
state, and business telephone number (or, if unknown, the last known home telephone number) of every
franchisee that had an outlet terminated, cancelled, not renewed or otherwise voluntarily or involuntarily
ceased to do business under a Franchise Agreement with us within 10 weeks of the issuance date of this
Disclosure Document. If you buy this franchise, your contact information may be disclosed to other buyers
when you leave the franchise system.

Except for the advertising council and the FAC referenced in Item 11, we have not created, sponsored or
endorsed any trademark-specific franchisee organizations associated with the GMOTG Restaurant
franchise system. The contact information for the advertising council and the FAC is the same as our
contact information. In addition, no independent franchisee organization has asked us to be included in
our Disclosure Document.

ITEM 21
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Attached to this FDD as Exhibit C are our audited financial statements from inception through December
31, 2023.

ITEM 22
CONTRACTS

Attached as Exhibit B is a copy of our Franchise Agreement. You should review this agreement carefully
since it is the binding document which controls your business relationship with us. While it is important
and helpful to crosscheck the information in the Franchise Agreement with the various Items in this
Disclosure Document, that is no substitute for a careful review of the Franchise Agreement by you and an
attorney, accountant or other competent business advisor. We encourage you to retain the services of an
attorney, accountant, architect and/or other professional advisor in connection with the acquisition of a
GMOTG Restaurant franchise and the construction of your restaurant.

Exhibit F is a copy of our current form of General Release Agreement.
Exhibit G is a copy of our Third Party Supplier Agreements (Ingage |.T. and Restaurant 365).

The Franchise Agreement, General Release Agreement and Third Party Supplier Agreements are samples
only and are not for signing.
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ITEM 23
RECEIPTS

Attached to this Disclosure Document as Exhibit J is a detachable acknowledgement of receipt.

36
2024 Green Mill On The Go, LLC Franchise Disclosure Document



EXHIBIT A
LIST OF STATE ADMINISTRATORS AND AGENTS FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS
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AGENT FOR

STATE STATE ADMINISTRATOR SERVICE OF PROCESS
Minnesota Department of Commerce Minnesota Commissioner of Commerce
85 7" Place East, Suite 280 85 7" Place East, Suite 500
MINNESOTA St. Paul, MN 55101 St. Paul, MN 55101

(651) 296-4026

NORTH DAKOTA

North Dakota Securities Department
600 East Boulevard Avenue
State Capital Fifth Floor,
Bismarck, North Dakota 58505
Telephone: (701) 328-4712

North Dakota Securities Department
600 East Boulevard Avenue
State Capital Fifth Floor,
Bismarck, North Dakota 58505
Telephone: (701) 328-4712

SOUTH DAKOTA

Division of Insurance
Securities Regulation
124 S. Euclid, Suite 104
Pierre, South Dakota 57501

Division of Insurance
Securities Regulation
124 S. Euclid, Suite 104
Pierre, South Dakota 57501

WISCONSIN

Commission of Securities
4822 Madison Yards Way, North Tower
Madison, WI 53705
608-266-0448

Wisconsin Commissioner of Securities
4822 Madison Yards Way, North Tower
Madison, WI 53705
608-266-0448
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GREEN MILL ON THE GO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

THIS FRANCHISE AGREEMENT is made and entered into as of the day of
, 20___ (“Effective Date”), by and between Green Mill On The Go, LLC, a Minnesota
limited liability company, whose principal place of business is at 1342 Grand Avenue, St. Paul, Minnesota
55105 (“Franchisor™), and (“Franchisee™).

WHEREAS, Hightop Foods, LLC, a Minnesota company (“Licensor”), has developed and/or owns
certain recipes, operating and training manuals, operating procedures, processes, methods, systems, decor,
menus and know-how for use in connection with the operation of to go restaurants featuring pizza under
the trade name Green Mill On The Go® (the “Operating System™);

WHEREAS, the Licensor has registered (1) the Green Mill On The Go® service mark with the
United States Patent and Trademark Office as a service mark for use in connection with to go restaurant
services, (2) the Green Mill On The Go® service mark and related design with the United States Patent and
Trademark Office as a service mark for use in connection with to go restaurant services featuring eat-in
dining, carry out and home delivery, and (3) the Green Mill On The Go® service mark and related design
with the Minnesota Secretary of State as a service mark for use in connection with to go restaurant services
(collectively, the “Service Marks” or “Marks”);

WHEREAS, the Licensor has granted the Franchisor a license which permits the Franchisor to
grant franchises to use the Operating System and Service Marks (collectively the “Licensed Property”) in
connection with the operation of to go restaurants featuring pizza;

WHEREAS, the Franchisee has had a full and adequate opportunity to be thoroughly advised of
the terms and conditions of this Agreement and has had sufficient time and opportunity to evaluate and
investigate the business concept and the procedures and financial requirements associated with the
operation of a business using the Licensed Property as well as the competitive market in which it will
operate; and

WHEREAS, the Franchisor desires to grant to the Franchisee and the Franchisee desires to obtain
from the Franchisor the right to use the Licensed Property in connection with the operation of a to go
restaurant featuring pizza at the location described in Paragraph 1 of this Agreement on the terms and
subject to the conditions of this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing premises and of the mutual covenants
herein contained, the parties agree as follows:

1. Grant of Franchise; Franchised Location. Subject to the terms and conditions of this
Agreement, Franchisor hereby grants to Franchisee a non-exclusive and terminable right and license to use
the Licensed Property in the operation of a to go restaurant featuring pizza and other required menu items
at the following location:

(“Franchised Location”). Franchisee hereby undertakes the obligation to use the Licensed Property in the
operation of its to go restaurant featuring pizza and other required menu items at the Franchised Location
(“Franchised Business”) in strict compliance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement. The rights
and privileges granted to Franchisee under this Agreement are applicable only to the Franchised Location,
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are personal in nature, and may not be used elsewhere or at any other location by Franchisee. Franchisee
shall not have the right to subfranchise or sublicense any of its rights under this Agreement. Franchisee
shall not use the Franchised Location for any purposes other than the operation of the Franchised Business.
Franchisor’s grant of the license to Franchisee includes the right and license to use: (a) the Licensed
Property in connection with the operation of the Franchised Business at the Franchised Location as
Franchisor may prescribe and authorize from time to time; (b) Franchisor’s recipes and methods of
preparation of food products; (c) Franchisor’s merchandising and business techniques and programs; and
(d) Franchisor’s business concept of featuring pizza and other standard menu items under the Service
Marks.

Franchisee must develop and open the Franchised Business for business by the Required Open
Date. Franchisee is exclusively responsible for its own decision in selecting the Franchised Location, even
if Franchisor at any time provides advice or assistance to Franchisee regarding the selection thereof and
even though Franchisor must approve such Franchised Location. Franchisor shall have no liability of any
kind to Franchisee (whether for negligence or otherwise) if the Franchised Location is for any reason
disadvantageous to Franchisee. Franchisor’s approval of a Franchised Location shall not be deemed to be
a representation or promise that Franchisee will be successful at such Franchised Location. No to go
restaurant owned or operated by Franchisee shall be located on any site other than the Franchised Location
without the prior written approval of Franchisor and without the entry by the parties into a separate
Franchise Agreement for such to go restaurant in the form then used by Franchisor; provided, however, that
nothing herein contained shall require Franchisor to enter into any such additional agreements.

The Franchisee will not purchase, lease or otherwise acquire the Franchised Location until the
Franchised Location has been approved by the Franchisor. The Franchisor will have the right to require
the Franchisee to obtain, at the Franchisee’s expense, an economic feasibility study for the Franchised
Location.

Any lease entered into by Franchisee for the Franchised Location shall include provisions
substantially as follows:

a. “Notwithstanding anything contained in this lease to the contrary, Lessor agrees
that without its consent, this lease and the right, title and interest of the Lessee thereunder, may be
assigned by the Lessee to Green Mill On The Go, LLC, or its designee.”

b. “Lessee hereby agrees that Lessor may, upon the written request of Green Mill On
The Go, LLC, disclose to Green Mill On The Go, LLC all reports, information or data in Lessor’s
possession respecting sales made in, upon or from the leased premises.”

C. “Lessor shall give written notice to Green Mill On The Go, LLC (concurrently
with the giving of such notice to Lessee) of any default by Lessee under this lease, and Green Mill
On The Go, LLC shall have the right, in its sole business judgment, to cure any such default. Such
notice shall be sent to Green Mill On The Go, LLC, 1342 Grand Avenue, St. Paul, Minnesota
55105, or such other address as Green Mill On The Go, LLC may, from time to time, specify in
writing to Lessor.”

Such lease shall in all respects be satisfactory in form and substance to the Franchisor and the Franchisor
has the right, but not the obligation, to approve such lease, a true and correct copy of which shall be
delivered to the Franchisor at least fifteen (15) days before its execution by Franchisee.

In the event Franchisor cures any default by Franchisee under its lease for the Franchised Location,
the total amount of all costs, expenses and payments incurred by Franchisor in effecting such a cure shall
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be immediately due and owing by Franchisee to Franchisor. At the request of Franchisor, Franchisee shall
execute and deliver to Franchisor a promissory note in such form as Franchisor may reasonably require
providing for the payment by Franchisee of an amount equal to all costs, expenses and payments incurred
by Franchisor in curing a default by Franchisee together with interest at the lesser of the maximum rate
permitted by law or 18% per annum. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary,
Franchisor shall be under no obligation to cure any default by Franchisee under the terms of its lease.

In the event that the Franchised Business is not operational within nine (9) months from the date of
this Agreement (the “Required Opening Date”), other than by reason of an event of “Force Majeure” (as
hereinafter defined), Franchisor shall have the right to terminate this Agreement and any other agreement
between Franchisor and Franchisee relating to the Franchised Business. In the event the Franchisor
terminates this Agreement as a result of the Franchised Business not being operational by the Required
Opening Date, Franchisor shall be entitled to retain that portion of the initial franchise fee paid by
Franchisee pursuant to paragraph 2 hereof, which is equal to the costs and expenses incurred by Franchisor
in approving Franchisee as a franchisee and in performing its duties and obligations under and pursuant to
this Agreement. The balance of such initial franchise fee in such circumstances shall be refunded to
Franchisee.

As used herein, the term “Force Majeure” means acts of God, strikes, lockouts, or other industrial
disturbances; acts of public enemies; orders or restraints of any kind of the government of the United States
or of any State or any of their departments, agencies, or officials or of any civil or military authority;
insurrections or riots; landslides, earthquakes, fires, storms, droughts, floods, or explosions; the failure to
receive materials necessary to the operation of the Franchised Business provided that such materials were
timely ordered; and/or any other cause or event not reasonably within the control of the Franchisee.

2. Initial Franchise Fee. Franchisee shall pay to Franchisor an initial franchise fee of Fifteen
Thousand Dollars ($15,000). Payment of the Initial Franchise Fee is deferred until Franchisor has satisfied
its pre-opening obligations to Franchisee and Franchisee has commenced business operations. The
Minnesota Department of Commerce has imposed this deferral requirement due to our financial condition.
Except as provided in paragraph 1 hereof in reference to the termination of this Agreement as a result of
the Franchised Business not being operational within nine (9) months of the date of this Agreement, the
initial franchise fee is not refundable under any circumstances. Any deposit or application fee paid by
Franchisee to Franchisor in order to obtain the franchise granted hereby shall be credited against the initial
franchise fee, it being understood that Franchisor shall have no obligations and Franchisee shall have no
rights under this Agreement, until such initial franchise fee is paid in full.

3. Royalties. Franchisee shall pay Franchisor an ongoing royalty fee equal to four percent
(4%) of the Net Sales (as hereinafter defined) on the Green Mill On The Go menu items (set forth in the
attached Green Mill On The Go menu or otherwise authorized by Franchisor in writing) of the Franchised
Business each accounting period during the Initial Term of this Agreement. The ongoing royalty payable
under this paragraph for a particular accounting period shall be payable within fifteen (15) days after the
close of such period. Any unpaid royalties shall bear interest at the lesser of the maximum rate permitted
by law or 18% per annum. As used in this Agreement, the term “Net Sales” shall mean and include the
total actual gross charges by Franchisee for all products sold and services provided to customers of the
Franchised Business, for cash or credit, whether such sales are made at or from the premises of the
Franchised Business or any other location, less: (a) sales, use, service or excise taxes collected from
customers and paid to the appropriate taxing authority and (b) customer refunds and adjustments.

4. Term. This Agreement and the license granted hereby shall have an initial term of twenty
(20) years commencing on the date first above written (the “Initial Term”).

2024 Green Mill On The Go Franchise Agreement



5. Renewal of Franchise. Franchisee may, at its option, renew the license granted hereby
for one additional ten (10) year term upon the expiration of the Initial Term, provided that:

a. Franchisee and its affiliates is/are not then in default under or in violation of any
provision of this Agreement or any other agreement between Franchisee or any of its affiliates and
Franchisor or its subsidiaries or affiliates, or pursuant to any agreement with any other creditor or
supplier of the Franchised Business, and has substantially complied with all the terms and
conditions of this Agreement and such other agreements during the terms hereof and thereof;

b. Franchisee and its affiliates have satisfied all monetary obligations owed by
Franchisee or any of its affiliates to Franchisor and its subsidiaries and affiliates and has timely met
these obligations throughout the Initial Term of this Agreement;

C. Franchisee is able to maintain possession of the Franchised Location or to secure
and develop a suitable alternative site approved by Franchisor for such renewal term;

d. Franchisee gives Franchisor written notice of its election to renew the license
granted hereby not less than six (6) months nor more than twelve (12) months prior to the end of
the Initial Term;

e. Franchisee executes Franchisor’s then-current form of franchise agreement, the
terms of which may differ materially from this Agreement, as further described below;

f. Comply with all refurbishing requirements, if any, Franchisor specifies for the
Franchised Business; and

g. You and your personal guarantors execute a general release of claims in a form
we prescribe.

If Franchisee fails to satisfy any of the conditions set forth above in this paragraph, Franchisor may,
in its sole business judgment, refuse to renew the license granted hereby.

Renewal of the license granted hereby shall be effected by the execution by Franchisor and
Franchisee of Franchisor’s then-current form of franchise agreement and all other agreements then
customarily used by Franchisor in the grant of franchises, which may provide for a higher royalty fee and
for greater expenditures for advertising and promotion than are provided for in this Agreement. Franchisee
will not be required to pay an additional initial franchise fee or a renewal fee upon renewal. Failure or
refusal by Franchisee to execute the necessary agreements within thirty (30) days after their delivery to
Franchisee shall be deemed an election by Franchisee not to renew the license granted hereby.

Upon renewal of the license granted hereby, Franchisor may, in its sole business judgment, require
Franchisee, at its sole expense, to effect such refurbishing, within twelve (12) months of its receipt of notice
from the Franchisor, of the Franchised Business (in addition to regular maintenance and repair) as the
Franchisor may require to maintain or improve the appearance and efficient operation of the Franchised
Business and/or increase its sales potential or to comply with the Franchisor’s then current requirements
with respect to design, decor and equipment. Refurbishing may include: (i) replacement of worn out or
obsolete equipment, fixtures, furniture and signs; (ii) the substitution or addition of new or improved
equipment, fixtures, furniture and signs; (iii) redecorating; (iv) repair of the interior and exterior of the
premises and repair and resurfacing of parking facilities; and (v) structural modifications and remodeling
of the premises.
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6. Training. Prior to the opening of the Franchised Business, Franchisee, or the on-site
general manager of the Franchised Business if Franchisee is not a natural person, shall attend Franchisor’s
training program in Minneapolis-St. Paul, Minnesota (or in such other more convenient location as
Franchisor may, in its sole business judgment, establish) for the period of time, not less than ten (10) weeks
in duration, such training is then generally required of on-site general managers of Franchisor-owned or
other franchised businesses. If Franchisee is a natural person, the Franchisee must serve as the on-site
general manager of the Franchised Business unless the Franchisor agrees to waive this requirement in
writing in its sole business judgment. If Franchisee is an entity, one of the owners of the Franchisee must
serve as the on-site general manager of the Franchised Business unless the Franchisor agrees to waive this
requirement in writing in its sole business judgment. Approximately six (6) to eight (8) weeks prior to
opening its Franchised Business, Franchisee will hire its kitchen manager, assistant kitchen manager, and
dining room manager, and place them in the Franchisor’s management training program. Franchisor shall
provide such training program for the Franchisee’s initial on-site general manager, kitchen manager,
assistant kitchen manager, and dining room manager, at no charge to Franchisee. Upon any change in the
on-site general manager, kitchen manager, assistant kitchen manager, and dining room manager of the
Franchised Business, the succeeding manager or assistant manager shall attend Franchisor’s training
program. Franchisee agrees to pay Franchisor a fee, at Franchisor’s then-prescribed rates, for the
Franchisee’s second and all subsequent managers or assistant manager who attend Franchisor’s training
program. Franchisee shall be responsible for the travel, lodging, meals and other expenses incurred by
Franchisee and its managers and assistant managers (including Franchisee’s initial managers and assistant
managers) in traveling to and attending Franchisor’s training programs. Franchisor shall have the right to
approve the on-site general managers, and each such manager must successfully complete Franchisor’s
training program provided for in this paragraph.

Any training Franchisor provides to any of Franchisee’s employees will be limited to training or
guidance regarding the delivery of approved products and services to customers in a manner that reflects
the customer service standards of the System. Franchisee is, and will remain, the sole employer of its
employees at all times, including during all training programs, and Franchisee is solely responsible for all
employment decisions and actions related to its employees. Franchisee is solely responsible for ensuring
that its employees receive adequate training.

Franchisee or the on-site general manager and such other managers and assistant managers of the
Franchised Business as may be designated by Franchisor from time to time shall, at Franchisee’s expense,
attend such additional regional sales, training or orientation seminars as Franchisor may reasonably request.

The Franchisee shall also engage four (4) to six (6) trainers as designated by Franchisor who are
employed by us or other Green Mill franchisees (the “Opening Team”) to assist the franchisee with the
training of its management and other employees during the two (2) week period before and two (2) week
period after the grand opening of the Franchised Business. The Franchisee shall be responsible for
reimbursing the employer of such Opening Team for all labor costs (including salary, wages, benefits and
payroll taxes) incurred by the employer of such Opening Team in making such trainers available to the
Franchisee. In addition, Franchisee shall be responsible for the travel, lodging, meals and other expenses
incurred by such Opening Team in traveling to and assisting Franchisee with the training.

7. Other Services. Franchisor agrees to provide to Franchisee during the Initial Term of this
Agreement: (a) assistance in selecting the equipment, furniture and fixtures for the Franchised Business;
(b) a first draft of a proposed layout for the Franchised Business; (c) assistance in opening Franchisee’s
Franchised Business and training initial personnel; (d) advice regarding proper maintenance and marketing
methods relating to the Franchised Business; (e) confidential operating manuals relating to preparation of
food items, operations and other matters and any updates to the manual; and (f) advertising and promotional
artwork or representative copies of Franchisor’s promotional and advertising materials.
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Franchisor reserves the right to impose a reasonable charge for providing copies of artwork and
promotional and advertising materials. Similarly, Franchisor reserves the right to make changes from time
to time to such artwork and promotional and advertising materials.

At Franchisee’s request, the Franchisor may assist the Franchisee in identifying prospective
manager and assistant manager candidates for the Franchised Business, with the Franchisee retaining all
decision-making and control over whether any such candidates ultimately hired by Franchisee (and, if so,
on what terms). The Franchisee shall pay the Franchisor its then standard fee for such referral service
within thirty (30) days of receiving the Franchisor’s invoice with respect to such services.

All other services that Franchisor may at any time make available to its franchisees shall be made
available to Franchisee at the fees published by Franchisor for such services from time to time. Franchisee
shall have the right to accept or decline any such other services if Franchisor offers them at any additional
cost.

8. Advertising and Promotion. Franchisee agrees to actively promote its to go restaurant,
to abide by all of Franchisor’s advertising requirements and to comply with the following provisions:

a. Advertising Fees and Expenditures. Franchisee must pay at least two percent (2%) of its
Net Sales on the Green Mill On The Go menu items on advertising. Of the two percent (2%), an Advertising
Fee of one and one-half percent (1 1/2%) must be paid to Franchisor for deposit in an Advertising Fund.
The Advertising Fee is paid on the 15" day of each month. The balance of the two percent (2%) must be
spent on approved local advertising.

Franchisor reserves the right to increase the combined total amount of advertising payments
(Advertising Fees and required local expenditures) from two percent (2%) of Net Sales on the Green Mill
On The Go menu items to three percent and one-half (3 1/2%) of Net Sales on the Green Mill On The Go
menu items upon sixty (60) days written notice and further reserves the right to allocate the additional one
and one-half percent (1 1/2%) between the Advertising Fee and required local advertising expenditures.
Any increase will not exceed one-half percent (1/2%) at one time.

b. Advertising Fund. All Advertising Fees will be placed in an Advertising Fund that
Franchisor owns and manages. The Advertising Fund is not a trust or escrow account, and Franchisor has
no fiduciary obligation to franchisees with respect to the Advertising Fund; provided, however, Franchisor
will make a good faith effort to expend such fees in a manner that it determines is in the general best
interests of the System. Franchisor has the right to determine the expenditures of the amounts collected
and the methods of marketing, advertising, media employed and contents, terms and conditions of
marketing campaigns and promotional programs. Because of the methods used, Franchisor is not required
to spend a prorated amount on each to go restaurant or in each advertising market. Franchisor has the right
to make disbursements from the Advertising Fund for expenses incurred in connection with the cost of
formulating, developing and implementing marketing, advertising and promotional campaigns. The
disbursements may include payments to us for the expense of administering the Advertising Fund, including
accounting expenses and salaries and benefits paid to employees engaged in the advertising functions. If
requested, Franchisor will provide Franchisee an annual unaudited statement of the financial condition of
the Advertising Fund.

C. Required Local Expenditures. Franchisee must use its best efforts to promote and advertise
the to go restaurant and participate in any local marketing and promotional programs Franchisor establishes
from time to time. Upon Franchisor’s request, Franchisee must provide Franchisor with itemization and
proof of marketing and an accounting of the monies that Franchisee spent for approved local marketing. If
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Franchisee fails to make the required expenditures, Franchisor has the right to collect and contribute the
deficiency to the Advertising Fund or otherwise use the money to promote Franchisee’s to go restaurant.

d. Advertising Standards. All advertising and promotion by Franchisee shall be completely
factual, dignified and shall conform to the highest standards of ethical advertising and to policies, if any,
prescribed from time to time by the Franchisor, including policies contained in the Franchisor’s manuals as
revised from time to time by the Franchisor. Franchisee shall obtain Franchisor’s prior approval for all
promotions, special events, sales promotion materials and advertising used by Franchisee (including,
without limitation, direct mail, newspaper, radio and television advertising, advertising by third parties at
the to go restaurant or at any other location if in connection with the to go restaurant and online presences,
electronic mediums and social networking sites such as LinkedIn®, Twitter®, Facebook®, or YouTube.
Any discussions about or promotion of the to go restaurant by Franchisee or its employees or agents via the
Internet (including social media websites or platforms) are subject to Franchisor’s approval). Franchisor
shall be deemed to have approved any advertisements and promotional materials submitted to it unless it
notifies Franchisee of its disapproval within ten (10) days of its receipt of the same. Franchisee agrees not
to use any advertisements or promotional materials unless they have been approved by Franchisor. Any
coupon published or otherwise distributed by the Franchisee must bear a code number provided by the
Franchisor or its advertising agency.

In the event that Franchisee desires to operate or maintain a home page or other presence on the
Internet or on or through any similar medium (collectively, “Electronic Presence”), and Franchisor approves
such Electronic Presence, Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that Franchisee shall not be permitted to
use any of the Service Marks or any other word, name, symbol or device which is likely to cause confusion
with any of the Service Marks, in any such Electronic Presence without Franchisor’s prior, express written
consent which may be granted or denied in Franchisor’s sole business judgment. In addition, Franchisor
may require that Franchisee include in any such Electronic Presence a hypertext or other direct link to any
Electronic Presence maintained by Franchisor. Franchisee’s Electronic Presence, including with respect to
current and future forms of social media networks and platforms, must at all times comply with Franchisor’s
written specifications, restrictions and policies, as modified from time to time, and as set forth in the
manuals.

e. Grand Opening Advertising. At least thirty (30) days prior to the opening of the Franchised
Business for business, the Franchisee shall pay to the Franchisor the sum of Five to Fifteen Thousand and
No/100 Dollars ($5,000.00 to $15,000.00) (the “Grand Opening Allowance™). The Franchisor shall utilize
the Grand Opening Allowance solely for the purpose of providing and conducting an advertising, public
relations and promotional program in connection with the grand opening of the Franchised Business. The
Franchisor in its sole business judgment, shall determine when, where and how to expend the Grand
Opening Allowance on the Franchisee’s behalf. Within thirty (30) days after the grand opening of the
Franchised Business, the Franchisor shall provide to the Franchisee an accounting as to the expenditure of
the Grand Opening Allowance and shall refund to the Franchisee any portion of the Grand Opening
Allowance not expended by the Franchisor. It shall be a material default under this Agreement if the
Franchisee fails to timely pay the Grand Opening Allowance to the Franchisor.

9. Accounting Reports and Inspection. Franchisor acknowledges and agrees that
Franchisee shall have the right to advertise and sell its products at whatever prices Franchisee determines.
Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that the successful development of its Franchised Business requires
Franchisee to strictly adhere to Franchisor’s accounting system, including, without limitation, the
maintenance of proper controls for inventory, cost of goods, labor and fixed expenses; and utilization of
accounting policies consistent with other Franchisor-owned and franchised Green Mill On The Go
restaurants. Franchisee further acknowledges and agrees that it is in its own best interests to strictly adhere
to such policies. In accordance therewith, Franchisee agrees that it shall supply to Franchisor: (a) a weekly
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report of sales, labor, cost of goods sold and inventory which shall be in such form and contain such
information as the Franchisor may require from time to time, including information sufficient to permit
Franchisor to calculate Franchisee’s Net Sales for the prior week (which report shall be transmitted to the
Franchisor electronically or by facsimile transmission by 11:00 a.m. on the following Monday); (b) an
unaudited balance sheet at the end of each accounting period and a profit and loss statement for the period
then ended within fifteen (15) days of the end of each accounting period, and (c) a balance sheet at
December 31 of each year with statements of profit and loss and cash flow for the year then ended within
ninety (90) days after each accounting period year end prepared on a “compilation” basis by Franchisee’s
independent public accountants. Each such report and statement shall be prepared in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles applied on a basis consistent with past practices and shall be
provided on forms as may from time to time be prescribed by, or in any other manner from time to time
reasonably requested by, Franchisor. Franchisee shall also supply to Franchisor copies of all data and
reports furnished to the lessor of the Franchised Location, mall operator or maintenance contractor at the
time of transmission to such parties and copies of its state and federal income tax returns at the time of
filing. In order to assure accurate and consistent reporting, Franchisee shall maintain its chart of accounts
and general ledger, and shall prepare its financial statements, in the manner prescribed from time-to-time
by Franchisor. Franchisor is currently using the 4-4-5 accounting period method.

Franchisor, its representatives, agents and employees shall be allowed at all times during
Franchisee’s regular business hours, with or without prior notice to Franchisee, to inspect and audit the
books and records of Franchisee and to receive copies of Franchisee’s invoices, payments and receipts and
other documentation that might be required by a certified public accountant in conducting such an audit.
Franchisor shall pay all of the costs and expenses which it incurs in connection with any such audit, except
as provided hereinafter. In the event that any audit by Franchisor of Franchisee’s books and records
discloses an understatement by Franchisee in its sales reports or other documents used to determine the
royalties, Advertising Fees and Local Advertising Expenditures, marketing and promotion based upon
Franchisee’s Net Sales hereunder, Franchisee shall pay Franchisor any royalties and Advertising Fees due
as a result of such understatement and shall deposit with the Franchisor the difference between what it
actually spent and what it was required to spend for approved Local Advertising Expenditures, in each case,
together with interest thereon at the lesser of the maximum rate permitted by law or eighteen percent (18%)
per annum from the date such payment(s) should have been made. If any such understatement is determined
to be three percent (3%) or more for any period or periods, Franchisee shall, in addition to reimbursing
Franchisor for the royalties and/or Advertising Fees due plus interest and depositing with the Franchisor
any deficiency in its required Local Advertising Expenditures, plus interest, reimburse Franchisor for the
cost of such audit, including, but not limited to, the fees and expenses of Franchisor’s agents, employees
and/or independent accountants.

10. Quality Control. In order to protect the goodwill associated with the Licensed Property,
Franchisee shall comply with all reasonable standards and specifications of product quality and of restaurant
maintenance and appearance established from time to time by Franchisor. In addition, Franchisee shall
comply with all reasonable operating procedures and practices established by Franchisor from time-to-time.
Franchisee shall permit Franchisor’s representatives a free right of inspection and sampling necessary to
determine whether Franchisee is in compliance with such standards, specifications, procedures and
practices. Samples in reasonable amounts taken by Franchisor for this purpose shall be furnished by
Franchisee without cost to Franchisor. Franchisor may charge Franchisee a reasonable fee for its inspection
and testing of products, ingredients, materials and suppliers. Without limiting the generality of the
foregoing, Franchisee agrees, in particular, to:

a. Purchase soft drink syrup, beer, ale, spice blends, certain breads, dough blends,

cheese, tomato sauce and sauce blends, and other products and services as Franchisor may from
time to time specify, from such source or sources as may be designated from time to time by
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Franchisor, with the express understanding that certain products and services may be available from
one source only (and that Franchisor or its affiliates may be that source). Franchisee further agrees
that Franchisee will pay the then-current price for all products and services purchased from
Franchisor or its affiliates;

b. Maintain the Franchised Business and equipment in a neat, clean and sanitary
condition;
C. Conform at all times with standards published by Franchisor in its manuals with

respect to design and decor of the Franchised Location and employees’ apparel, as the same may
be amended or supplemented from time to time by Franchisor;

d. Observe and maintain strictly the standards published by Franchisor in its manuals
for food products sold at the Franchised Business and conform to the specifications for their
preparation, as such standards and specifications may be amended or supplemented from time to
time by Franchisor;

e. Use the Franchised Location only for the operation of the Franchised Business and
not for any other business or purpose;

f. Refrain from marketing or selling any products or services at or from the
Franchised Location without the prior written consent of Franchisor other than those contained in
Franchisor’s standard menu, as such menu may be amended or supplemented by Franchisor from

time to time;

g. Offer and sell all of the menu items, including beer and ale, contained in
Franchisor’s standard menu, as the same may be amended or supplemented by Franchisor from
time to time;

h. Use such foods, ingredients, supplies and materials as meet Franchisor’s standards

and specifications, as the same may be amended or supplemented by Franchisor from time to time,
or as may be otherwise approved by Franchisor in writing;

i Have at all times in its employ a full-time, on-site general manager (which must
be Franchisee if Franchisee is a natural person or must be an owner of Franchisee if Franchisee is
an entity, unless this requirement is waived by the Franchisor in writing in its sole business
judgment) who has been approved by Franchisor and is knowledgeable in the operation and
management of the Franchised Business and who has completed Franchisor’s training program;

J. Employ a sufficient number of adequately trained, competent and courteous
employees to insure efficient service to Franchisee’s customers. No employee of Franchisee will
be deemed to be an employee of Franchisor for any purpose whatsoever, and nothing in any aspect
of the System or the Marks in any way shifts any employee or employment related responsibility
from Franchisee to Franchisor. Franchisee alone is responsible for hiring, firing, training, setting
hours for and supervising all employees;

k. Use only such equipment in the preparation and handling of food products sold at
or from the Franchised Business as conform to the specifications for equipment published in
Franchisor’s manuals, as such specifications may be amended or supplemented by Franchisor from
time to time or as may be otherwise approved by Franchisor in writing;
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. Take good care of and make all necessary repairs to the Franchised Location and
the fixtures and equipment therein and, upon the reasonable request of Franchisor, replace or
refurbish such fixtures or equipment;

m. Comply with all reasonable operating standards, procedures and practices adopted
by the Franchisor from time-to-time. Any required standards exist to protect Franchisor’s interests
in the Green Mill on the Go System and the Marks and not for the purpose of establishing any
control or duty to take control over those matters that are reserved to Franchisee. The required
standards generally will be set forth in the Manuals or other written materials. The Manuals also
will include guidelines or recommendations in addition to required standards. In some instances,
the required standards will include recommendations or guidelines to meet the required standards.
Franchisee may follow the recommendations or guidelines or some other suitable alternative,
provided Franchisee meets and complies with the required standards. In other instances, no suitable
alternative may exist. In order to protect Franchisor’s interests in the System and Marks, Franchisor
reserves the right to determine if Franchisee is meeting a required standard and whether an
alternative is suitable to any recommendations or guidelines;

n. Purchase and use in the operation of the Franchised Business a point-of-sale
register system which has been approved by Franchisor;

0. Reserved.

p. Purchase and use in the operation of the Franchised Business a Kitchen Display
System which has been approved by Franchisor;

g. At all times when the Franchised Business is open for business, the Franchisee
shall have at least one employee on duty who has been ServSafe® certified;

r. Refrain from offering or selling any food items in a “buffet” style of serving except
as may be expressly authorized from time to time by the Franchisor in its confidential manuals or
otherwise in writing;

S. Participate in all gift certificate and gift card programs now or at any time hereafter
sponsored by Franchisor;

t. Participate at its expense in all programs now or at any time hereafter sponsored
by the Franchisor to promote and reward the frequent and regular customers of Green Mill On The
Go restaurants;

u. Maintain at its expense such number of telephone lines dedicated for such uses in
each case as Franchisor may require from time to time; and

V. Refrain from installing a popcorn machine and selling or offering complimentary
popcorn at the Franchised Business.

TO PROMOTE UNIFORMITY AMONG TO GO RESTAURANTS EMPLOYING THE LICENSED
PROPERTY AND, THUS, TO ENHANCE THE GOODWILL AND VALUE OF THE LICENSED
PROPERTY TO ALL FRANCHISEES, FRANCHISEE SHALL AT ALL TIMES MAKE AVAILABLE
AT FRANCHISEE’S FRANCHISED BUSINESS THE FRANCHISOR’S FULL STANDARD MENU OF
FOOD AND BEVERAGE PRODUCTS (AS THE SAME MAY BE AMENDED OR SUPPLEMENTED
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BY FRANCHISOR FROM TIME TO TIME), WITH SUCH REGIONAL OR LOCAL VARIATIONS
FOR FRANCHISEE AS MAY BE APPROVED BY FRANCHISOR IN WRITING.

Franchisor reserves the right to add food products to or delete food products from the standard
menu at any time and, if such additions or deletions are made by Franchisor, Franchisee shall upon
Franchisor’s request modify its menu to conform to all such revisions. Franchisee shall not sell any food
products other than those contained on Franchisor’s standard menu without first obtaining the written
approval of Franchisor, which approval Franchisor may in its absolute discretion withhold.

Franchisee agrees that all ideas, concepts, techniques and materials relating to a Green Mill on the
go business, including customer data and food products, whether or not constituting protectable intellectual
property, and whether created by or on behalf of Franchisee or its owners, will be promptly disclosed to
Franchisor, deemed to be Franchisor’s sole and exclusive property and part of the Operating System, and
deemed to be works made for hire for us. Franchisee and each of its owners agree to sign whatever
assignment or other documents Franchisor may request from time to time to evidence Franchisor’s
ownership or to assist Franchisor in securing intellectual property rights in such ideas, concepts, techniques
and materials.

To protect the goodwill associated with the Licensed Property, Franchisor has entered into an
agreement with Service Management Group (SMG). SMG will provide Franchisees with quantitative
surveys collecting structured and unstructured customer feedback about single location-level experiences.
Franchisee shall pay Franchisor a predetermined annual fee for this service.

The Franchisor shall have the right to receive marketing allowances, royalties, commissions,
rebates and/or other payments or consideration from approved suppliers and vendors in connection with the
sale of goods and services to the Franchisor’s franchisees, including the Franchisee.

11. Compliance with Law; Payment of Liabilities. Franchisee shall secure and maintain in
force all required licenses, permits and certificates and shall operate the Franchised Business in full
compliance with all applicable laws, ordinances and regulations, including without limitation all
government regulations relating to occupational hazards and health, consumer protection, unfair and
deceptive practices, trade regulation, workmen’s compensation, unemployment insurance and withholding
and payment of federal and state income taxes and social security taxes and sales, use and property taxes.
Franchisee shall adhere to, and cause any service provider of third party-provided payment applications to
adhere to cardholder data security standards according to the then current PCI (Payment Card Industry)
Data Security Standards. Franchisee shall be responsible for any costs related to compliance with such
standards and/or related audits and shall provide Franchisor with evidence of such compliance at
Franchisor’s request. Franchisee shall also provide prompt notice to Franchisor of any potential or actual
data security breach relating to cardholder data. In addition, notwithstanding any provision of this
Agreement or any of Franchisor’s manuals, plans and/or specification to the contrary, Franchisee shall be
solely responsible for ensuring that the Franchised Business and the Franchised Location are designed,
constructed, repaired, refurbished, remodeled and operated in full compliance with the Americans with
Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended, and the provisions of similar state and local laws and regulations.
Franchisee agrees to timely pay all of its debts, liabilities and obligations due and payable to Franchisor,
suppliers and creditors.

12. Ownership and Use of Licensed Property. Franchisee hereby acknowledges the validity
of the Franchisor’s right to grant the license provided for herein. Any and all improvements by Franchisee
relating to the Licensed Property shall become the sole and absolute property of Franchisor or it’s designee
who shall have the exclusive right to register and protect all such improvements in its name. Franchisee’s
right to use and identify with the Licensed Property shall exist concurrently with the Initial Term of this
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Agreement and only so long as Franchisee is in complete compliance with all of the terms and conditions
of this Agreement. During the Initial Term of this Agreement and thereafter, without limitation, Franchisee
agrees to refrain from doing any act that directly or indirectly would infringe upon, harm, mislead or contest
the rights of Franchisor and/or Licensor in and to the Licensed Property or any part thereof.

Franchisee agrees that its nonexclusive, personal right and license to use the Licensed Property,
including the right and license to use the name “Green Mill”” as the name of the Franchised Business, applies
only to the Franchised Location and only so long as Franchisee shall fully perform and comply with all of
the conditions, terms and covenants of this Agreement. Franchisee shall not have or acquire any rights in
or to any of the Licensed Property other than the limited right of use provided for in this Agreement.
Franchisee shall have the right to use the Licensed Property only in the manner prescribed, directed and
approved by Franchisor in writing. If, in the judgment of Franchisor, the acts or omissions of Franchisee
infringe upon or demean the goodwill, standards or uniformity or quality, or business standing associated
with all or any part of the Licensed Property, then Franchisee shall immediately upon written notice from
Franchisor, modify its use of the Licensed Property in the manner prescribed by Franchisor in writing.

During the Initial Term of this Agreement, Franchisee will operate its Franchised Business so that
it is clearly identified and advertised as a “Green Mill On The Go” restaurant. However, the style, form,
and use of the Service Marks or other Licensed Property in any advertising, written materials or supplies
must have the prior written approval of Franchisor. Franchisee will use the Service Marks and the other
marks which now or hereafter may form a part of the Licensed Property on all paper supplies, uniforms,
furnishings, advertising materials, signs or other articles in the identical combination and manner as may
be prescribed by Franchisor from time to time in writing. Franchisee will, at its expense, comply with all
notices of registration required by Franchisor and will, at its expense, comply with all trademark, trade
name, service mark, copyright or patent notice marking requirements.

Franchisee shall not use the words “Green Mill” in its corporate or partnership name. In addition,
Franchisee shall not attempt to register or otherwise obtain any interest in any Internet domain name
containing any of the Service Marks or any other word, name, symbol or device which is likely to cause
confusion with any of the Service Marks. Franchisee shall hold itself out to the public as an independent
contractor operating its business pursuant to a license from Franchisor.

If there is a claim by any party that its rights to use all or any part of the Licensed Property are
superior to Franchisor’s and if Franchisor determines that such claim is legally meritorious, then upon
receiving written notice from Franchisor, Franchisee, at its expense, will immediately make such changes
and amendments to the Licensed Property or its use thereof as may be reasonably required by Franchisor.
Franchisee will not make any changes or amendments whatsoever in or to the use of the Licensed Property
unless so directed by Franchisor in writing.

Franchisee will have no obligation to and shall not, without the written consent of Franchisor,
defend or enforce the Franchisor’s rights in or to any or all of the Licensed Property in any court or other
proceedings for or against imitation, infringement, any claim of prior use, or for or against any other
allegation. However, Franchisee must give Franchisor prompt and timely written notice of any
infringement of or claims or complaints made against Franchisee with respect to the Licensed Property and
will, at Franchisor’s expense, cooperate in all respects with Franchisor and/or Licensor in any court or other
proceedings involving all or any part of the Licensed Property. The cost and expense of all litigation
incurred by Franchisor and/or Licensor, including attorneys’ fees, specifically relating to the Licensed
Property shall be paid by Franchisor and/or Licensor. Franchisor’s and/or Licensor’s legal counsel shall
have the absolute right to control and conduct any litigation or other proceedings relating to the Licensed
Property.
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13. Rights on Termination. Upon the expiration of the Initial Term or renewal term or upon
termination of this Agreement by either party for any reason, Franchisee shall have no interest in the
Licensed Property and shall (a) immediately discontinue all use of the Licensed Property; (b) shall remove
from public display any signs, literature, products or accessories bearing any of the Service Marks; (c) shall
return, within ten (10) days, all bulletins, manuals, and other materials which were supplied by Franchisor
to Franchisee; (d) shall immediately cease operating the Franchised Business using all or any part of the
Licensed Property; (e) immediately pay Franchisor all amounts due and owing hereunder, including any
balance due on outstanding gift cards and Be Our Guest cards (or anything similar), unless Franchisor and
Franchisee agree in writing to other arrangements; (f) promptly alter, modify and change both the exterior
and interior appearance and trade dress of the Franchised Business as required by Franchisor so that it will
be easily distinguished from the standard appearance and trade dress of a Green Mill On The Go restaurant.

14. Termination by Franchisee. If Franchisee is in compliance with this Agreement and
Franchisor breaches any material term or condition of this Agreement and fails to cure such breach within
sixty (60) days after written notice setting forth the nature of such breach is delivered by Franchisee to
Franchisor, Franchisee may terminate this Agreement and the license granted hereby effective ten (10) days
after delivery by Franchisee to Franchisor of a written notice of such failure to cure. Any termination or
attempted termination of this Agreement and the license granted hereby by Franchisee other than as
provided above shall be deemed a material breach of the provisions of this Agreement by Franchisee.
Franchisee’s termination of this Agreement under this Paragraph will not release or modify the post-
termination obligations applicable to Franchisee and the Personal Guarantors under Paragraph 16 of this
Agreement.

15. Termination by Franchisor. Franchisor may terminate this Agreement and the license
granted hereby effective upon delivery of written notice to Franchisee setting forth the reasons for the
termination if:

a. Franchisee fails to open the Franchised Business for business by the Required
Open Date set forth in Paragraph 1 above;

b. Franchisee voluntarily abandons the franchise relationship or the Franchised
Business, or fails to continuously and actively operate the Franchised Business;

C. Franchisee files a voluntary bankruptcy petition or any pleading seeking
reorganization, liquidation or other settlement with creditors under any law which is not dismissed
within thirty (30) days, or Franchisee admits or fails to contest any such pleading filed against it or
Franchisee is adjudicated as bankrupt or insolvent, or a receiver or other custodian is appointed for
all or any substantial part of the assets of Franchisee;

d. Franchisee assigns for the benefit of creditors or in a similar manner disposes of
all or any substantial part of the assets of the Franchised Business or admits an inability to pay the
obligations of the Franchised Business as they become due;

e. Franchisee or any of its owners is convicted or enters a plea of guilty or no contest
to any charge of violating any law relating to the Franchised Business or to any felony (regardless
of the nature of the charges);

f. Franchisee commits any act which, in the reasonable judgment of Franchisor,
impairs the goodwill associated with the Licensed Property or impairs or tends to impair the
reputation of Franchisee or any owner;
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g. Franchisee or any of its owners make any material misrepresentation on its
franchise application.

h. The Franchised to go restaurant is ordered closed by any state or local authorities
for health or public safety reasons;

i Franchisee uses the Licensed Property (including confidential information
provided by Franchisor to Franchisee for the purpose of operating the Franchised Business) in an
unauthorized manner;

J. Franchisee commits an unauthorized transfer or assignment in violation of
Paragraph 17 of this Agreement;

k. Franchisee, on three (3) or more occasions within any period of twelve (12)
consecutive months, fails to submit when due reports or financial statements or fails to make any
payments due to Franchisor or any supplier of the Franchised Business whether or not such failure
is corrected after notice thereof; or

. It reasonably appears to Franchisor that Franchisee has intentionally under
reported the royalties and/or Advertising Fees payable by Franchisee pursuant to this Agreement
for any period.

In addition to the above rights of termination, Franchisor may terminate this Agreement and the
license granted hereby after giving written notice to the Franchisee setting forth the reasons for the
termination thirty (30) days in advance of termination if:

a. Franchisee suffers termination or cancellation of or fails to renew or extend the
lease or sublease of the Franchised Location or otherwise fails to maintain possession of the
Franchised Location unless Franchisee can relocate its Franchised Business within a reasonable
time to a new location acceptable to Franchisor in its sole business judgment;

b. Franchisee fails to obtain a liquor license for the Franchised Business within six
(6) months of the date of this Agreement or if Franchisee loses its liquor license for any reason;

C. Franchisee violates paragraph 21 of this Agreement by failing to maintain the
required insurance coverage and does not correct such failure within thirty (30) days after receiving
written notice thereof from Franchisor;

d. Franchisor’s audit discloses an understatement of royalties and/or Advertising
Fees payable by Franchisee pursuant to this Agreement and Franchisee fails to pay to Franchisor
the royalties and/or Advertising Fees and interest due thereon after notice of such understatement;

e. Franchisee fails to pay when due any amounts payable to Franchisor pursuant to
the provisions of this Agreement or any other Agreement with Franchisor or payable to any creditor
or supplier of the Franchised Business, and Franchisee fails to make such payments after notice of
such failure to pay;

f. Franchisee fails to comply with any applicable state or federal law or fails to pay
any local, state or federal taxes when due;
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g. Franchisee fails to comply with any other provision of this Agreement or any
specification, standard or operating procedure prescribed by Franchisor and Franchisee does not
correct such failure within thirty (30) days after receiving notice thereof from Franchisor;

h. Franchisee or any of its affiliates default in the payment or performance of any of
their respective obligations to Franchisor arising under any other agreement between Franchisee or
such affiliate and Franchisor or any such agreement is terminated by Franchisor;

i Franchisee fails to spend the amounts for approved local advertising, marketing
and promotions at the times required by paragraph 8 hereof; or

J- Any franchise agreement or license agreement applicable to any hotel, motel or
other lodging property in which Franchised Business is located or which is immediately adjacent
to the Franchised Business expires or is terminated.

16. Secrecy and Covenants Not to Compete. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that
Franchisor and/or Licensor is/are the owner(s) of the Licensed Property, including any and all manuals
provided and to be provided by Franchisor to Franchisee pursuant to this Agreement and that such Licensed
Property shall remain the sole and exclusive property of Franchisor and/or Licensor at all times. Franchisee
further acknowledges and agrees that the Licensed Property, including the contents of the manuals, recipes,
processes and methods provided or disclosed by Franchisor to Franchisee hereunder contain confidential
and proprietary information of Franchisor and/or Licensor. Accordingly, Franchisee agrees that it shall keep
the contents of all manuals, all recipes, processes and methods provided or disclosed by Franchisor to
Franchisee pursuant to this Agreement secret and shall not divulge, disclose, or reveal such information to
any person except for such disclosure to Franchisee’s employees as may be reasonably necessary in the
course of their employment. In addition, Franchisee shall require its on-site managers, as a condition to
their employment, to sign a non-disclosure and non-competition agreement with Franchisor in such form
as Franchisor may reasonably require to protect Franchisor’s and/or Licensor’s rights in and to the Licensed
Property.

Franchisee and the Personal Guarantors under this Agreement hereinafter provided for (the
“Personal Guarantors”), will not, during the term of this Agreement, directly or indirectly own, operate,
engage in, have any interest in, or assist any person or entity engaged in any other to go restaurant business
which offers products or services that are similar to or competitive with the pizza and/or food products
contained on our then-current standard menu.

Neither the Franchisee nor the Personal Guarantors will, for a period of one year after the expiration
or termination of this Agreement, directly or indirectly as an individual, owner, sole proprietor, founder,
associate, promoter, partner, joint venturer, member, shareholder, officer, director, trustee, manager,
employer, employee, licensor, licensee, principal, agent, representative, investor or otherwise, own,
operate, engage in, have any interest in or assist any person or entity engaged in any to go restaurant
business which (1) offers products and services that are similar to or competitive with the pizza and related
food products contained on our then-current standard menu, and (2) is located within the same metropolitan
statistical area as the Franchised Location. Franchisee and the Personal Guarantors hereby expressly agree
that the one year period and the geographic area of the foregoing restrictive covenants are reasonable and
necessary to protect Franchisor if this Agreement expires or is terminated for any reason. In the event that
any of the restrictive covenants contained in this Agreement shall be found by a court of competent
jurisdiction to be unreasonable by reason of its extending for too great a period of time or over too great a
geographic area or by reason of its being too extensive in any other respect, then such restrictive covenant
shall be deemed modified to the minimum extent necessary to make it reasonable and enforceable under
the circumstances.
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Franchisee and the Personal Guarantors, if any, agree that damages alone cannot adequately
compensate Franchisor if there is a violation or threatened violation of any of the restrictive covenants
contained in this Agreement and that injunctive relief is essential for the protection of Franchisor.
Franchisee and the Personal Guarantors therefore agree that in case of any violation or threatened violation
of any of the restrictive covenants contained in this Agreement by her/it/them, Franchisor shall have the
right to seek injunctive relief without posting any bond or security whatsoever, in addition to all other
remedies that may be available to Franchisor hereunder or at equity or law.

17. Assignment. Franchisor may assign freely this Agreement, including any interest therein,
to any third party. The parties further acknowledge that one of the inducements to Franchisor to enter into
this Agreement is Franchisor’s reliance upon the ability and integrity of Franchisee or its shareholders,
partners or other owners. Accordingly, Franchisee agrees that it shall not sell, assign or otherwise transfer,
in whole or in part, this Agreement or Franchisee’s rights or obligations hereunder or the assets and
properties comprising the Franchised Business without first obtaining the written consent of Franchisor for
such sale, assignment or other transfer. If Franchisee is a corporation, partnership or other entity, the
stockholders, partners or equity owners of Franchisee shall not directly or indirectly sell, assign or otherwise
transfer (in a single transaction or in a series of transactions) shares of capital stock, partnership interests
or other equity interests in the Franchisee representing a majority of the voting power represented by the
issued and outstanding shares of capital stock, partnership interests or other equity interests in Franchisee
to persons or entities other than those holding stock, partnership interests or other equity interests in
Franchisee as of the date of this Agreement without Franchisor’s prior written consent. Franchisor shall
not unreasonably withhold its consent to any such sale, assignment or other transfer, subject to Franchisee’s
compliance with any or all of the conditions set forth below which Franchisor may, in its sole business
judgment, impose. The conditions which Franchisor may impose prior to the time of sale, assignment or
other transfer, including any transfer by a trustee in bankruptcy or transfer upon death or disability, are as
follows:

a. All of Franchisee’s accrued monetary obligations to Franchisor shall have been
satisfied, and Franchisee shall not be in default under this Agreement.

b. The purchaser, assignee or transferee shall have been approved by Franchisor and
shall have demonstrated to Franchisor’s satisfaction that she/he/it meets Franchisor’s managerial,
financial, and business standards for new franchisees, possesses a good business reputation and
credit rating, and has the aptitude and ability to operate the Franchised Business;

C. Prior to the date of transfer, the purchaser, assignee or transferee or his/its on-site
general manager shall have successfully completed any training prescribed by Franchisor.

d. The purchaser, assignee or transferee shall have paid to Franchisor a nonrefundable
assignment fee equal to twenty percent (20%) of Franchisor’s then-current initial franchise fee, plus
the cost of any required training of the purchaser, assignee or transferee or his/its on-site general
manager, as determined by the Franchisor.

e. The purchaser, assignee or transferee must execute the Franchisor’s then-current
form of franchise agreement and such other ancillary agreements as Franchisor may require.

f. Franchisee, and each of its owners and Personal Guarantors, must sign a general
release of all claims arising out of or relating to this Agreement, the Franchised Business or the
parties’ business relationship, in the form designated by Franchisor, releasing Franchisor and its
affiliates.
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18. Right of First Refusal and First Option. Neither Franchisee nor its owners shall sell,
assign or otherwise transfer Franchisee’s rights in (a) this Agreement; (b) the real estate or leasehold interest
applicable to the Franchised Location; (c) the fixtures, equipment or other assets of the Franchised Business;
or (d) Franchisee (if Franchisee is a corporation, partnership or other entity) without first giving Franchisor
a right of first refusal to purchase such property or rights (or stock, partnership or other equity interest) on
comparable terms and conditions offered by Franchisee (or the stockholder, partners or equity owners of
the Franchisee) to another or offered by a bona fide buyer and acceptable to Franchisee (or the stockholder,
partners or equity owners of the Franchisee). This right of first refusal shall be offered to Franchisor in a
written notice containing all material terms and conditions, giving Franchisor thirty (30) days from its
receipt of the notice to elect whether or not to accept such offer. If Franchisor does not exercise its rights
under this paragraph 18, Franchisee shall remain subject to the conditions contained in paragraph 17 and
shall have sixty (60) days within which to consummate the transaction on the terms and conditions set forth
in the notice to Franchisor.

19. Death or Incapacity of Franchisee. If Franchisee dies and his or her personal
representative does not desire to sell the Franchised Business and Franchisee’s interest herein and if, under
controlling local law, the Franchised Business and Franchisee’s interest in this Agreement is distributable
to heirs or legatees who are members of Franchisee’s immediate family and who otherwise would qualify
as assignees under paragraph 17 hereof, then an assignment of the Franchised Business and Franchisee’s
interest in this Agreement by operation of law or a will shall not be deemed in violation of this Agreement,
provided such heirs or legatees assume all of the Franchisee’s duties and obligations under this Agreement
and execute the Franchisor’s then-current form of franchise agreement. Similarly, if Franchisee is
incapacitated, an assignment of the Franchised Business and Franchisee’s interest in this Agreement to a
conservator, guardian or other legal representative will not be deemed in violation of this Agreement if such
conservator, guardian or other legal representative assumes all of the Franchisee’s duties and obligations
hereunder and executes the Franchisor’s then-current form of franchise agreement. If such a personal
representative, heir, legatee, conservator, guardian or other legal representative attempts to sell, assign or
otherwise dispose of the Franchised Business or Franchisee’s interest herein, such a sale, assignment or
disposition will be subject to the restrictions on assignment and the rights of first refusal contained in this
Agreement. In the case of either the death or incapacity of Franchisee, if Franchisee acted as the on-site
general manager of the Franchised Business or if the heirs, legatees or personal representative of Franchisee
adopt new management, the new management will be required to complete Franchisor’s management
training program and pay any fees imposed by Franchisor for the program.

20. Failure to Enforce. Failure of Franchisor to enforce any of the terms or conditions of this
Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of Franchisor’s right to subsequently enforce such provisions.

21. Indemnification and Insurance. Franchisee and the Personal Guarantors hereby jointly
and severally covenant and agree to pay and perform and indemnify and hold Franchisor, together with its
officers, directors, employees, agents, representatives and affiliates and each of their respective heirs,
personal representatives, successors and assigns, harmless from, against and in respect of any and all losses,
costs, expenses (including without limitation, reasonable attorneys’ fees and disbursements of counsel),
liabilities, damages, fines, penalties, charges, judgments, settlements, claims, and causes of action that any
of them may at any time suffer, sustain, incur or become subject to, arising out of, based upon or resulting
from or on account of the design, construction and/or operation of the Franchised Business by or on behalf
of Franchisee, and/or the failure of the design, construction and/or operation of the Franchised Business to
comply with all applicable laws, regulations and ordinances, including, but not limited to, the Americans
With Disabilities Act of 1990 (the “ADA”).

Franchisee shall at all times during the term of this Agreement maintain in force and at its sole
expense comprehensive general liability insurance with a minimum limit of $1,000,000 (including but not
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limited to coverage for personal injury, products and contractual liability), motor vehicle liability insurance
(including, but not limited to, hired and non-owned coverage) property insurance (including, but not limited
to, fire, extended coverage, vandalism and malicious mischief), worker’s compensation insurance as
required by applicable law, umbrella insurance with a minimum limit of $3,000,000 that is required to sit
over automobile liability, employer’s liability, liquor liability, and general liability, dram shop insurance as
required by applicable law and such other insurance as Franchisor may from time to time reasonably
require, under one or more policies of insurance containing coverage, from time to time prescribed by
Franchisor. Franchisee’s insurance coverage shall also be in compliance at all times with the terms of the
Franchisee’s lease for its Franchised Location. All such insurance policies shall be issued by an insurance
carrier rated A or better by Alfred M. Best & Company, Inc. All comprehensive general liability and motor
vehicle liability insurance policies shall name Franchisor as an additional insured and shall provide that
Franchisor shall receive thirty (30) days prior written notice of termination, expiration, cancellation,
modification or reduction in coverage of any such policy. All liability policies and workers compensation
insurance must include a waiver of subrogation. Franchisee shall submit to Franchisor annually a copy of
the certificate of or evidence of the renewal or extension of each such insurance policy or any modification
to any such insurance policy.

If Franchisee at any time fails or refuses to maintain in effect any insurance coverage required by
Franchisor or to furnish satisfactory evidence thereof, Franchisor, at its option and in addition to its other
rights and remedies hereunder, may obtain such insurance coverage on behalf of Franchisee, and Franchisee
shall promptly execute any applications or other forms or instruments required to obtain any such insurance
and pay to Franchisor on demand any costs and premiums incurred by Franchisor in connection therewith.
Franchisee’s obligation to obtain and maintain the insurance described herein shall not be limited in any
way by reason of any insurance maintained by Franchisor.

22. Designated Territory; Reservation of Rights. During the term of this Agreement,
Franchisor shall not, so long as Franchisee is in full compliance with the terms and conditions of this
Agreement, operate or grant others the right to operate a Green Mill On the Go restaurant at any location
within the geographical area outlined on the map attached hereto as Exhibit A (the “Territory”). Franchisee
covenants and agrees that, without the prior written consent of Franchisor, it will not directly or indirectly
sell pizza or related food products from the Franchised Business for delivery to a location outside of the
Territory.

Franchisor retains all rights that are not expressly granted to Franchisee under this Agreement.
Further, Franchisor may, among other things, on any terms and conditions Franchisor deems advisable,
without compensation to any franchisee, and without granting Franchisee any rights therein:

a. establish and/or license others to establish franchised or company-owned to go
restaurants at any location outside the Territory regardless of the proximity of such to go restaurants
to the Territory;

b. merge with, acquire or become associated with (“Merger/Acquisition Activity”)
any businesses or stores of any kind under other systems and/or marks, which businesses and to go
restaurants may convert to or operate under the Service Marks and may offer or sell menu items,
products and services that are the same as or similar to the menu items offered at or from the to go
restaurant and which to go restaurant may be located anywhere inside or outside of the Territory;

C. operate or license others to operate to go restaurants using different marks than the
Service Marks which may feature similar or competitive menu items anywhere within or outside
of the Territory; and
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d. offer, sell and distribute for itself and/or license others to offer, sell and distribute
through franchised businesses or any other method of distribution, both inside and outside the
Territory, menu items the same as or different from the menu items offered under the System and
which are offered and distributed under the marks different from the Service Marks through any
distribution channels or methods. The distribution channels or methods include, without limitation,
grocery stores, club stores, convenience stores, wholesale, business or industry locations (e.g.
manufacturing site, office building), military installations, military commissaries or the Internet (or
any other existing or future form of electronic commerce).

Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that certain locations within and outside the Territory are by
their nature unique and separate in character from sites generally developed as Green Mill On The Go
restaurants. As a result, Franchisee agrees that the following locations (“Special Sites”) are excluded from
the Territory and Franchisor has the right to develop, license or franchise such locations: (1) military bases,
(2) public transportation facilities, including, without limitation, airports and other transportation
terminals, (3) sports facilities, including race tracks, (4) student unions or other similar buildings on college
or university campuses, (5) amusement and theme parks, and (6) community and special events.

Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that the
Franchisee shall not have the right to object to the establishment of any Franchisor-owned or other
franchised to go restaurants featuring pizza and/or related food products at any location or locations
outside of the Territory. However, if the Franchisee objects to the establishment of any such to go
restaurant outside of the Territory, the Franchisor may require the Franchisee to obtain and submit to the
Franchisor at the Franchisee’s expense an economic impact study showing the effect of the proposed new
to go restaurant on the Franchised Business. The Franchisor may, in its sole business judgment, take the
results of such economic impact study into account in approving the location of the proposed new to go
restaurant. Any such economic impact study shall be prepared by an expert mutually agreed upon by the
Franchisor and the Franchisee.

23. Refurbishing the Franchised Business. Franchisee agrees to effect such refurbishing,
within twelve (12) months of its receipt of notice from the Franchisor, of its Franchised Business (in
addition to regular maintenance and repair) as the Franchisor from time to time reasonably requires to
maintain or improve the appearance and efficient operation of the Franchised Business and/or increase its
sales potential or to comply with the Franchisor’s then current requirements with respect to design, decor
and equipment. Refurbishing may include: (i) replacement of worn out or obsolete equipment, fixtures,
furniture and signs; (ii) the substitution or addition of new or improved equipment, fixtures, furniture and
signs; (iii) redecorating; (iv) repair of the interior and exterior of the premises and repair and resurfacing of
parking facilities; and (v) structural modifications and remodeling of the premises. Franchisee will not be
required to undertake a major refurbishing or upgrade of the to go restaurant more than once every seven
(7) years. Any such refurbishing/upgrade will be of Franchisee’s sole cost and expenses in accordance with
Franchisor’s standards, which may be modified by Franchisor at any time. The standards for completing
the major upgrade will be the standards then in effect. Franchisee acknowledges that the costs and expenses
of such remodeling or upgrading, and for completing the major upgrade, are not capped or limited in any
way.

24. Governing Law; Dispute Resolution; Venue for Disputes. Franchisor and Franchisee
agree as follows:

@) Except to the extent governed by federal law or regulation, including but not limited to the
United States Trademark Act of 1946, 15 U.S.C. 88 1050-1126, as amended, this Agreement shall be
governed by the laws of the state in which the Franchised Location is located, as defined in paragraph 1 of
this Agreement. If all or any portion of this Agreement shall be held to violate any law, regulation, or

19
2024 Green Mill On The Go Franchise Agreement



ordinance of the United States or of any state or municipality applicable to this Agreement, such provision
shall be deemed to be of no force and effect, and the balance of this Agreement shall be enforced as if such
provision had not been included herein. Franchisee waives, to the fullest extent permitted by law, the rights
and protections that might be provided through the laws of any state relating to franchises or business
opportunities, other than those of the state in which the Franchised Location is located. Except for
mediation and arbitration proceedings under Section 24 (b), Franchisor and Franchisee expressly
acknowledge and agree that any litigation between the parties related to this Agreement, the Franchised
Business and/or the business relationship between Franchisor and Franchisee (including the Personal
Guarantors) shall be commenced and maintained only in the applicable state or federal court in Minnesota.

(b) Mediation; Arbitration.

(i Except for disputes that involve injunctive relief or specific performance actions covered
under Section 24(c), prior to either party filing arbitration, the parties agree to mediate any dispute between
Franchisee and Franchisor or any of our or your affiliates, including, without limitation, Franchisee’s
owners and guarantors, arising under, out of, in connection with or in relation to this Agreement, any lease
or sublease for the Franchised Business or Franchised Location, the parties’ relationship, or the business
generally. Mediation will be conducted in the county in which Franchisor’s headquarters are then located
(currently, St. Paul, Minnesota), or at such other place as may be mutually agreeable to the parties, by a
mediator or mediation program agreed to by the parties. Persons authorized to settle the dispute must attend
any mediation session. The parties agree to participate in the mediation proceedings in good faith with the
intention of resolving the dispute if at all possible within 30 days of the notice from the party seeking to
initiate the mediation procedures. If not resolved within 30 days, or if one party refuses to participate in
mediation as outlined herein, the parties are free to pursue arbitration. Mediation is a compromise
negotiation for purposes of the federal and state rules of evidence, and the entire process is confidential.
The parties agree that each party will pay fifty percent (50%) of the total of mediation fees and all costs
associated with mediation.

(i) Except as provided in subparagraph 12.B., all disputes between Franchisee and Franchisor
or any of our or your affiliates, including, without limitation, Franchisee’s owners and guarantors, that are
not resolved through mediation as provided above must be submitted to binding arbitration under the
authority of the Federal Arbitration Act and must be arbitrated in accordance with the then-current rules
and procedures and under the auspices of the American Arbitration Association. The arbitration will be
heard by a single arbitrator with at least three years’ experience in franchising or franchise law and must
take place in the county in which our headquarters are then located (currently, St. Paul, Minnesota), or at
such other place as may be mutually agreeable to the parties. Any arbitration must be resolved on an
individual basis and not joined as part of a class action or the claims of other parties. The arbitrator must
follow the law and not disregard the terms of this Agreement. The decision of the arbitrator will be final
and binding on all parties to the dispute; however, the arbitrators may not, under any circumstances: (i)
stay the effectiveness of any pending termination of this Agreement; (ii) assess punitive or exemplary
damages; or (iii) make any award that extends, modifies or suspends any lawful term of this Agreement or
any reasonable standard of business performance that we set. A judgment may be entered upon the
arbitration award by any court of competent jurisdiction.

(© Injunctive Relief. Notwithstanding Section 24(b) above, Franchisee recognizes that the failure
on the part of a single franchisee to comply with the terms of its agreement could cause irreparable damage to
Franchisor and/or to some or all of our other franchisees. Therefore, it is mutually agreed that in the event of
a breach or threatened breach of any of the terms of this Agreement by either party, the non-breaching party
shall be relieved of its obligation to mediate and arbitrate under Section 24(b) and will forthwith be entitled to
an injunction restraining such breach or to a decree of specific performance, without showing or proving any
actual damage, together with recovery of reasonable attorneys’ fees and other costs incurred in obtaining said
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equitable relief, until such time as a final and binding determination is made by the court. The foregoing
equitable remedies are in addition to, and not in lieu of, all other remedies or rights that the parties might
otherwise have by virtue of any breach of this Agreement by the other party. Finally, Franchisor and its
affiliates shall be relieved of the obligation to mediate and arbitrate under Section 24(b) and shall have right to
commence a civil action against Franchisee or take other appropriate action for the following reasons: to collect
sums of money due to Franchisor; to compel Franchisee’s compliance with trademark standards and
requirements to protect the goodwill of the Trademarks; to compel Franchisee to compile and submit required
reports to Franchisor; or to permit evaluations or audits authorized by this Agreement.

25. Notices. Any notice required by the terms of this Agreement shall be deemed to have been
sufficiently given if sent postage prepaid, registered or certified mail, or by reputable overnight delivery
courier, addressed in the following manner:

Franchisor: Green Mill On The Go, LLC
1342 Grand Avenue
St. Paul, Minnesota 55105
Attn: Mr. Paul Dzubnar

Franchisee:

or to such other address as may be provided by either party upon written notice to the other party.

26. Receipt of Offering Materials. Franchisee acknowledges that the grant of the license
contained hereby may be governed by various federal or state laws, rules and regulations and acknowledges
that (a) Franchisee has received Franchisor’s Franchise Disclosure Document (“FDD”) required under such
laws, rules and regulations, and (b) that Franchisee has had an opportunity to review such FDD and to
obtain from Franchisor’s representatives any additional information Franchisee deemed necessary in order
to evaluate its decision to execute this Agreement. Franchisee further acknowledges that no information
received by her/him/it materially differed (except for updated data of information given as of a certain date
in the FDD) from the information contained in the FDD and that no representation inconsistent with or in
addition to the information contained in the FDD has been made to induce Franchisee to enter into this
Agreement.

217. Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement of the parties hereto
with respect to the subject matter hereof, except for any sublease or other ancillary agreement which may
be entered into with respect to the Franchised Location (into which all prior negotiations, commitments,
representations, and undertakings are merged), and no modification or amendment of this Agreement shall
be binding upon the parties unless executed in writing by all the parties hereto. Nothing in this Agreement
or in any related agreement is intended to disclaim the representations Franchisor made in the FDD that
was furnished to you.

28. Attorneys’ Fees. In the event of an actual or threatened breach or violation by Franchisee
of any of the terms or conditions of this Agreement, Franchisee agrees to pay all costs, expenses and
reasonable attorney’s fees incurred by Franchisor in pursuing any of its rights or remedies with respect to
such actual or threatened breach or violation, in addition to the actual damages sustained by the Franchisor
as a result thereof.

29. Marketing. Prior to the completion of the training of Franchisee’s on-site general
manager, Franchisee shall furnish Franchisor with a marketing plan for the first six (6) periods of operations
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of the Franchised Business in the format then approved by Franchisor. On or before November 30 of each
year during the Initial Term, the Franchisee shall submit to the Franchisor a marketing plan for the
Franchised Business for the ensuing calendar year. Each such marketing plan must be in such form as the
Franchisor may reasonably require and shall be revised as reasonably requested by the Franchisor prior to
implementation.

30. Operating Budget. Prior to purchasing or signing a lease for the Franchised Location,
Franchisee shall furnish Franchisor with a 4-4-5 accounting period operating budget or pro forma financial
statement for the Franchised Business in the format then approved by Franchisor. In addition, on or before
December 15 of each year during the Initial Term, the Franchisee shall provide the Franchisor with an
annual budget for the ensuing calendar year in such form as the Franchisor may reasonably require.

31. Computerized Point of Sale and Other Systems. At Franchisee’s option, Franchisee may
purchase and use any computer system that Franchisor develops or selects for the Franchised Business,
including all future updates, supplements and modifications (the “Computer System”). The Computer System
may include all hardware and software used in the operation of the Franchised Business, including electronic
point-of-sale cash registers and back office programs used to record, analyze and report sales, labor, inventory
and tax information. The computer software package developed for use in the Franchised Business may
include proprietary software. Franchisee may be required to license the proprietary software from Franchisor,
an affiliate or a third party and Franchisee also may be required to pay a software licensing or user fee in
connection with Franchisee’s use of the proprietary software. At Franchisee’s option, Franchisee may
purchase and use Restaurant 365, Franchisor’s approved accounting and inventory software. With this system
Franchisor is following the 4-4-5 period accounting method. All right, title and interest in the software will
remain with the licensor of the software. The computer hardware component of the Computer System must
conform to specifications Franchisor develops. Franchisor reserves the right to designate a single source from
whom you must purchase the Computer System. Franchisee may enroll in the Ingage Infinity Service
Program, an approved technology provider for Franchisee’s POS, Merchant Services, MSP, Online Ordering,
Wi-Fi, Kitchen Display System (KDS), and all other connected services, all in accordance with the then
current Ingage |.T. Agreement. Franchisee is required to use Ingage I.T. for all gift processing and loyalty
services.

Franchisee will at all times permit the Franchisor to access the records and information on the
Franchisee’s computerized point of sale system and other computer systems, either by direct access, by
telephonic modem access, by providing disk copies or by such other means as may be prescribed from time
to time by the Franchisor. Franchisee will, at its sole expense, obtain and maintain at all times during the
term of this Agreement, such other computer or information processing equipment as may from time to
time be required by the Franchisor for use in the Franchised Business, including, but not limited to, a
Kitchen Display System (KDS). All such computer equipment, both hardware and software, must meet
then-current standards and specifications established by the Franchisor. Franchisee will, at its sole expense,
obtain and maintain at all times during the term of this Agreement, electronic telephone facsimile (“fax’)
equipment, electronic mail equipment, and such other telecommunications or information processing
equipment as may from time to time be required by the Franchisor for use in the operation of the Franchised
Business. All such telecommunications equipment must meet then-current standards and specifications
established by the Franchisor. Franchisee will, at its sole expense, obtain and maintain at all times during
the term of this Agreement, such security system equipment and services as may from time to time be
required by the Franchisor for the protection of the Franchised Business and the Franchisee’s employees
and customers. All security system equipment and services must meet then-current standards and
specifications established by the Franchisor. Franchisee will, at its sole expense, obtain and maintain at all
times during the term of this Agreement, such accounting and inventory software as may from time to time
be required by the Franchisor.
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32. Compliance with Plans and Specifications. The Franchised Business must be developed,
constructed, renovated, furnished and equipped (collectively the “Construction Work™) in strict compliance
with: (1) the Franchisor’s then-current approved standard plans and specifications consisting of conceptual
drawings, including floor plans and general details for the development of working drawings for the
Franchised Business (the “Then-Current Standard Plans™); (2) any minimum design standards and
specifications adopted from time to time by the Franchisor (the “Minimum Design Standards™); (3) the
Detailed Plans (as hereinafter defined); and (4) all applicable laws, regulations and ordinances, including,
but not limited to, the ADA. The Franchisor will provide to the Franchisee a copy of the Franchisor’s Then-
Current Standard Plans and any Minimum Design Standards and the Franchisee will, at its sole cost and
expense, diligently cause complete and detailed building plans and specifications for the Construction
Work, including, but not limited to, site plans, civil engineering plans, structural, mechanical and electrical
plans, and the Franchisee’s proposed furnishings, fixtures, equipment, signs, furniture and building
furnished (collectively, the “Detailed Plans”), to be prepared and certified by a licensed architect approved
in writing by Franchisor. The Franchisee shall cause its architect to provide the Franchisor with copies of
all preliminary and final Detailed Plans for the Franchised Business for review and approval by the
Franchisor. Within fifteen (15) days of receipt of such Detailed Plans, the Franchisor will review the same
to determine if they are consistent with the Franchisor’s Then-Current Standard Plans and whether they
comply with the Franchisor’s Minimum Design Standards, if any, and will provide the Franchisee with
written comments and a list of any recommended and/or required changes. In the event the Franchisor
requires the Franchisee to make changes to its Detailed Plans, the Franchisee shall prepare or cause to be
prepared revised, Detailed Plans to incorporate such required changes. The Franchisee shall submit a copy
of such revised Detailed Plans to the Franchisor and the Franchisor will, within fifteen (15) days of receipt
thereof, review the same and provide the Franchisee with any further written comments and recommended
and/or required changes which it may have. The Franchisee shall not commence the Construction Work
until its Detailed Plans have been reviewed and approved by the Franchisor in writing. Franchisee’s
architect shall accept this Agreement as Franchisee’s consent, authorization and instruction for such
architect to provide copies of the preliminary and final Detailed Plans to the Franchisor and to discuss the
same with the Franchisor’s employees or other representatives. All variances from the Then-Current
Standard Plans, the Minimum Design Standards, if any, and the Franchisee’s Detailed Plans which have
been approved by the Franchisor must have the prior written approval of the Franchisor, which approval
shall not be unreasonably withheld. Any such variances approved by Franchisor shall only apply with
respect to the Franchised Business at the Franchised Location and in no event may the Franchisee
incorporate any such variances into any future franchised business which it may construct pursuant to a
separate Franchise Agreement with the Franchisor, unless such variance is again approved by the Franchisor
pursuant to such Franchise Agreement. Any unauthorized variance from the Then-Current Standard Plans,
the Minimum Design Standards, if any, or the Detailed Plans which have been approved by the Franchisor
will be a material breach of this Agreement.

33. Construction Work. Prior to the commencement of the Construction Work, Franchisee
shall submit to Franchisor the resume of the general contractor and/or any major subcontractors for the
Construction Work and such additional information concerning their experience and financial responsibility
as Franchisor shall reasonably request. The Construction Work, including the ordering of furniture, fixtures
and/or equipment, shall not commence until Franchisor has approved such contractors in writing.
Franchisee will be solely responsible for ascertaining that the Construction Work is in compliance with the
Then-Current Standard Plans, any Minimum Design Standards, the Detailed Plans approved in writing by
Franchisor, and all applicable laws, regulations and ordinances, including, but not limited to, the ADA. The
Franchisee will be solely responsible for complying with all laws and for acquiring, at its expense, all
licenses and building permits required in connection with the Construction Work. The Franchisor may, at
its expense, view the Franchised Business during the performance of the Construction Work at such times
as it deems necessary for the purpose of determining the progress of the Construction Work and to ascertain
whether the interior and exterior of the Franchised Business conform to the Then-Current Standard Plans
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and any Minimum Design Standards. Neither the Franchisor’s approval of the Detailed Plans, nor the
Franchisor’s viewing of the Franchised Business during the performance of the Construction Work will be
for the purpose of determining that the Construction Work is being performed according to the approved
Detailed Plans, in a good workmanlike manner or in compliance with any applicable laws, regulations or
ordinances, including the ADA. Accordingly, the Franchisor will have no responsibility to the Franchisee
or any other person if the Construction Work is not performed by the contractor (1) in compliance with the
Detailed Plans which have been approved by the Franchisor, (2) in compliance with applicable laws,
regulations or ordinances, including, but not limited to, the ADA, or (3) in a good workmanlike manner.
The Franchisee agrees to promptly replace or change at its expense any Construction Work which does not
comply with the Then-Current Standard Plans, any Minimum Design Standards, the Detailed Plans
approved by Franchisor and/or applicable laws, regulations or ordinances, including, but not limited to, the
ADA.

34. Pre-Opening Inspection. Franchisee shall not display any “Green Mill” signage at the
Franchised Location or open the Franchised Business and commence initial business operations until (i) the
Franchisor has inspected the Franchised Business and has given the Franchisee written approval to open
for business, (ii) the Franchisor has completed the Franchisor’s pre-opening inspection checklist with
respect to the Franchised Location, and (iii) the Franchisee’s licensed architect who certified the Detailed
Plans or general contractor who constructed the Franchised Business certifies to the Franchisor in a form
reasonably acceptable to the Franchisor that the Franchised Business complied with the ADA. In the event
the Franchisor’s inspection or such certification reveals that the Franchised Business is not in compliance
with the Then-Current Standard Plans, any Minimum Design Standards, the Detailed Plans approved by
the Franchisor, the ADA or is otherwise not ready to open for business, the Franchisee agrees to diligently
remedy any such deficiencies communicated by the Franchisor to the Franchisee in writing. Franchisee
shall not open the Franchised Business for business until such deficiencies have been remedied to the
reasonable satisfaction of Franchisor and Franchisor has given the Franchisee its written approval to open
for business. Franchisee agrees to open the Franchised Business for business within fifteen (15) days after
the Franchisor provides its authorization, but in no event later than the Required Opening Date.

35. Reimbursement of Franchisor for Taxes. Franchisee will pay all state and local taxes,
including, without limitation, taxes denominated as income or franchise taxes, that may be imposed on
Franchisor as a result of our receipt or accrual of the Initial Franchise Fee, the Royalty Fee, the Advertising
Fee, and other fees that are referenced in Franchisee’s agreements with us, whether assessed against
Franchisee through withholding or other means or whether paid by Franchisor directly. In either case,
Franchisee will pay to Franchisor (and to the appropriate governmental authority) such additional amounts
as are necessary to provide Franchisor, after taking such taxes into account (including any additional taxes
imposed on such additional amounts), with the same amounts that Franchisor would have received or
accrued had such withholding or other payment, whether by Franchisee or by Franchisor, not been required.
The Franchisee will be notified in writing when the Franchisor is entitled to reimbursement for the payment
of such taxes and, in that event, the Franchisee will pay the Franchisor the amount specified within ten (10)
days of receipt by the Franchisee of written notice from the Franchisor. The provisions of this Paragraph
35 do not apply to any federal or Minnesota income tax Franchisor has to pay.

36. Gaming Machines; Tickets, Entertainment. The Franchisee will not permit any video
or electronic games, dart games, pool or billiards tables, or machines (including pinball and slot machines)
to be used on the premises of the Franchised Business other than those approved by the Franchisor in
writing. The Franchisee will not keep or offer for sale or allow employees to offer for sale at or near the
Franchised Business any tickets, subscriptions, pools, chances or raffles, lottery, tickets or pull tabs without
the Franchisor’s prior written approval. The Franchisee will not permit live music, Karaoke, disc jockeys
or any other form of entertainment within its Franchised Business without the prior written consent of the
Franchisor.
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37. Electronic Funds Transfer. All amounts due and payable to Franchisor hereunder shall
be made via electronic funds transfer (“EFT”) initiated by Franchisor upon the bank account designated by
Franchisee for such transactions. Franchisee shall execute the authorization attached as Exhibit B
contemporaneous with the execution of this Agreement. Franchisee shall have sufficient funds in its account
for the EFT withdrawal on each payment due date and shall advise Franchisor in advance of any change in
its bank, financial institution or account.

38. Personal Guarantors. All persons owning any interest in Franchisee (if Franchisee is an
entity), or all individual owners of the Franchised Business, must execute the form of undertaking and
guarantee at the end of this Agreement. Any person or entity that at any time after the date of this Agreement
meets the ownership requirements set forth in the preceding sentence must execute the form of undertaking
and guarantee at the end of this Agreement within 10 days from the date that such person or entity acquires
such ownership interest. Before approving and entering into any transaction that would result in the change
of ownership in Franchisee, Franchisee must notify such person or entity about the contents of this
Paragraph and otherwise comply with the transfer conditions outlined elsewhere in this Agreement.

39. Interpretation of Rights and Obligations. The following provisions apply to and govern
the interpretation of this Agreement, the parties’ rights under this Agreement, and the relationship between
the parties:

A. Franchisor’s Rights. Whenever this Agreement provides that Franchisor has a certain
right, that right is absolute and the parties intend that Franchisor’s exercise of that right
will not be subject to any limitation or review. Franchisor has the right to operate,
administrate, develop, and change the Operating System and Marks in any manner that
is not specifically precluded by the provisions of this Agreement.

B. Franchisor’s Reasonable Business Judgment. Whenever Franchisor reserves discretion
in a particular area or where Franchisor agrees to exercise its rights reasonably or in
good faith, Franchisor will satisfy its obligations whenever it exercises Reasonable
Business Judgment in making its decision or exercising its rights. Franchisor’s
decisions or actions will be deemed to be the result of Reasonable Business Judgment,
even if other reasonable or even arguably preferable alternatives are available, if
Franchisor’s decision is intended, in whole or significant part, to promote or benefit
the Green Mill franchise system generally even if the decision or action also promotes
Franchisor’s financial or other individual interest. Examples of items that will promote
or benefit the franchise system include, without limitation, enhancing the value of the
Marks, improving customer service and satisfaction, improving product quality,
improving uniformity, enhancing or encouraging modernization and improving the
competitive position of the Operating System.

40. Jury Waiver. All parties hereby waive any and all rights to a trial by jury in connection
with the enforcement or interpretation by judicial process of any provision of this Agreement, and in
connection with allegations of state or federal statutory violations, fraud, misrepresentation or similar
causes of action or any legal action initiated for the recovery of damages for breach of this Agreement.

41. Waiver of Punitive Damages. Franchisee and its affiliates and Franchisor and its affiliates
agree to waive, to the fullest extent permitted by law, the right to or claim for punitive or exemplary
damages against the other and agree that in the event of any dispute between them, each will be limited to
the recovery of actual damages sustained.
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42. Relationship of the Parties. Franchisor and Franchisee are independent contractors.
Neither party is the agent, legal representatives, partner, subsidiary, joint venture or employee of the other.
Neither party may obligate the other or represent any right to do so. This Agreement does not reflect or
create a fiduciary relationship or a relationship of special trust or confidence. Without limiting the
generality of the foregoing, Franchisor shall have no liability in connection with or related to the products
and services rendered to you by any third party, even if Franchisor required, approved or consented to the
product or serviced or designated or approved supplier.

43. Adaptations and Variances. Complete and detailed uniformity under many varying
conditions may not always be possible, practical or in the best interest of the Green Mill franchise system.
Accordingly, Franchisor has the right to vary the menu items and other standards, specifications and
requirements for any franchised to go restaurant or franchisee based upon the customs or circumstances of
a particular franchise or operating agreement, site or location, population density, business potential, trade
area population, existing business practice, competitive circumstance or any other condition that Franchisor
deems to be of importance to the operation of such to go restaurant or business, franchisee’s business or
franchise system generally. Franchisor is not required to grant to you (Franchisee) a like or other variation
as a result of any variation from standard menus, specifications or requirements granted to any other
franchisee. Franchisee acknowledges that it is aware that Franchisor’s other franchisees operate under a
number of different forms of agreement that were entered into at different times and that, consequently, the
obligations and rights of the parties to other agreements may differ materially in certain instances from
Franchisee’s rights and obligations under this Agreement.

44, Notice of Potential Profit. Franchisor and/or its affiliates may from time to time make
available to Franchisee or require Franchisee to purchase goods, products and/or services for use in the
Franchised Business on the sale of which Franchisor and/or its affiliates may make a profit. Further,
Franchisor and/or its affiliates may from time to time receive consideration from suppliers and/or
manufacturers in respect to sales of goods, products or services to Franchisee or in consideration of services
rendered or rights licensed to such persons. Franchisee agrees that Franchisor and/or its affiliates are entitled
to said profits and/or consideration.

45, Effective Date. The Effective Date of this Agreement is the date referenced in the first
paragraph of this Agreement. If no Effective Date is designated in the first paragraph of this Agreement,
the Effective Date is the date on which we sign this Agreement.

[Signatures appear on the following page.]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the day, month

and year first above written.

FRANCHISOR:

Green Mill On The Go, LLC

By:

Printed Name:

Its:

Date Signed: , 20

2024 Green Mill On The Go Franchise Agreement

FRANCHISEE:
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By:

Printed Name:

Its:

Date Signed: , 20




PERSONAL GUARANTEE

The undersigned individuals represent and warrant that they are all of the shareholders, partners or
equity owners of (the “Franchisee”) or otherwise have a
direct or indirect beneficial interest in the success of the Franchisee. Accordingly, to induce Green Mill On
The Go, LLC, a Minnesota limited liability company (the “Franchisor”), to enter into the Franchise
Agreement dated , 20__, by and between the Franchisor and the Franchisee (the “Franchise
Agreement”) and grant the license to Franchisee provided for therein, each of the undersigned individuals
hereby jointly and severally guarantees the payment and performance of all of the debts, liabilities and
obligations of the Franchisee under the Franchise Agreement and each of the undersigned individuals
hereby jointly and severally agrees to be bound by all of the provisions of the Franchise Agreement.

Each of the undersigned hereby forever waives:
A Acceptance and notice of acceptance by Franchisor of the foregoing undertakings;

B. Notice of demand for payment of any indebtedness or nonperformance of any obligations
hereby guaranteed; and

C. Protest and notice of default as to any party with respect to the indebtedness or
nonperformance of any obligations hereby guaranteed.

Each of the undersigned consents and agrees that:
A His/her direct and immediate liability under this guaranty shall be joint and several.

B. He/she shall make or render any payment or performance required under the Franchise
Agreement upon demand by Franchisor if Franchisee fails or refuses punctually to do so;

C. The liability of the undersigned under this guaranty shall not be extinguished, diminished,
relieved or otherwise affected by any extension of time, credit, waiver or other indulgence which Franchisor
may from time to time grant to Franchisee or to any other person, including without limitation, the
acceptance of any partial payment or performance or the compromise or release of any rights, remedies or
claims; insolvency, the bankruptcy or reorganization of Franchisee; the invalidity, illegality or
unenforceability of all or any part of the Franchise Agreement; or the amendment or extension of the
Franchise Agreement with or without notice to the undersigned or any of them; none of which shall in any
way modify, amend or release or diminish the liability of the undersigned under this guaranty, which shall
be continuing and irrevocable during the term of the Franchise Agreement and any extensions and renewals
thereof; and

D. The undersigned will pay or reimburse the Franchisor for all costs and expenses (including
reasonable attorneys’ fees and legal expenses) incurred by Franchisor in connection with the protection,
defense, or enforcement of this Personal Guarantee in any arbitration, litigation, bankruptcy or insolvency
proceedings.
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Dated: , 20

Shareholder/Partner/Equity Owner

Dated: ,20

Shareholder/Partner/Equity Owner
Dated: , 20

Shareholder/Partner/Equity Owner
Dated: , 20

Shareholder/Partner/Equity Owner
Dated: ,20

Shareholder/Partner/Equity Owner
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EXHIBIT A

Description of Designated Territory
(Paragraph 22)
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EXHIBIT B
Electronic Transfer of Funds Authorization

Franchisee:
Location:
Date:

NEW CHANGE

Attention: Bookkeeping Department

The undersigned hereby authorizes Green Mill On The Go, LLC or any affiliated entity (collectively,
“GMR”), to initiate weekly and/or monthly ACH debit and credit entries against the account of the
undersigned with you in payment of amounts for Royalty Fees, Advertising Fees or other amounts that
become due and payable by the undersigned to GMR. The dollar amount to be debited per payment and
credited per payment will vary.

Subject to the provisions of this letter of authorization, you are hereby directed to honor any such ACH
debit and credit entry initiated by GMR.

This authorization is binding and will remain in full force and effect until ninety (90) days prior written
notice has been given to you by the undersigned. The undersigned is responsible for, and must pay on
demand, all costs or charges relating to the handling of ACH debit and credit entries pursuant to this letter
of authorization.

Please honor ACH debit and credit entries initiated in accordance with the terms of this letter of
authorization, subject to there being sufficient funds in the undersigned’s account to cover such ACH debit
and credit entries.

Sincerely yours,
*** We also need a VOIDED Check ***

Account Name

Bank Name
Street Address
Branch
City State Zip Code
Street Address
Telephone Number
City State Zip Code By

Its

Bank Telephone Number

Date

Bank’s Account Number

Customer’s Account Number
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EXHIBITC
ACKNOWLEDGMENT ADDENDUM TO
GREEN MILL FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

As you know, you and we are entering into a Franchise Agreement for the operation of a GREEN MILL
franchise. The purpose of this Acknowledgment Addendum is to determine whether any statements or
promises were made to you that we have not authorized or that may be untrue, inaccurate or misleading, and
to be certain that you understand the limitations on claims that may be made by you by reason of the offer and
sale of the franchise and operation of your business. Please review each of the following questions carefully
and provide honest responses to each question.

Acknowledgments and Representations*.

1 Do you understand that the franchise granted is for the right to develop and operate the to go restaurant
at a single location within the Designated Territory, and that we and our affiliates have the right to
distribute products through alternative methods of distribution and to issue franchises or operate
competing businesses for or at locations, as we determine, (i) outside of your Designated Area using
any trademarks; (ii) inside your Designated Territory using any trademarks other than the Green Mill
Trademarks; and (iii) inside the Designated Territory using the Green Mill Trademarks, for facilities at
Special Sites? Check one: (_) Yes (_) No. If no, please comment:

2. Do you understand that any training, support, guidance or tools we provide to you as part of the
franchise are for the purpose of protecting the Green Mill on the Go brand and trademarks and to
assist you in the operation of your Business and not for the purpose of controlling or in any way
intended to exercise or exert control over your decisions or day-to-day operations of your business,
including your sole responsibility for the hiring, wages and other compensation (including benefits),
training, supervision and termination of your employees and all other employment and employee
related matters? Check One: (__) Yes (__) No. If no, please comment:

YOU UNDERSTAND THAT YOUR ANSWERS ARE IMPORTANT TO US AND THAT WE WILL
RELY ON THEM. BY SIGNING THIS ADDENDUM, YOU ARE REPRESENTING THAT YOU HAVE
CONSIDERED EACH QUESTION CAREFULLY AND RESPONDED TRUTHFULLY TO THE ABOVE
QUESTIONS. IF MORE SPACE IS NEEDED FOR ANY ANSWER, CONTINUE ON A SEPARATE
SHEET AND ATTACH.
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NOTE: IF THE RECIPIENT IS A CORPORATION, PARTNERSHIP, LIMITED LIABILITY
COMPANY OR OTHER ENTITY, EACH OF ITS PRINCIPAL OWNERS MUST EXECUTE THIS

ACKNOWLEDGMENT.

Signed:

Print Name:

Date:
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APPROVED ON BEHALF OF
GREEN MILL ON THE GO, LLC

By:
Title:
Date:




ADDENDUM TO THE
GREEN MILL FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
REQUIRED BY THE MINNESOTA FRANCHISE LAW

This Addendum is entered into this day of : by and between Green
Mill On The Go, LLC (“Franchisor”) and (“Franchisee”). The parties hereby
agree as follows:

WHEREAS, the parties are parties to that certain Franchise Agreement dated the date hereof
(“Franchise Agreement”), and the parties desire to amend the Franchise Agreement in accordance with
Minnesota Statutes Sec. 80C.1, et seq. (“Minnesota Franchise Law”).

For good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged,
the parties hereby agree as follows:

1) Section 5 of the Franchise Agreement, under the heading “Renewal of Franchise,” shall be
amended by inserting the following language

With respect to franchises governed by Minnesota Franchise Law, Franchisor shall comply
with Minn. Stat. Sec. 80C.14, subd. 4 which requires that except for certain specified cases, that
franchisee be given 180 days’ notice for non renewal of this Franchise Agreement.

2.) Section 12 of the Franchise Agreement, under the heading “Ownership and Use of Licensed
Property” shall be supplemented by the addition of the following paragraph:

The Minnesota Department of Commerce requires that Franchisor indemnify franchisees
whose franchise is located in Minnesota against liability to third parties resulting from claims by
third parties that the Franchisee’s use of Franchisor’s Service Marks infringe upon the trademark
rights of the third party. Franchisor does not indemnify against the consequences of a franchisee’s
use of Franchisor’s Service Marks but Franchisor shall indemnify Franchisee for claims against
Franchisee solely as it relates to Franchisee’s use of the Marks in accordance with the requirements
of the Franchise Agreement and Franchisor’s standards. As a further condition to indemnification,
the Franchisee must provide notice to Franchisor of any such claim immediately and tender the
defense of the claim to Franchisor. If Franchisor accepts tender of defense, Franchisor has the right
to manage the defense of the claim, including the right to compromise, settle or otherwise resolve
the claim, or to determine whether to appeal a final determination of the claim.

3) Section 5 of the Franchise Agreement under the heading “Renewal of Franchise” and Section 17
of the Franchise Agreement under the heading “Assignment” each shall be supplemented by the addition
of the following language:

Notwithstanding the foregoing, Franchisee will not be required to assent to a release,
assignment, novation, or waiver that would relieve any person from liability imposed by Minnesota
Statute §§ 80C.01 — 80C.22.

4.) Section 15 of the Franchise Agreement, under the heading “Termination by Franchisor,” shall be
supplemented by the addition of the following language:

With respect to franchises governed by Minnesota Franchise Law, Franchisor shall comply
with Minn. Stat. Sec. 80C.14, subd. 3 which requires that except for certain specified cases, a
franchisee be given 90 days’ notice of termination (with 60 days to cure). Termination of the
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5.)

Franchise by the Franchisor shall be effective immediately upon receipt by Franchisee of the notice
of termination where its grounds for termination or cancellation are: (1) voluntary abandonment of
the franchise relationship by the Franchisee; (2) the conviction of the Franchisee of an offense
directly related to the business conducted according to the Franchise Agreement; or (3) failure of
the Franchisee to cure a default under the Franchise Agreement which materially impairs the
goodwill associated with the Franchisor’s trade name, trademark, service mark, logo type or other
commercial symbol after the Franchisee has received written notice to cure of at least twenty-four
(24) hours in advance thereof.

Section 24 of the Franchise Agreement under the heading “Governing Law; Dispute Resolution;

Venue for Disputes” is amended by adding the following at the end of the first paragraph:

6.

According to Minn. Stat. Sec. 80C.21 in Minnesota Rules or 2860.4400J, this Section shall
not in any way abrogate or reduce your rights as provided for in Minn. Stat. 1984, Chapter 80C,
including the right to submit certain matters to the jurisdiction of the courts of Minnesota. In
addition, nothing in this Franchise Agreement shall abrogate or reduce any of Franchisee’s rights
as provided for in Minn. Stat. Sec. 80C, or your rights to any procedure, forum or remedy provided
for by the laws of the State of Minnesota.

This Addendum is being entered into in connection with the Franchise Agreement. In the event of

any conflict between this Addendum and the Franchise Agreement, the terms and conditions of this
Addendum shall apply.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed this Addendum as of the date first set

forth above.

FRANCHISOR: FRANCHISEE:
GREEN MILL ON THE GO, LLC

By:

Date:

By:

Its:
Date:
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ADDENDUM TO THE
GREEN MILL ON THE GO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
REQUIRED BY THE WISCONSIN FAIR DEALERSHIP LAW

This Addendum is entered into this day of : by and between Green
Mill On The Go, LLC (“Franchisor”) and (“Franchisee”). The parties hereby
agree as follows:

WHEREAS, the parties are parties to that certain Franchise Agreement dated the date hereof
(“Franchise Agreement”), and the parties desire to amend the Franchise Agreement in accordance with the
Wisconsin Fair Dealership Law.

For good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged,
the parties hereby agree as follows:

1. Section 15 of the Agreement, under the heading “Termination by Franchisor,” shall be
supplemented by the addition of the following paragraph:

To the extent any of the provisions regarding notice of termination or change in dealership
are in conflict with Section 135.04 of the Wisconsin Fair Dealership Law, the Wisconsin
law shall apply.

2. This Addendum is being entered into in connection with the Franchise Agreement. In the
event of any conflict between this Addendum and the Franchise Agreement, the terms and conditions of
this Addendum shall apply.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed this Addendum as of the date first set
forth above.

FRANCHISOR: FRANCHISEE:
GREEN MILL ON THE GO, LLC

By: By:
Its: Its:
Date: Date:
36
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® ACKNOWLEDGMENT

Green Mill On the Go, LLC
St. Paul, Minnesota

We agree to the inclusion in the Franchise Disclosure Document dated May 28, 2024, issued by Green Mill
Restaurants, LLC ("Franchisor™) of our report dated April 17, 2024 on our audit of the financial statements
of Franchisor as of December 31, 2023 and for the period then ended and our report dated April 18, 2023
on our audit of the financial statementz of Franchisor as of December 31, 2022 and the period then
ended.

lftoxsasonidtlon £

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Owatonna, Minnesota
May 29, 2024
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GREEN MILL ON THE GO, LLC
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND THE PERIOD ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board of Governors and Directors
Grean Mill On The Go, LLC
St Paul, Minnezota

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We hawve audited the accompanying financial statements of Green Mill On The Go, LLC, which
comprise the balance sheet as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the related statements of
operations, members’ equity (deficit), and cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2023 and from
inception (June 9, 2022) through December 31, 2022 (the period), and the related notes to the financial
statermnents.

In our opinicn, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Green Mill On The Go, LLC as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the resultz of
their operations and their cash flows for the vear ended December 31, 2023 ard the period ended
December 31, 2022 in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America (GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors'
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are reguired to be
independent of Green Mill On The Go, LLC and to meet our other ethical responsibiliies in accordance
with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained iz sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Managemeant for the Financial Statemernts

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is reguired to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Green Mill On The Go, LLC's
ability to continue as a going concern for one year after the date the finandal statements are available
to be issued.

CLhgehal com diiclaimar
i
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Board of Governors and Directors
Green Mil On The Go, LLC

Auditors' Responsibilite s for the Audit of the Financial Statemanits

Our objectives are to obtain reascnable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from maternal misstate ment, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auvditors’ report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from ernor, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the owemide of internal control. Misstatements are considered
material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:
= Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

= |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or emor, and design and peformm audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements.

= (btain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of Green Mill On The Go, LLC's intemal control. Accordingly, no
such opinicn is expressed.

= Evaluate the approprateness of accounting policies used and the reascnableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

= Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,

that rmise substantial doubt about Green Mill On The Go, LLC's ability to continue as a going
conocern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charge with govemance regarding, among other matters,

the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal contrel related
ratters that we identified during the audit.

%ZM#EM«, L7

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Owatonna, Minnesota
April 17, 2024

2)

C-6
2024 Green Mill On The Go, LLC Franchise Disclosure Document



GREEN MILL ON THE GO, LLC
BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receaivable

Tolal Assets

LIABILITIES AND OWMNERS" EQUITY
DUE TO RELATED PARTIES

MEMBER'S EQUITY {DEFICIT)

Todal Liabilities and Owners' Equity

2023 2022
2,559 5,427
5,091 10,778
7,650 16,205

30,651 8,380
{23,001) 6,815
7,650 16,205

Eee accompanping Notes o Financisl Staferments.
(3
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GREEMN MILL ON THE GO, LLC
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND THE PERIOD ENDED DECEMEER 31, 2022

2023 2022
REVEMUES
Royalty and Franchise Feas 3 19,685 % 15,044
OPERATING EXPENSES 49,501 8229
NET INCOME (LOSS) £ [29.818) ] 6,815

Eee accompanying Notes fo Financial Stafements.
(4]
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GREEM MILL ON THE GO, LLC
STATEMENTS OF MEMBER'S EQUITY
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND THE PERIOD ENDED DECEMEER 31, 2022

Member's
Equity
BALAMNCE - JUNE 8, 2022 % =
Met Incomea 6,815
BALAMNCE - DECEMBER 31, 2022 6,815
Met Loss (29 816
BALAMNCE - DECEMBER 31, 2023 5 {23,001

Eee accompanping Notes fo Financisl Stafements.
(5]
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GREEM MILL ON THE GO, LLC
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 21, 2023 AND THE PERIOD ENDED DECEMEER 31, 2022

2023 2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Met Income (Loss) 3 (29,818} % 8,815
Adjustments to Reconcile Mat Incoma (Loss) to
Met Cash Provided by Operating Activitias:
{Increase) Decrease in Current Assals:

Accounts Receivable 5,687 {10,778)
Increase in Current Liabilities:

Due to Related Parties 21 261 5380

Met Cash Provided (Uksad) by Operating Activities (2, 868) 5427

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (2,B68) 5427

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year 5427 -

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR 2 558 5427

Eee accompanying Motes fo Financial Stalements.
()
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GREEN MILL ON THE GO, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Operations

Green Mill On The Go, LLC (the Company) has the exclusive right to sell Green Mill On The
Go and related trademarked franchises. The Company has transactions with various entities
who share common ownership. Significant related party transactions include revenue from
franchised stores that share common ownership and management fees from other related
entites. Sea Mote 2 for all related party transactions.

Adoption of New Accounting Standards

At the beginning of 2023, the Company adopted FASE ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments
= Credit Losses (Topic 326): Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments, as
amended, which modifies the measurement of expected credit losses. The Company
adopted this new guidance utilizing the modified retrospective transition method. The
adoption of this Standard did not have a materal impact on the Company's financial
staternents but did change how the allowance for credit losses is determined.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cazh flows, the Company consider all highly liquid debt
instruments purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. All
cash is deposited in one financial institution. At times, amounts on deposit may be in excess
of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insurance limit.

Accounts Receivable

The Company reviews customers”™ credit history before extending unsecured credit and
establishes an allowance for credit losses. The allowance represents an estimate of
expected credit losses based upon specific review of all significant outstanding invoices. For
those invoices not specifically reviewed, provisions are provided at differing rates, based
upon the age of the receivable, historical experence, and current and expected future
economic conditions. Invoice due dates vary by customer based on credit terms set by the
Company. Accounts receivable are considered past due if not paid within terms established
between the Company and the customer. The Company does not accrue interest on past
due receivables. The Company writes off accounts receivable when they are deesmed
uncaollectiple. There was no allowance for bad debts at December 31, 2023 and 2022.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers consist primarily of royalties, advertising fund
contributions, and initial, transfer and renewal franchize fees. Our performance obligations
under franchise agreements consist of a) a franchise license. b) pre-opening services, such
as training, and ¢) ongoing services, such as management of the advertising fund,
development of training materialz and menu items and restaurant monitoring. These
performance cbligations are highly interrelated so we do not consider them to be individually
distinct and, therefore, account for them under Accounting Standards Codification (ASC)
606 as a single performance obligation, which is satisfied by providing a right to use our
intellectual property over the term of each franchise agreemeant.

i
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GREEN MILL ON THE GO, LLC
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue Recognition (Continued)

Royalties, including franchisee contributions to the advertising fund, are calculated as a
percentage of franchize restaurant sales over the term of the franchise agreement. Initial
and renewal franchise fees are payable by the franchisee prior to the restaurant opening or
at the time of a renewal of an existing franchize agreement. Our franchise agreement
royalties, inclusive of advertising fund confributions, represent sales-based royalties that are
related entirely to our performance obligation under the franchise agreement and are
recognized as franchise sales occur. Additionally, under ASC 606, initial, transfer and
renewal franchise fees are recognized as revenue on a straight-line basis over the term of
the respective agreemeant.

Advertizing Costs

The Companies administer the Green Mill On The Go Advertising Fund (the Ad Fund) for
which a percentage of gross sales is collected from Green Mill On The Go franchisees to be
used for various forms of adwertizing for the Green Mill On The Go brand. The Companies
administer and direct the development of all advertising and promotion programs in the Ad
Fund for which it collects advertizing contributions, in accordance with the provisions of its
franchizse agreements. The Companies have a contractual obligation with regard to these
advertising confributions. The Companies consolidate and report all assets and liabilites of
the Ad Fund as restricted assets of the Ad Fund and restricted liabiliies of the Ad Fund
within current assets and current liabiliies, respectively in the balance sheets. The assets
and liabiliies of the Ad Fund consist primarily of cash, receivables, and accrued expenzes
related to the Ad Fund. Pursuant to the Companies’ franchise agreements, use of Ad Fund
contributions is restricted to advertising, public relations, merchandizing, and administrative
expenses to increase sales and further enhance the public reputation of the brand.

Ad Fund confributions and expenditures are reported on a gross basis in the statement of
operations, which are largely offsetting and, therefore, do not impact our reported net
income. The Companies incurred advertising costs of 3-0- for the periods ended
December 31, 2023 and 2022.

Income Taxes

The Companies, with the consent of its equity holders have elected to be taxed under
sections of the federal and state income tax laws which provide that, in lieu of corporate
income taxes, the Companies” income, deductions, and credits are reported by its members
and stockholders. Accordingly, no provision is made for income taxes in the combined
financial statements.

The Companies evaluated its tax positions and determined they have no uncertain tax
positions as of December 31, 2023,

L
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GREEN MILL ON THE GO, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

HOTE1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Use of Estimates

The preparation of combined financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Companies’ services are provided to franchises in the upper Midwest for which royalty
fees and fraining fees are due to the Companies on a continuing basis. The Companies
grant credit to itz customers on an unsecured basis, in accordance with the terms of thair
contract agreement. The Companies' customers are highly concentrated within the
restaurant industry. The amount of accounting loss should the restaurant industry
experience a significant decline is not determinable at this time.

Subsequent Events

In preparing these financial statements, the Companies have evaluated events and
transactions for potential recognition or disclosure through Apeil 17, 2024, the date the
financial statements were available to be issued.

NOTE 2 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIOMS
Accounts Receivable and Royalty Revenue

There are GMOTG Franchisees related through common ownership. Total royalty revenues
from these restaurants were 511,258 and 57 446 for the periods ended December 31, 2023
and 2022, respectively. Total accounts receivable from these restaurants was $3,556 and
36,716 at December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. These amounts are included in
Accounts Receivable.

Licensing Fees

Hightop Brands, LLC {a related party) holds the licensing rights that the Company sell under
the Grean Mill On The Go franchizse name. A licensing fee iz paid upon receipt of a franchise
fee based upon a predetermined schedule. The license holder also shares in royalties
collected from the operating franchizes in the form of a licensing fee also based on
predetermined percentages.

]
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GREEN MILL ON THE GO, LLC
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 2 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
Management Fees
The Company pays Green Mill Restaurants, LLC ( a related party) a management fee to
cover administrative expenses.

Expenses paid to related parties are as follows:

2023 2022
Licansa Feas to Crocked Pint [ 4,921 [ 2729
Management Fees to Graen Mill Restaurants 5,000 3,500
Total Expenses from Related Parties g 10,921 g 6,229
Amounts due to related parties are as follows:
2023 2022
Licansa Feas Payable to Crooked Pint [ 7.B51 5 2729
Management Fees owed Grean Mill Reslaurants 9 500 1,161
Short-tarm Bormowings from Grean Mill Restaurants 13,500 5,500
Total Related Party Payables 3 30,651 3 0 390

Management has determined that all related party receivables are collectible and therefore,
have not recordad an allowancs for uncollectible amounts.

1oy
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ChttonlarzonAllen LLP
COLAConnect.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' ACKNOWLEDGMENT

Graen Mill On the Go, LLC
St Paul, Minnesota

We agree to the inclusion in the Franchise Disclosure Document dated April 21, 2023, issued by Green Mill
Restaurants, LLC (*Franchisor™) of our report dated April 18, 2023 on our audit of the financial stalements
of Franchisor as of December 31, 2022 and for the period then ended.

WM L
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Craratonna, Minnesola
April 21, 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board of Governors and Directors
Green Mill On The Go, LLC

St Paul, Minnesota

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Green Mill On The Go, LLC, which
comprise the balance sheet as of December 31, 2022, and the related statements of operations,

members' equity, and cash flows from inception (June 9, 2022) through December 31, 2022 (the
period), and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Green Mill On The Go, LLC as of December 31, 2022, and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for the period then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America (GAAS). Our responsibiliies under those standards are further described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of Green Mill On The Go, LLC and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from matenal misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Green Mill On The Go, LLC's
ability to continue as a going concemn for one year after the date the financial statements are available
to be issued.

(1)



Board of Governors and Direclors
Green Mill On The Go, LLC

Audifors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absoclute assurance
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the overnde of internal control. Misstalements are considered
material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:
» Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

* |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or emor, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements.

+ Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of Green Mill On The Go, LLC's internal confrol. Accordingly. no
such opinion is expressed.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

+ Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about Green Mill On The Go, LLC's ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charge with governance regarding. among other matters,

the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain intermal control related
matters that we identified during the audit.

WM L

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Dwatonna, Minnesota
Aprl 18, 2023

(2]



GREEN MILL ON THE GO, LLC

BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2022

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable
Total Assals
LIABILITIES AMND OWNERS" EQUITY
DUE TO RELATED PARTIES

MEMBER'S EQUITY

Taotal Liabilities and Owners' Equity

See accompanying MNotes fo Financial Statements.
(3

3 5427
10,778

E 1E|2{IE
3 8,390
6,815
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GREEN MILL ON THE GO, LLC
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

REVEMUES

Royalty and Franchise Fees % 15,044
OPERATING EXPEMNSES 8,229
NET INCOME 3 6815

See sccompamying Notes fo Financial Statements.
(4)



GREEN MILL ON THE GO, LLC
STATEMENT OF MEMBER'S EQUITY
PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

Member's
Equity
BALANCE - JUNE 9, 2022 g -
Mat Income 6,815
BALANCE - DECEMBER 31, 2022 5 6.815

See accompanying Notes fo Financial Statements.
(5)



GREEN MILL ON THE GO, LLC
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATIMNG ACTIVITIES
Met Income
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income to
Met Cazh Provided by Operating Activities:
Increase in Current Assets:
Accounts Receivable
Increase in Current Liabilities:
Due to Related Parties
Met Cash Provided by Operating Activities

MET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR

See accompamying Notes fo Financia! Statements.

(&)

] 6.815

(10,778)

9.380
5427

5,427

i 5.427




NOTE 1

GREEN MILL ON THE GO, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2022

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Operations

Green Mill On The Go, LLC (the Company) has the exclusive right to sell Green Mill On The
Go and related trademarked franchises. The Company has transactions with various entities
who share common ownership. Significant related party transactions include revenue from
franchised stores that share common ownership and management fees from other related
entities. See Note 2 for all related party transactions.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Company consider all highly liquid debt
instruments purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. All
cash is deposited in one financial institution. At times, amounts on deposit may be in excess
of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insurance limit.

Accounts Receivable

The Companies provide an allowance for bad debts using the allowance method, which is
based on management judgment considering historical information. Services are sold on an
unsecured basis. Payment is reguired up to 30 days after receipt of the invoice. Accounts
past due more than 90 days are individually analyzed for collectibility. An allowance is
provided for accounts when a significant pattern of uncollectibility has occurred. When all
collection efforts have been exhausted, the accounts are written off against the related
allowance. There was no allowance for bad debts at December 31, 2022.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers consist primarily of royalties, advertising fund
contributions, and initial, transfer and renewal franchise fees. QOur performance obligations
under franchise agreements consist of a) a franchise license, b) pre-opening services, such
as fraining, and c) ongoing services, such as management of the advertising fund,
development of training materials and menu items and restaurant monitoring. These
performance obligations are highly interrelated so we do not consider them to be individually
distinct and, therefore, account for them under Accounting Standards Codification (ASC)
606 as a single performance obligation, which is satisfied by providing a right to use our
intellectual property over the term of each franchise agreement.

Royalties, including franchisee contributions to the advertising fund, are calculated as a
percentage of franchise restaurant sales over the term of the franchise agreement Initial
and renewal franchise fees are payable by the franchisee prior to the restaurant opening or
at the time of a renewal of an existing franchise agreement. Our franchise agreement
royalties, inclusive of advertising fund contributions, represent sales-based royalties that are
related entirely to our performance obligation under the franchise agreement and are
recognized as franchise sales occur. Additionally, under ASC 606, initial, transfer and
renewal franchise fees are recognized as revenue on a straight-line basis over the term of
the respective agreement.
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NOTE1

GREEN MILL ON THE GO, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Advertising Costs

The Companies administer the Green Mill On The Go Advertising Fund (the Ad Fund) for
which a percentage of gross sales is collected from Green Mill On The Go franchisees to be
used for various forms of advertising for the Green Mill On The Go brand. The Companies
administer and direct the development of all advertising and promotion programs in the Ad
Fund for which it collects advertising contributions, in accordance with the provisions of its
franchise agreements. The Companies have a contractual obligation with regard to these
advertising contributions. The Companies consoclidate and report all assets and liabilities of
the Ad Fund as restricted assets of the Ad Fund and restricted liabilities of the Ad Fund
within current assets and current liabilities, respectively in the balance sheets. The assets
and liabilities of the Ad Fund consist primarily of cash, receivables, and accrued expenses
related to the Ad Fund. Pursuant to the Companies’ franchise agreements, use of Ad Fund
contributions is restricted to advertising, public relations, merchandising, and administrative
expenses to increase sales and further enhance the public reputation of the brand.

Ad Fund contributions and expenditures are reported on a gross basis in the combined
statement of operations, which are largely offsetting and, therefore, do not impact our

reported net income. The Companies incurred advertising costs of $-0- for the year ended
December 31, 2022.

Income Taxes

The Companies, with the consent of its equity holders have elected to be taxed under
sections of the federal and state income tax laws which provide that, in lieu of corporate
income taxes, the Companies’ income, deductions, and credits are reported by its members
and stockholders. Accordingly, no provision is made for income taxes in the combined
financial statements.

The Companies evaluated its tax positions and determined they have no uncertain tax
positions as of December 31, 2022,

Use of Estimates

The preparation of combined financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.
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NOTE 1

NOTE 2

GREEN MILL ON THE GO, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2022

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Companies’ services are provided to franchises in the upper Midwest for which royalty
fees and training fees are due to the Companies on a continuing basis. The Companies
grant credit to its customers on an unsecured basis, in accordance with the terms of their
contract agreement. The Companies’ customers are highly concentrated within the
restaurant industry. The amount of accounting loss should the restaurant industry
experience a significant decline is not determinable at this time.

Adopti f New A ting Standard
The Company adopted the requirements of Accounting Standards Update 2016-02, Leases
(ASC 842) effective June 9, 2022, and has elected to apply the provisions of this standard to
the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented using a modified retrospective
approach, with certain practical expedients available. In addition, the Company has elected
to recognize payments for short-term leases with a lease term of 12 months or less as
expense as incurred and these leases are not included as lease liabilities or right-of-use
(ROU) assets on the balance sheet. The new standard increases transparency and
comparability among organizations by requiring the recognition of ROU assels and lease
liabilties on the balance sheet. Most prominent of the changes in the standard is the
recognition of ROU assets and lease liabilities by lessees for those leases classified as
operating leases.

The Company has no leases. Therefore, the standard had no impact on the balance sheet,
the income statement, and statement of cash flows.

Subsequent Events

In preparing these financial statements, the Companies have evaluated events and
transactions for polential recognition or disclosure through April 18, 2023, the date the
financial statements were available to be issued.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Revenue and Receivables

There are Crooked Pint Restaurants related through common ownership. Total royalty
revenues from these restaurants were 57,446 for the period ended December 31, 2022
Total accounts receivable from these restaurants was $6,716 at December 31, 2022,

Amounts borrowed and due to related parties totaled 59,390 at December 31, 2022 and are
recorded in due to related parties.

Management has determined that all related party receivables are collectible and therefore,
have not recorded an allowance for uncollectible amounts.
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GREEN MILL ON THE GO, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2022

NOTE2 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Licensing Fees

Hightop Brands, LLC (a related party) holds the licensing rights that the Company sell under
the Green Mill On The Go franchise name. A licensing fee is paid upon receipt of a franchise
fee based upon a predetermined schedule. The license holder also shares in royalties
collected from the operating franchises in the form of a licensing fee also based on
predetermined percentages. The Companies incurred licensing fee expense of $2,729 for
the pericd ended December 31, 2022. The Company owed $2,729 for licensing fees at
December 31, 2022.
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EXHIBITD
LIST OF FRANCHISED LOCATIONS

If you buy this franchise, your contact information may be disclosed to other buyers when you leave the
franchise system.

List of Current Franchisees at December 31, 2023

CP Maplewood II, LLC
1734 Adolphus Street
Maplewood, MN 55117
(651) 252-6500

CPH Lyndale, Inc. d/b/a Harriet’s Inn
4000 Lyndale Ave. South Minneapolis, MN
55409 (651) 271-2675
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List of Franchisees Who Left The System in 2023
None.
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List of Former Franchisees and Franchisees Who Have Not Communicated With Us Within 10
Weeks of Issuance Date

None.

If you buy this franchise, your contact information may be disclosed to other buyers when you leave the
franchise system.
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EXHIBITE
STATE ADDENDA TO DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
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MINNESOTA

ADDENDUM TO THE GREEN MILL ON THE GO FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
FOR THE STATE OF MINNESOTA

1. ITEM 13 of the Disclosure Document is amended as follows:

As required by the Minnesota Franchise Act, Minn. Stat. Sec. 80C.12(g), we will reimburse
you for any costs incurred by you in the defense of your right to use the Proprietary Marks,
so long as you were using the Proprietary Marks in the manner authorized by us, and so
long as we are timely notified of the claim and given the right to manage the defense of the
claim including the right to compromise, settle or otherwise resolve the claim, and to
determine whether to appeal a final determination of the claim.

2. The following is added to the end of the “Summary” sections of Item 17(c), entitled
“Requwements for franchisee to renew or extend,” and Item 17(f), entitled “Termination by franchisor
with cause”:

With respect to franchises governed by Minnesota law, we will comply with Minn. Stat.
Sec. 80C.14, Subds. 3, 4 and 5, which require, except in certain specified cases, that you
be given 90 days’ notice of termination (with 60 days to cure) and 180 days’ notice of non-
renewal of the Agreement.

3. The following is added to the end of the “Summary” sections of Item 17(c), entitled
“Requirements for franchisee to renew or extend,” and Item 17(m), entitled “Conditions for franchisor
approval of transfer”:

We will not require a prospective general release of claims against us that may be subject
to the Minnesota Franchise Law. Minn. Rule 2860.4400D prohibits a franchisor from
requiring a franchisee to assent to a general release.

4. The following is added to the end of the “Summary” section of Item 17(v), entitled “Choice of
forum”:

Minn. Stat. 880C.21 and Minn. Rule 2860.4400J prohibit us from requiring litigation to be
conducted outside Minnesota. In addition, nothing in the Disclosure Document or
Franchise Agreement can abrogate or reduce any of your rights as provided for in
Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 80C, or your rights to any procedure, forum or remedies
provided for by the laws of the jurisdiction.
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ADDENDUM TO THE GREEN MILL ON THE GO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
FOR THE STATE OF MINNESOTA

This Addendum to the Franchise Agreement is agreed to this day of , 20 , is by
and between Green Mill On The Go, LLC and and amends  the
Franchise Agreement between the parties dated as of the Effective Date (the “Agreement”).

1 In recognition of the Minnesota Franchise Law, Minn. Stat., Chapter 80C, Sections 80C.01
through 80C.22, and the Rules and Regulations promulgated pursuant thereto by the Minnesota
Commission of Securities, Minnesota Rule 2860.4400, et. seq., the parties to the attached Agreement agree
as follows:

e Sections 5 and 15 are amended to add that with respect to Franchises governed by Minnesota
Law, Franchisor will comply with the Minnesota Franchise Law that requires, except in certain
specified cases, that Franchisee be given 90 days’ notice of termination (with 60 days to cure)
and 180 days’ notice of non-renewal of the Agreement.

e Sections 5 and 17 do not provide for a prospective general release of any claims against
Franchisor that may be subject to the Minnesota Franchise Law. Minn. Rule 2860.4400D
prohibits a franchisor from requiring a franchisee to assent to a general release.

e Section 12 is amended to add that as required by Minnesota Franchise Act, Franchisor will
reimburse Franchisee for any costs incurred by Franchisee in the defense of Franchisee’s right
to use the Proprietary Marks, so long as Franchisee was using the Proprietary Marks in the
manner authorized by Franchisor, and so long as Franchisor is timely notified of the claim and
is given the right to manage the defense of the claim including the right to compromise, settle
or otherwise resolve the claim, and to determine whether to appeal a final determination of the
claim.

e Section 40 does not waive the party’s rights to trial by jury pursuant to Minn. Rule Part
2860.4400J

e Minn. Rule Part 2860.4400J prohibits Franchisee from waving its rights to consenting to
liquidated damages, termination penalties or judgment notes. To the extent that the Agreement
requires Franchisee to waive these rights, the Franchise Agreement will be considered
amended to the extent necessary to comply with the Minnesota Rule.

2 Each provision of this Addendum shall be effective only to the extent that the jurisdictional
requirements of the Minnesota Franchise Law applicable to the provisions are met independently of this
Addendum. To the extent this Addendum shall be deemed to be inconsistent with any terms or conditions
of said Franchise Agreement or exhibits or attachments thereto, the terms of this Addendum shall govern.

[Signature page follows]
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[Signature Page to MN Addenda]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the undersigned hereby acknowledges having read this
Addendum, and understands and consents to be bound by all of its terms.

Green Mill On The Go, LLC Franchisee:
By: By:
Name: Name:
Title: Title:
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NORTH DAKOTA

ADDENDUM TO GREEN MILL ON THE GO FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
FOR THE STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA

1 ITEM 5 of the Disclosure Document is amended by the addition of the following language to the
original language:

Refund and cancellation provisions will be inapplicable to franchises operating under North
Dakota Law, North Dakota Century Code Annotated Chapter 51-19, Sections 51-19-01
through 51-19-17. If franchisor elects to cancel the Franchise Agreement, franchisor will
be entitled to a reasonable fee for its evaluation of you and related preparatory work
performed and expenses actually incurred.

2. The following is added to the end of the “Summary” sections of Item 17(c), entitled
“Requirements for franchisee to renew or extend,” and Item 17(m), entitled “Conditions for franchisor
approval of transfer”:

No general release shall be required as a condition of renewal, termination and/or transfer
that is intended to exclude claims arising under North Dakota Law.
3. The following is added to the end of the “Summary” sections of Item 17(r), entitled “Non-

competition covenants after the franchise is terminated or expired”:

Covenants not to compete upon termination or expiration of the Franchise Agreement are
generally unenforceable in the State of North Dakota except in limited instances as
provided by law.

4. The following is added to the end of the “Summary” section of Item 17(v), entitled “Choice of
forum™:
A provision requiring litigation to be conducted in a forum other than North Dakota is void

with respect to claims under North Dakota Law.

5. The following is added to the end of the “Summary” section of Item 17(w), entitled “Choice of
law”:

In the event of a conflict of laws, North Dakota Law will control.
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ADDENDUM TO GREEN MILL ON THE GO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
FOR THE STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA

This Addendum to the Franchise Agreement is agreed to this day of , 20 , is by
and between Green Mill On The Go, LLC and and amends the
Franchise Agreement between the parties dated as of the Effective Date (the “Agreement”).

L The North Dakota Securities Commission requires that certain provisions contained in the
Agreement be amended to be consistent with North Dakota Law, including the North Dakota Franchise
Investment Law, North Dakota Century Code Addendum, Chapter 51-19, Sections 51- 19-01 et seq. Such
provisions in the Agreement are hereby amended as follows:

e Sections 5 and 17, the execution of a general release upon renewal or transfer shall be
inapplicable to Franchises operating under the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law to the
extent that such a release excludes claims arising under the North Dakota Franchise Investment
Law.

e Section 16 is amended to add that covenants not to compete upon termination or expiration of
the Franchise Agreement are generally unenforceable in the State of North Dakota except in
limited instances as provided by law.

e Section 24(a) is amended to state that litigation involving a Franchise purchased in North
Dakota must be held either in North Dakota.

e Section 24(b) is amended to state that in the event of a conflict of laws, North Dakota Law
shall prevail.

2. Each provision of this Addendum shall be effective only to the extent that the jurisdictional
requirements of the North Dakota Law applicable to the provisions are met independently of this
Addendum. To the extent this Addendum shall be deemed to be inconsistent with any terms or conditions
of said Franchise Agreement or exhibits or attachments thereto, the terms of this Addendum shall govern.

[Signature page follows]
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[Signature Page to ND Addenda]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the undersigned hereby acknowledges having read this
Addendum, and understands and consents to be bound by all of its terms.

Green Mill On The Go, LLC Franchisee:
By: By:
Name: Name:
Title: Title:
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WISCONSIN

ADDENDUM TO GREEN MILL ON THE GO FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
FOR THE STATE OF WISCONSIN

1 The following is added to the end of the “Summary” sections of Item 17(h), entitled “Cause
defined - non-curable defaults™:

The Wisconsin Fair Dealership Law Title XIV-A Ch. 135, Section 135.01-135.07 may
affect the termination provision of the Franchise Agreement.
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ADDENDUM TO GREEN MILL ON THE GO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
FOR THE STATE OF WISCONSIN

This Addendum to the Franchise Agreement is agreed to this day of , 20 , is by
and between Green Mill On The Go, LLC and and amends the
Franchise Agreement between the parties dated as of the Effective Date (the “Agreement”).

1 The Wisconsin Fair Dealership Law Title XIV-A Ch. 135, Sec. 135.01-135.07 shall supersede
any conflicting terms of the Franchise Agreement.

2. This provision of this Addendum shall be effective only to the extent that the jurisdictional
requirements of the Wisconsin Fair Dealership Law applicable to the provisions are met independently of this
Addendum. To the extent this Addendum shall be deemed to be inconsistent with any terms or conditions of
said Franchise Agreement or exhibits or attachments thereto, the terms of this Addendum shall govern.

[Signature page follows]
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[Signature Page to WI Addenda]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the undersigned hereby acknowledges having read this
Addendum, and understands and consents to be bound by all of its terms.

Green Mill On The Go, LLC Franchisee:
By: By:
Name: Name:
Title: Title:
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EXHIBITF
FORM OF GENERAL RELEASE AGREEMENT

(Subject to Change)
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GENERAL RELEASE
(Form subject to change.)

For and in consideration of the Agreements and covenants described below, Green Mill On The Go, LLC
(*GMR”) and (“Franchisee”) enter into this Release of Claims (“Agreement”).

RECITALS

A GMR and Franchisee entered into a Green Mill On The Go Franchise Agreement dated

B. [NOTE: Describe the circumstances relating to the release.]

C. Subject to and as addressed with greater specificity in the terms and conditions set forth
below, GMR and Franchisee now desire to settle any and all disputes that may exist between them relating to
the Franchise Agreement.

AGREEMENTS

1 Consideration. [NOTE: Describe the consideration paid.]
2-3. [NOTE: Detail other terms and conditions of the release.]

4. Release of Claims by Franchisee. Except as may be prohibited by applicable law, and in
consideration of the other terms and conditions of this Agreement, the receipt and sufficiency of which is
hereby acknowledged, Franchisee, for itself, its heirs, successors and assigns, affiliates, directors, officers
and shareholders, and any other party claiming an interest through them (collectively and individually
referred to as the “Franchisee Parties”) release and forever discharge GMR, its predecessors, successors,
assigns, affiliates, directors, officers, shareholders, and employees (collectively and individually referred
to as the “Franchisor Parties”) of and from any and all claims, debts, liabilities, demands, obligations, costs,
expenses, actions and causes of action, whether known or unknown, vested or contingent, which you may
now or in the future own or hold, that in any way relate to the Franchise Agreement or the business
relationship between the parties (collectively, “Claims™), for known or unknown damages or other losses
including but not limited to, any alleged violations of any deceptive or unfair trade practices laws, franchise
laws, or other local, municipal, state, federal, or other laws, statutes, rules or regulations, and any alleged
violations of the Franchise Agreement or any other related agreement between you and Franchisor or your
affiliate and Franchisor.

The Franchisee Parties do not release the Franchisor Parties from any obligations arising by virtue
of this Agreement and the Franchisor Parties’ failure to comply with those obligations.

5. Release of Claims by GMR. Except as noted in this Section 5, and subject to your
compliance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement, including the payment of $ to GMR,
Franchisor Parties hereby release and forever discharge Franchisee Parties from any and all Claims, for
known or unknown damages or other losses including but not limited to, any alleged violations of any
deceptive or unfair trade practices laws, franchise laws, or other local, municipal, state, federal, or other
laws, statutes, rules or regulations, and any alleged violations of the Franchise Agreement or any other
related agreement between you and Franchisor or your affiliate and Franchisor.

The Franchisor Parties do not release the Franchisee Parties from any obligations arising by virtue
of this Agreement and the Franchisee Parties’ failure to comply with those obligations. Further, the
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Franchisor Parties do not release the Franchisee Parties from any Claims related to Franchisee’s (i)
indemnification obligations under Section ____ of the Franchise Agreement, (ii) non-disclosure obligations
under Section ____ of the Franchise Agreement, and (iii) post-termination non-compete obligations under
Section __ of the Franchise Agreement, each of which remain in full force and effect and are incorporated
by reference in this Agreement.

6. Acknowledgement. The releases of Claims set forth in Section 4 and Section 5 are
intended by the Franchisor Parties and the Franchisee Parties (collectively, the “Parties) to be full and
unconditional general releases, as that phrase is used and commonly interpreted, extending to all claims of
any nature, whether or not known, expected or anticipated to exist in favor of the one of the Parties against
the other Party regardless of whether any unknown, unsuspected or unanticipated claim would materially
affect settlement and compromise of any matter mentioned herein. In making this voluntary express waiver,
the Parties acknowledge that claims or facts in addition to or different from those which are now known to
exist with respect to the matters mentioned herein may later be discovered and that it is the Parties’
respective intentions to hereby fully and forever settle and release any and all matters, regardless of the
possibility of later discovered claims or facts. This Release is and shall be and remain a full, complete and
unconditional general release. The Parties further acknowledge and agree that no violation of this
Agreement shall void the releases set forth in this Agreement.

7. Reservation of Claims Against Non-Settling Parties. GMR and Franchisee expressly
reserve their right and claims against any non-settling persons, firms, corporations, or other entities for
whatever portion or percentage their damages are found to be attributable to the wrongful conduct of said
non-settling parties.

8. Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties
relative to the subject matter contained herein, and all prior understandings, representations and agreements
made by and between the parties relative to the contents contained in this Agreement are merged into this
Agreement.

9. Voluntary Nature of Agreement. The parties acknowledge and agree that they have
entered into this Agreement voluntarily and without any coercion. The parties further represent that they
have had the opportunity to consult with an attorney of their own choice, that they have read the terms of
this Agreement, and that they fully understand and voluntarily accept the terms.

10. Governing Law and Jurisdiction. This Agreement will be construed and enforced in
accordance with the law of the state of

11. Attorneys’ Fees. All rights and remedies under this Agreement shall be cumulative and
none shall exclude any other right or remedy allowed by law. In the event of a breach of this Agreement
that requires one of the parties to enforce the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the non-prevailing
party shall pay the prevailing party’s attorneys’ fees and costs incurred by reason of the breach.
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Dated: ,20__ GREEN MILL ON THE GO, LLC

By
Its
Dated: ,20_ FRANCHISEE:.
By
Its
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EXHIBIT G
THIRD PARTY SUPPLIER AGREEMENTS
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EXHIBITH
OPERATING MANUAL TABLE OF CONTENTS

m |My Courses| My Calendar Course Catalog

Enrolled Completed Transcript

Enrolled

Title % Complete | Status Enroll Date
ﬂ_,, Certified Trainer 0% O Not Attempted 2022-05-27
54_ Training Day 3 (Servers and Bartenders) 0% O Not Attempted 2022-05-27
ﬂ_‘_ Training Day 3 (Host and Delivery) 0% O Not Attempted 2022-05-27
i § Training Day 4 (Servers) 0% (0) Not Attempted 2022-05-27
ﬂ_,, Training Day 4 (Bartenders) 0% O Not Attempted 2022-05-27
ﬂ+ Training Day 4 (HostiHostess) 0% O Not Attempted 2022-05-27
ﬂ_,, Training Day 4 (Delivery) 0% O Not Attempted 2022-05-27
ﬂ+ Day 5 Final Exam (Server / Bartender) 0% O Not Attempted 2022-05-27
ﬂ_‘_ New Menu Tests - LTO Tests 0% O Not Attempted 2022-05-27
ﬂ_,, Orientation for Managers 0% (O) Not Attempted 2022-05-27
ﬂ.,. Menu Training for Managers 0% O Not Attempted 2022-05-27
ﬂ_,, Host Training for Managers 0% (0) Not Attempted 2022-05-27
ﬂ.,. Delivery Training for Managers 0% O Not Attempted 2022-05-27
ﬂ_,, Server Training for Managers 0% (0) Not Attempted 2022-05-27
ﬂ.,. Bar Training for Managers 0% () Not Attempted 2022-05-27
ﬂ_,, Office/Bookkeeping/Accounting (FOH Managers) 0% O Not Attempted 2022-05-27
ﬂ.,. Inventory Training (FOH Managers) 0% O Not Attempted 2022-05-27
ﬂ_,, Cost of Goods Sold (FOH Mananagers) 0% O Not Attempted 2022-05-27
U+ Manager - Harassment Prevention Training 0% O Not Attempted 2022-05-27
g... Hourly Employee - Harassment Prevention Training 0% O Mot Attempted 2022-05-27
g+ g::;l?;fmployee - Harassment Prevention Training - 0% O Not Attempted 20220527
g_,_ Server Evaulation 0% O Mot Attempted 2022-05-27
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EXHIBIT |
STATE EFFECTIVE DATES

I-1
2024 Green Mill On The Go, LLC Franchise Disclosure Document



STATE EFFECTIVE DATES
The following states have franchise laws that require that the Franchise Disclosure
Document be registered or filed with the states, or be exempt from registration: California,

Hawaii, Illinois, Indiana, Maryland, Michigan, Minnesota, New York, North Dakota,
Rhode Island, South Dakota, Virginia, Washington, and Wisconsin.

Other states may require registration, filing, or exemption of a franchise under other laws,
such as those that regulate the offer and sale of business opportunities or seller-assisted
marketing plans.

Minnesota — October 31, 2023

North Dakota — July 26, 2023

South Dakota — June 29, 2023

Wisconsin — May 18, 2023
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EXHIBITJ
RECEIPTS
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FRANCHISEE’S COPY
RECEIPT

This Disclosure Document summarizes certain provisions of the franchise agreement and other information
in plain language. Read this Disclosure Document and all agreements carefully.

Except as noted below, if Green Mill On The Go, LLC offers you a franchise, we must provide this Disclosure
Document to you 14 calendar days before you sign a binding agreement with, or make a payment to, us or an affiliate
in connection with the proposed franchise sale.

If Green Mill On The Go, LLC offers you a franchise in New York, we must give you this Disclosure
Document at the earlier of the first personal meeting or 10 business days before the execution of the franchise or other
agreement or the payment of any consideration that relates to the franchise relationship.

If Green Mill On The Go, LLC offers you a franchise in lowa or Michigan,, we must give you this Disclosure
Document at least 10 business days before the execution of any binding franchise or other agreement or the payment
of any consideration.

If Green Mill On The Go, LLC does not deliver this Disclosure Document on time or if it contains a false or
misleading statement, or a material omission, a violation of federal law and state law may have occurred and should
be reported to the Federal Trade Commission, Washington, D.C. 20580 and the appropriate state agency identified on
Exhibit A.

The name, principal business address and telephone number of each franchise seller offering the franchise is:
Paul Dzubnar, 1342 Grand Avenue, St. Paul, MN 55105, (651) 203-3100; and Michael Drummer, 30 Map Drive,
Mankato, MN 56001, (507) 386-1060.
Issuance Date: May 29, 2024

See Exhibit A for our registered agents authorized to receive service of process.

| have received a Disclosure Document dated May 29, 2024 (see State Effective Dates) that included the following
Exhibits:

A. LIST OF STATE ADMINISTRATORS AND AGENTS FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS

B. FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

C. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

D. LIST OF FRANCHISED LOCATIONS

E. STATE ADDENDA TO DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

F. FORM OF GENERAL RELEASE AGREEMENT

G. THIRD PARTY SUPPLIER AGREEMENTS

H. OPERATING MANUAL TABLE OF CONTENTS

l. STATE EFFECTIVE DATES

J. RECEIPTS
Date Signature Printed Name
Date Signature Printed Name

Please sign this copy of the receipt, date your signature, and keep this copy for your records.
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FRANCHISOR’S COPY
RECEIPT

This Disclosure Document summarizes certain provisions of the franchise agreement and other information
in plain language. Read this Disclosure Document and all agreements carefully.

Except as noted below, if Green Mill On The Go, LLC offers you a franchise, we must provide this Disclosure
Document to you 14 calendar days before you sign a binding agreement with, or make a payment to, us or an affiliate
in connection with the proposed franchise sale.

If Green Mill On The Go, LLC offers you a franchise in New York, we must give you this Disclosure
Document at the earlier of the first personal meeting or 10 business days before the execution of the franchise or other
agreement or the payment of any consideration that relates to the franchise relationship.

If Green Mill On The Go, LLC offers you a franchise in lowa or Michigan,, we must give you this Disclosure
Document at least 10 business days before the execution of any binding franchise or other agreement or the payment
of any consideration.

If Green Mill On The Go, LLC does not deliver this Disclosure Document on time or if it contains a false or
misleading statement, or a material omission, a violation of federal law and state law may have occurred and should
be reported to the Federal Trade Commission, Washington, D.C. 20580 and the appropriate state agency identified on
Exhibit A.

The name, principal business address and telephone number of each franchise seller offering the franchise is:
Paul Dzubnar, 1342 Grand Avenue, St. Paul, MN 55105, (651) 203-3100; and Michael Drummer, 30 Map Drive,
Mankato, MN 56001, (507) 386-1060.
Issuance Date: May 29, 2024

See Exhibit A for our registered agents authorized to receive service of process.

| have received a Disclosure Document dated May 29, 2024 (see State Effective Dates) that included the following
Exhibits:

A. LIST OF STATE ADMINISTRATORS AND AGENTS FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS

B. FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

C. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

D. LIST OF FRANCHISED LOCATIONS

E. STATE ADDENDA TO THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

F. FORM OF GENERAL RELEASE AGREEMENT

G. THIRD PARTY SUPPLIER AGREEMENTS

H. OPERATING MANUAL TABLE OF CONTENTS

l. STATE EFFECTIVE DATES

J. RECEIPTS
Date Signature Printed Name
Date Signature Printed Name

Please sign this copy of the receipt, date your signature, return the signed Receipt to: Green Mill On The Go, LLC, 1342 Grand
Avenue, St. Paul, Minnesota 55105, Attn: Mr. Paul Dzubnar.
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	EXHIBIT A LIST OF STATE ADMINISTRATORS AND AGENTS FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS
	EXHIBIT B FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
	1. Grant of Franchise; Franchised Location.  Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, Franchisor hereby grants to Franchisee a non-exclusive and terminable right and license to use the Licensed Property in the operation of a to go restau...
	a. “Notwithstanding anything contained in this lease to the contrary, Lessor agrees that without its consent, this lease and the right, title and interest of the Lessee thereunder, may be assigned by the Lessee to Green Mill On The Go, LLC, or its des...
	b. “Lessee hereby agrees that Lessor may, upon the written request of Green Mill On The Go, LLC, disclose to Green Mill On The Go, LLC all reports, information or data in Lessor’s possession respecting sales made in, upon or from the leased premises.”
	c. “Lessor shall give written notice to Green Mill On The Go, LLC (concurrently with the giving of such notice to Lessee) of any default by Lessee under this lease, and Green Mill On The Go, LLC shall have the right, in its sole business judgment, to ...

	2. Initial Franchise Fee.  Franchisee shall pay to Franchisor an initial franchise fee of Fifteen Thousand Dollars ($15,000). Payment of the Initial Franchise Fee is deferred until Franchisor has satisfied its pre-opening obligations to Franchisee and...
	3. Royalties.  Franchisee shall pay Franchisor an ongoing royalty fee equal to four percent (4%) of the Net Sales (as hereinafter defined)  on the Green Mill On The Go menu items (set forth in the attached Green Mill On The Go menu or otherwise author...
	4. Term.  This Agreement and the license granted hereby shall have an initial term of twenty (20) years commencing on the date first above written (the “Initial Term”).
	5. Renewal of Franchise.  Franchisee may, at its option, renew the license granted hereby for one additional ten (10) year term upon the expiration of the Initial Term, provided that:
	a. Franchisee and its affiliates is/are not then in default under or in violation of any provision of this Agreement or any other agreement between Franchisee or any of its affiliates and Franchisor or its subsidiaries or affiliates, or pursuant to an...
	b. Franchisee and its affiliates have satisfied all monetary obligations owed by Franchisee or any of its affiliates to Franchisor and its subsidiaries and affiliates and has timely met these obligations throughout the Initial Term of this Agreement;
	c. Franchisee is able to maintain possession of the Franchised Location or to secure and develop a suitable alternative site approved by Franchisor for such renewal term;
	d. Franchisee gives Franchisor written notice of its election to renew the license granted hereby not less than six (6) months nor more than twelve (12) months prior to the end of the Initial Term;
	e. Franchisee executes Franchisor’s then-current form of franchise agreement, the terms of which may differ materially from this Agreement, as further described below;
	f. Comply with all refurbishing requirements, if any, Franchisor specifies for the Franchised Business; and
	g. You and your personal guarantors execute a general release of claims in a form we prescribe.
	6. Training.  Prior to the opening of the Franchised Business, Franchisee, or the on-site general manager of the Franchised Business if Franchisee is not a natural person, shall attend Franchisor’s training program in Minneapolis-St. Paul, Minnesota (...
	Any training Franchisor provides to any of Franchisee’s employees will be limited to training or guidance regarding the delivery of approved products and services to customers in a manner that reflects the customer service standards of the System.  Fr...


	7. Other Services.  Franchisor agrees to provide to Franchisee during the Initial Term of this Agreement: (a) assistance in selecting the equipment, furniture and fixtures for the Franchised Business; (b) a first draft of a proposed layout for the Fra...
	8. Advertising and Promotion.  Franchisee agrees to actively promote its to go restaurant, to abide by all of Franchisor’s advertising requirements and to comply with the following provisions:
	a. Advertising Fees and Expenditures.  Franchisee must pay at least two percent (2%) of its Net Sales on the Green Mill On The Go menu items on advertising.  Of the two percent (2%), an Advertising Fee of one and one-half percent (1 1/2%) must be paid...
	b. Advertising Fund.  All Advertising Fees will be placed in an Advertising Fund that Franchisor owns and manages.  The Advertising Fund is not a trust or escrow account, and Franchisor has no fiduciary obligation to franchisees with respect to the Ad...
	c. Required Local Expenditures. Franchisee must use its best efforts to promote and advertise the to go restaurant and participate in any local marketing and promotional programs Franchisor establishes from time to time.  Upon Franchisor’s request, Fr...
	d. Advertising Standards.  All advertising and promotion by Franchisee shall be completely factual, dignified and shall conform to the highest standards of ethical advertising and to policies, if any, prescribed from time to time by the Franchisor, in...
	e. Grand Opening Advertising.  At least thirty (30) days prior to the opening of the Franchised Business for business, the Franchisee shall pay to the Franchisor the sum of Five to Fifteen Thousand and No/100 Dollars ($5,000.00 to $15,000.00) (the “Gr...

	9. Accounting Reports and Inspection. Franchisor acknowledges and agrees that Franchisee shall have the right to advertise and sell its products at whatever prices Franchisee determines.  Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that the successful developm...
	10. Quality Control.  In order to protect the goodwill associated with the Licensed Property, Franchisee shall comply with all reasonable standards and specifications of product quality and of restaurant maintenance and appearance established from tim...
	a. Purchase soft drink syrup, beer, ale, spice blends, certain breads, dough blends, cheese, tomato sauce and sauce blends, and other products and services as Franchisor may from time to time specify, from such source or sources as may be designated f...
	b. Maintain the Franchised Business and equipment in a neat, clean and sanitary condition;
	c. Conform at all times with standards published by Franchisor in its manuals with respect to design and decor of the Franchised Location and employees’ apparel, as the same may be amended or supplemented from time to time by Franchisor;
	d. Observe and maintain strictly the standards published by Franchisor in its manuals for food products sold at the Franchised Business and conform to the specifications for their preparation, as such standards and specifications may be amended or sup...
	e. Use the Franchised Location only for the operation of the Franchised Business and not for any other business or purpose;
	f. Refrain from marketing or selling any products or services at or from the Franchised Location without the prior written consent of Franchisor other than those contained in Franchisor’s standard menu, as such menu may be amended or supplemented by F...
	g. Offer and sell all of the menu items, including beer and ale, contained in Franchisor’s standard menu, as the same may be amended or supplemented by Franchisor from time to time;
	h. Use such foods, ingredients, supplies and materials as meet Franchisor’s standards and specifications, as the same may be amended or supplemented by Franchisor from time to time, or as may be otherwise approved by Franchisor in writing;
	i. Have at all times in its employ a full-time, on-site general manager (which must be Franchisee if Franchisee is a natural person or must be an owner of Franchisee if Franchisee is an entity, unless this requirement is waived by the Franchisor in wr...
	j. Employ a sufficient number of adequately trained, competent and courteous employees to insure efficient service to Franchisee’s customers.  No employee of Franchisee will be deemed to be an employee of Franchisor for any purpose whatsoever, and not...
	k. Use only such equipment in the preparation and handling of food products sold at or from the Franchised Business as conform to the specifications for equipment published in Franchisor’s manuals, as such specifications may be amended or supplemented...
	l. Take good care of and make all necessary repairs to the Franchised Location and the fixtures and equipment therein and, upon the reasonable request of Franchisor, replace or refurbish such fixtures or equipment;
	m. Comply with all reasonable operating standards, procedures and practices adopted by the Franchisor from time-to-time.  Any required standards exist to protect Franchisor’s interests in the Green Mill on the Go System and the Marks and not for the p...
	n. Purchase and use in the operation of the Franchised Business a point-of-sale register system which has been approved by Franchisor;
	o. Reserved.
	p. Purchase and use in the operation of the Franchised Business a Kitchen Display System which has been approved by Franchisor;
	q. At all times when the Franchised Business is open for business, the Franchisee shall have at least one employee on duty who has been ServSafe® certified;
	r. Refrain from offering or selling any food items in a “buffet” style of serving except as may be expressly authorized from time to time by the Franchisor in its confidential manuals or otherwise in writing;
	s. Participate in all gift certificate and gift card programs now or at any time hereafter sponsored by Franchisor;
	t. Participate at its expense in all programs now or at any time hereafter sponsored by the Franchisor to promote and reward the frequent and regular customers of Green Mill On The Go restaurants;
	u. Maintain at its expense such number of telephone lines dedicated for such uses in each case as Franchisor may require from time to time; and
	v. Refrain from installing a popcorn machine and selling or offering complimentary popcorn at the Franchised Business.

	11. Compliance with Law; Payment of Liabilities.  Franchisee shall secure and maintain in force all required licenses, permits and certificates and shall operate the Franchised Business in full compliance with all applicable laws, ordinances and regul...
	12. Ownership and Use of Licensed Property.  Franchisee hereby acknowledges the validity of the Franchisor’s right to grant the license provided for herein.  Any and all improvements by Franchisee relating to the Licensed Property shall become the sol...
	13. Rights on Termination.  Upon the expiration of the Initial Term or renewal term or upon termination of this Agreement by either party for any reason, Franchisee shall have no interest in the Licensed Property and shall (a) immediately discontinue ...
	14. Termination by Franchisee.  If Franchisee is in compliance with this Agreement and Franchisor breaches any material term or condition of this Agreement and fails to cure such breach within sixty (60) days after written notice setting forth the nat...
	15. Termination by Franchisor.  Franchisor may terminate this Agreement and the license granted hereby effective upon delivery of written notice to Franchisee setting forth the reasons for the termination if:
	a. Franchisee fails to open the Franchised Business for business by the Required Open Date set forth in Paragraph 1 above;
	b. Franchisee voluntarily abandons the franchise relationship or the Franchised Business, or fails to continuously and actively operate the Franchised Business;
	c. Franchisee files a voluntary bankruptcy petition or any pleading seeking reorganization, liquidation or other settlement with creditors under any law which is not dismissed within thirty (30) days, or Franchisee admits or fails to contest any such ...
	d. Franchisee assigns for the benefit of creditors or in a similar manner disposes of all or any substantial part of the assets of the Franchised Business or admits an inability to pay the obligations of the Franchised Business as they become due;
	e. Franchisee or any of its owners is convicted or enters a plea of guilty or no contest to any charge of violating any law relating to the Franchised Business or to any felony (regardless of the nature of the charges);
	f. Franchisee commits any act which, in the reasonable judgment of Franchisor, impairs the goodwill associated with the Licensed Property or impairs or tends to impair the reputation of Franchisee or any owner;
	g. Franchisee or any of its owners make any material misrepresentation on its franchise application.
	h. The Franchised to go restaurant is ordered closed by any state or local authorities for health or public safety reasons;
	i. Franchisee uses the Licensed Property (including confidential information provided by Franchisor to Franchisee for the purpose of operating the Franchised Business) in an unauthorized manner;
	j. Franchisee commits an unauthorized transfer or assignment in violation of Paragraph 17 of this Agreement;
	k. Franchisee, on three (3) or more occasions within any period of twelve (12) consecutive months, fails to submit when due reports or financial statements or fails to make any payments due to Franchisor or any supplier of the Franchised Business whet...
	l. It reasonably appears to Franchisor that Franchisee has intentionally under reported the royalties and/or Advertising Fees payable by Franchisee pursuant to this Agreement for any period.
	a. Franchisee suffers termination or cancellation of or fails to renew or extend the lease or sublease of the Franchised Location or otherwise fails to maintain possession of the Franchised Location unless Franchisee can relocate its Franchised Busine...
	b. Franchisee fails to obtain a liquor license for the Franchised Business within six (6) months of the date of this Agreement or if Franchisee loses its liquor license for any reason;
	c. Franchisee violates paragraph 21 of this Agreement by failing to maintain the required insurance coverage and does not correct such failure within thirty (30) days after receiving written notice thereof from Franchisor;
	d. Franchisor’s audit discloses an understatement of royalties and/or Advertising Fees payable by Franchisee pursuant to this Agreement and Franchisee fails to pay to Franchisor the royalties and/or Advertising Fees and interest due thereon after noti...
	e. Franchisee fails to pay when due any amounts payable to Franchisor pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement or any other Agreement with Franchisor or payable to any creditor or supplier of the Franchised Business, and Franchisee fails to make s...
	f. Franchisee fails to comply with any applicable state or federal law or fails to pay any local, state or federal taxes when due;
	g. Franchisee fails to comply with any other provision of this Agreement or any specification, standard or operating procedure prescribed by Franchisor and Franchisee does not correct such failure within thirty (30) days after receiving notice thereof...
	h. Franchisee or any of its affiliates default in the payment or performance of any of their respective obligations to Franchisor arising under any other agreement between Franchisee or such affiliate and Franchisor or any such agreement is terminated...
	i. Franchisee fails to spend the amounts for approved local advertising, marketing and promotions at the times required by paragraph 8 hereof; or
	j. Any franchise agreement or license agreement applicable to any hotel, motel or other lodging property in which Franchised Business is located or which is immediately adjacent to the Franchised Business expires or is terminated.

	16. Secrecy and Covenants Not to Compete.  Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that Franchisor and/or Licensor is/are the owner(s) of the Licensed Property, including any and all manuals provided and to be provided by Franchisor to Franchisee pursuant ...
	17. Assignment.  Franchisor may assign freely this Agreement, including any interest therein, to any third party.  The parties further acknowledge that one of the inducements to Franchisor to enter into this Agreement is Franchisor’s reliance upon the...
	a. All of Franchisee’s accrued monetary obligations to Franchisor shall have been satisfied, and Franchisee shall not be in default under this Agreement.
	b. The purchaser, assignee or transferee shall have been approved by Franchisor and shall have demonstrated to Franchisor’s satisfaction that she/he/it meets Franchisor’s managerial, financial, and business standards for new franchisees, possesses a g...
	c. Prior to the date of transfer, the purchaser, assignee or transferee or his/its on-site general manager shall have successfully completed any training prescribed by Franchisor.
	d. The purchaser, assignee or transferee shall have paid to Franchisor a nonrefundable assignment fee equal to twenty percent (20%) of Franchisor’s then-current initial franchise fee, plus the cost of any required training of the purchaser, assignee o...
	e. The purchaser, assignee or transferee must execute the Franchisor’s then-current form of franchise agreement and such other ancillary agreements as Franchisor may require.
	f. Franchisee, and each of its owners and Personal Guarantors, must sign a general release of all claims arising out of or relating to this Agreement, the Franchised Business or the parties’ business relationship, in the form designated by Franchisor,...

	18. Right of First Refusal and First Option.  Neither Franchisee nor its owners shall sell, assign or otherwise transfer Franchisee’s rights in (a) this Agreement; (b) the real estate or leasehold interest applicable to the Franchised Location; (c) th...
	19. Death or Incapacity of Franchisee.  If Franchisee dies and his or her personal representative does not desire to sell the Franchised Business and Franchisee’s interest herein and if, under controlling local law, the Franchised Business and Franchi...
	20. Failure to Enforce.  Failure of Franchisor to enforce any of the terms or conditions of this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of Franchisor’s right to subsequently enforce such provisions.
	21. Indemnification and Insurance.  Franchisee and the Personal Guarantors hereby jointly and severally covenant and agree to pay and perform and indemnify and hold Franchisor, together with its officers, directors, employees, agents, representatives ...
	22. Designated Territory; Reservation of Rights.  During the term of this Agreement, Franchisor shall not, so long as Franchisee is in full compliance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement, operate or grant others the right to operate a Gree...
	Franchisor retains all rights that are not expressly granted to Franchisee under this Agreement.  Further, Franchisor may, among other things, on any terms and conditions Franchisor deems advisable, without compensation to any franchisee, and without ...
	a. establish and/or license others to establish franchised or company-owned to go restaurants at any location outside the Territory regardless of the proximity of such to go restaurants to the Territory;
	b. merge with, acquire or become associated with (“Merger/Acquisition Activity”) any businesses or stores of any kind under other systems and/or marks, which businesses and to go restaurants may convert to or operate under the Service Marks and may of...
	c. operate or license others to operate to go restaurants using different marks than the Service Marks which may feature similar or competitive menu items anywhere within or outside of the Territory; and
	d. offer, sell and distribute for itself and/or license others to offer, sell and distribute through franchised businesses or any other method of distribution, both inside and outside the Territory, menu items the same as or different from the menu it...
	Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that certain locations within and outside the Territory are by their nature unique and separate in character from sites generally developed as Green Mill On The Go restaurants.  As a result, Franchisee agrees that th...
	Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that the Franchisee shall not have the right to object to the establishment of any Franchisor-owned or other franchised to go restaurants featuring pizza and/or r...
	23. Refurbishing the Franchised Business.  Franchisee agrees to effect such refurbishing, within twelve (12) months of its receipt of notice from the Franchisor, of its Franchised Business (in addition to regular maintenance and repair) as the Franchi...
	24. Governing Law; Dispute Resolution; Venue for Disputes.  Franchisor and Franchisee agree as follows:
	(a) Except to the extent governed by federal law or regulation, including but not limited to the United States Trademark Act of 1946, 15 U.S.C. §§ 1050-1126, as amended, this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the state in which the Franchised...
	25. Notices.  Any notice required by the terms of this Agreement shall be deemed to have been sufficiently given if sent postage prepaid, registered or certified mail, or by reputable overnight delivery courier, addressed in the following manner:
	26. Receipt of Offering Materials.  Franchisee acknowledges that the grant of the license contained hereby may be governed by various federal or state laws, rules and regulations and acknowledges that (a) Franchisee has received Franchisor’s Franchise...
	27. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement of the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof, except for any sublease or other ancillary agreement which may be entered into with respect to the Franchised Locat...
	28. Attorneys’ Fees.  In the event of an actual or threatened breach or violation by Franchisee of any of the terms or conditions of this Agreement, Franchisee agrees to pay all costs, expenses and reasonable attorney’s fees incurred by Franchisor in ...
	29. Marketing.  Prior to the completion of the training of Franchisee’s on-site general manager, Franchisee shall furnish Franchisor with a marketing plan for the first six (6) periods of operations of the Franchised Business in the format then approv...
	30. Operating Budget.  Prior to purchasing or signing a lease for the Franchised Location, Franchisee shall furnish Franchisor with a 4-4-5 accounting period operating budget or pro forma financial statement for the Franchised Business in the format t...
	31. Computerized Point of Sale and Other Systems.  At Franchisee’s option, Franchisee may purchase and use any computer system that Franchisor develops or selects for the Franchised Business, including all future updates, supplements and modifications...
	Franchisee will at all times permit the Franchisor to access the records and information on the Franchisee’s computerized point of sale system and other computer systems, either by direct access, by telephonic modem access, by providing disk copies or...
	32. Compliance with Plans and Specifications.  The Franchised Business must be developed, constructed, renovated, furnished and equipped (collectively the “Construction Work”) in strict compliance with:  (1) the Franchisor’s then-current approved stan...
	33. Construction Work.  Prior to the commencement of the Construction Work, Franchisee shall submit to Franchisor the resume of the general contractor and/or any major subcontractors for the Construction Work and such additional information concerning...
	34. Pre-Opening Inspection.  Franchisee shall not display any “Green Mill” signage at the Franchised Location or open the Franchised Business and commence initial business operations until (i) the Franchisor has inspected the Franchised Business and h...
	35. Reimbursement of Franchisor for Taxes.   Franchisee will pay all state and local taxes, including, without limitation, taxes denominated as income or franchise taxes, that may be imposed on Franchisor as a result of our receipt or accrual of the I...
	36. Gaming Machines; Tickets, Entertainment.  The Franchisee will not permit any video or electronic games, dart games, pool or billiards tables, or machines (including pinball and slot machines) to be used on the premises of the Franchised Business o...
	37. Electronic Funds Transfer.  All amounts due and payable to Franchisor hereunder shall be made via electronic funds transfer (“EFT”) initiated by Franchisor upon the bank account designated by Franchisee for such transactions. Franchisee shall exec...
	38. Personal Guarantors.  All persons owning any interest in Franchisee (if Franchisee is an entity), or all individual owners of the Franchised Business, must execute the form of undertaking and guarantee at the end of this Agreement. Any person or e...
	39. Interpretation of Rights and Obligations.  The following provisions apply to and govern the interpretation of this Agreement, the parties’ rights under this Agreement, and the relationship between the parties:
	40. Jury Waiver.  All parties hereby waive any and all rights to a trial by jury in connection with the enforcement or interpretation by judicial process of any provision of this Agreement, and in connection with allegations of state or federal statut...
	41. Waiver of Punitive Damages.  Franchisee and its affiliates and Franchisor and its affiliates agree to waive, to the fullest extent permitted by law, the right to or claim for punitive or exemplary damages against the other and agree that in the ev...
	42. Relationship of the Parties.  Franchisor and Franchisee are independent contractors.  Neither party is the agent, legal representatives, partner, subsidiary, joint venture or employee of the other. Neither party may obligate the other or represent...
	43. Adaptations and Variances.  Complete and detailed uniformity under many varying conditions may not always be possible, practical or in the best interest of the Green Mill franchise system.  Accordingly, Franchisor has the right to vary the menu it...
	44. Notice of Potential Profit.  Franchisor and/or its affiliates may from time to time make available to Franchisee or require Franchisee to purchase goods, products and/or services for use in the Franchised Business on the sale of which Franchisor a...
	45. Effective Date.  The Effective Date of this Agreement is the date referenced in the first paragraph of this Agreement. If no Effective Date is designated in the first paragraph of this Agreement, the Effective Date is the date on which we sign thi...
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